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(2021 )
( ) )

348,006,712 98.51

273,173 0.08

348,279,885 98.59

4,973,839 1.41
353,253,724

( 38,773 ) 100.00

2021 31

5/270



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

2021
()
1 |Apple Inc 152,999 124.77 19,089,147 124.61 19,065,205| 5.40
2 Microsoft Corp 73,123 222.32 16,256,961 249.68 18,257,351 5.17
3 Amazon.com Inc 4,150 3,165.16 13,135,411 3,223.07 13,375,741 3.79
4 |Facebook Inc 23,321 272.57 6,356,652 328.73 7,666,312 2.17
5 |Alphabet Inc Class A 2,916 1,845.27 5,380,795 2,356.85 6,872,575 1.95
6 Alphabet Inc Class C 2,795 1,855.32 5,185,623 2,411.56 6,740,310 1.91
7 Berkshire Hathaway Inc 18,486 235.19 4,347,692 289.44 5,350,588 1.51
8 |[JPMorgan Chase & Co 29,585 133.25 3,942,081 164.24 4,859,040 1.38
9 Tesla Inc 7,445 754.78 5,619,335 625.22 4,654,763 1.32
10 | Johnson & Johnson 25,486 156.34 3,984,546 169.25 4,313,506 1.22
11 [NVIDIA Corp 6,011 522.19 3,138,862 649.78 3,905,828 1.11
12 [UnitedHealth Group Inc 9,165 348.33 3,192,482 411.92 3,775,247 1.07
13 |Visa Inc 16,444 207.88 3,418,459 227.30 3,737,721 1.06
14 | Home Depot Inc/The 10,438 279.46 2,916,977 318.91 3,328,783 0.94
15 |Procter & Gamble Co/The 23,874 135.44 3,233,485 134.85 3,219,409 0.91
16 [Walt Disney Co/The 17,599 168.16 2,959,445 178.65 3,144,061 0.89
17 |Bank of America Corp 73,657 32.64 2,404,235 42.39 3,122,320 0.88
18 [Mastercard Inc 8,501 342.13 2,908,435 360.58 3,065,291 0.87
19 |PayPal Holdings Inc 11,355 230.32 2,615,244 260.02 2,952,527 0.84
20 |Vanguard S&P 500 ETF 7,500 256.86 1,926,451 386.13 2,895,975 0.82
21 |Comcast Corp 44,319 49.58 2,197,211 57.34 2,541,251 0.72
22 |Exxon Mobil Corp 41,045 47.69 1,957,339 58.37 2,395,797 0.68
23 |Adobe Inc 4,647 468.75 2,178,282 504.58 2,344,783 0.66
24 |Verizon Communications Inc 40,120 57.70 2,314,763 56.49 2,266,379 0.64
25 | Intel Corp 39,392 56.51 2,226,097 57.12 2,250,071 0.64
26 |Cisco Systems Inc/Delaware 40,931 45.09 1,845,645 52.90 2,165,250 0.61
27 | Netflix Inc 4,294 522.33 2,242,898 502.81 2,159,066 0.61
28 |salesforce.com Inc 8,898 222.95 1,983,802 238.10 2,118,614 0.60
29 |Pfizer Inc 54,076 36.15 1,954,878 38.73 2,094,363 0.59
30 |Coca-Cola Co/The 37,602 50.66 1,904,779 55.29 2,079,015 0.59

2021

2021
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2021
2019 27,996,408 3,072,886 1,101.59 120,911
2020 185,882,063 20,402,415 1,173.39 128,791
2020 185,882,063 20,402,415 1,173.39 128,791
140,739,510 15,447,569 1,238.75 135,965
119,548,754 13,121,671 1,310.63 143,855
166,242,865 18,246,817 1,257.37 138,009
10 444,528,280 48,791,424 1,223.20 134,258
11 178,040,981 19,541,778 1,354.80 148,703
12 168,606,804 18,506,283 1,396.74 153,306
2021 636,806,061 69,895,833 1,390.67 152,640
653,110,139 71,685,369 1,426.27 156,547
406,222,099 44,586,938 1,487.91 163,313
486,431,471 53,390,718 1,566.53 171,942
284,564,535 31,233,803 1,576.41 173,027
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2019 22,553,378 10,148
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2020 12,546,641,702 10,611
9,237,255,760 11,196

4,515,760,337 11,936

3,269,348,862 11,442

10 3,040,584,561 11,125
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2021
1.7212 189
5.9651 655
2020 17.3006 1,899
2021 1.8115 199
0
54.0000
2020 67.0000
2021 49.0000
2021
2020 2021 16.45
100x%
2021

2020
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2020 30

2018 S&P 500

2020 30
4 293,860 32,254
1 0
385 42
7,069 776
2,421 266
18 2
303,754 33,340
4 (681) (75)
9 (330) (36)
(111) (12)
12 (116) (13)
11 (141) (15)
(30) (©)
(167) (18)
(1,576) (173)
302,178 33,167

2020 12 18
J.P.

15/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

2019 30

2018 S&P 500 *

2019 30
4 27,149 2,980
21 2
80 9
973 107
185 20
28,408 3,118

4

9 (64) )
(23) ©)
12 (12) (€]
11 (43) ®)
(18) )
() €Y
(33) O]
(202) (22)
28,206 3,096

2018 11 27
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2019 2020 30

2018 S&P 500

17/270

2020 30

7 (12,575) (1,380)

5,703 626
Q) @
(6,879) (755)
9 (365) (40)
12 (266) (29)
11 (168) (18)
(19 @
() @
®) @
13 (30) ®)
10 © @
(143) (16)
(1,011) 111)
14 (626) (69)
(8,516) (935)
(1,676) (184)
(10,192) (1,119)
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2018 2019 30

2018 S&P 500 *
2019 30

7 3,468 381

517 57

3,985 437

9 (64) @

12 (12) @

11 (43) ©)

@18) @

©) @

©) @

13 ©) @

10 @ @

@14 &)

(186) (20)

14 (88) (10)

3,711 407

(151) @an

3,560 391

2018 11 27
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2020 30

2018 S&P 500

2020 30

28,206 3,096
284,164 31,190
284,164 31,190
(10,192) (1,119)
302,178 33,167
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2019 30

2018 S&P 500 *
2019 30

24,646 2,705
24,646 2,705
3,560 391
28,206 3,096
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2020 30

2018 S&P 500

2020 30
(10,192) (1,119)
626 69
(5,703) (626)

7 1

1,676 184
(13,586) (1,491)
(266,711) (29,274)
681 75

3 0

692 76
(2,237) (246)
(281,158) (30,860)
(1,676) (184)
5,399 593
™ @
(277,442) (30,452)
284,164 31,190
(626) (69)
283,538 31,121
6,096 669
973 107
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2019 30

2018 S&P 500

2019 30
3,560 391
88 10
(517) G7)
151 17
3,282 360
(27,149) (2,980)
Y @
202 22
(185) (20)
(23,871) (2.,620)
(151) @an
437 48
(23,585) (2,589)
24,646 2,705
(88) (10)
24,558 2,695
973 107
973 107
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14
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201612
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BNP

2016 TOPIX 2016

2016 225
11 27
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2014 12 2018 25
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2016 JPX 400 2016
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201609
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400
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2020 30
IFRIC 23 2017 2019
IAS 12
)
IFRIC 23
2020 30
IFRS 17 2017 2023
b)
O
IFRS IFRS
FDI
(i)
J.P
NAV
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O]

2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500 2018 S&P 500
@i
FDI

@
@
®
2020 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018
S&P 500 2020 30 2016 JPX
400 (i)

D) IAS 32
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COVID-19
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COVID-19
2016 TOPIX 2020 30
6,197,618
6,197,618
(8,715)
(8.715)
FDI
61,889,030
2016 225 2020 30
18,561,403
18,561,403
(5,490)
(5,490)
FDI
185,559,130
2018 S&P 500 2020 30
293,552
251
57

293,860

31/270



2019

2016

30

2016

2016

FDI
2,931,790

JPX 400

FDI
107,251,050

TOPIX

FDI
105,651,700
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(681)

(681)

2020 30

10,733,066

10,733,066

(7,961)

(7,961)

2019 30

10,566,401

10,566,401

(1,231)

(1,231)

2019 30

24,338,763

2,774

24,341,537
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FDI
243,415,370
2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30
27,134
14
1
27,149
* 2018 11 27
**500
FDI
271,490
2016 JPX 400 2019 30
15,051,097
187
15,051,284
FDI
150,512,840
(®)

©
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2020 30
seP
2020 30
AA-
seP
2019 30
AA-
A
* 2018 11 27
®©

2019 30

2016
TOPIX

6,338,433
124,472

2016
TOPIX

10,820,198
90,540

225
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2016 2018 2016
S&P 500 JPX 400
18,761,763 293,816 10,881,570
165,000 2,421 97,318
2016 2018 2016
S&P 500 * JPX 400
24,622,102 27,147 15,337,423
166,336 185 62,301
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2016 TOPIX
2020 30

8,715
1,520
10,589
712
11,620
30,610
1,272
862

6,428,371

6,494,271

2016 225
2020 30

5,490
4,127
16,418
845
17,966
3,067
1,992
26,514
1,239

18,885,154

18,962,812

2018 S&P 500
2020 30

681

111
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141
330
116

30
167

302,178

303,754

2016 JPX 400
2020 30

7,961
2,933
12,448
31
15,315
4,044
2,037

2,879

47,648

2016 TOPIX
2019 30

1,231
2,487
9,264
788
8,264
20,646
2,381
1,179
3,148
2,602

10,896,740

10,948,730
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2016 225
2019 30

5,611
15,009
653
18,087
691
3,190
1,280
3,209

24,778,762

24,826,492

2018 S&P 500 *
2019 30

23

43

64
12
18
33

28,206

28,408

2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400
2019 30

3,890
9,807
716
10,623
915

3,226
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2,612
6,309

7,257

45,355
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2020 30

2016 TOPIX
6,197,618 6,197,618
6,197,618 6,197,618
(8,715) (8,715)
(8,715) (8,715)
2016 225
18,561,403 18,561,403
18,561,403 18,561,403
(5,490) (5,490)
(5,490) (5,490)
2018 S&P 500
293,552 293,552
251 251
57 57
293,803 57 293,860
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2016 TOPIX

2016 225

2018 S&P 500

*

2019
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(681) (681)

(681) (681)

10,733,066 10,733,066

10,733,066 10,733,066
(7,961) (7.,961)
(7,961) (7,961)

30

10,566,401 10,566,401
10,566,401 10,566,401
(1,231) (1,231)
(1,231) (1,231)
24,338,763 24,338,763
2,774 2,774
24,341,537 24,341,537
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27,134 27,134
14 14
1 1
27,148 1 27,149
**
* 2018 11 27
**500
2016 JPX 400
15,051,097 15,051,097
187 187
15,051,284 15,051,284
IFRS 13
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2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

30

30
2016 TOPIX
2016 225

2016 JPX 400

30

2018 S&P 500

30

30

2018 S&P 500
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242,439 (8,715)

288,321 (5,490)

241,094 (7,961)
2,649 251
(624)
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2019 30
2019 30
2016 TOPIX 328,021 (1,231)
2016 225 428,062 2,774
2016 JPX 400 350,548 187
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 * 1,002 14
* 2018 11 27
2019 30
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 *
* 2018 11 27
7.
2016 TOPIX 2020 30
48,687
33,932
349,220
(7.,484)
424,355
2016 225 2020 30
271,328
43,664
1,686,746

43/270
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(8,265)

1,993,473

2018 S&P 500 2020 30

(13,744)
925
633

(389)

(12,575)

2016 JPX 400 2020 30

(274,907)
35,017
879,174

(8,148)

631,136

2016 TOPIX 2019 30

424,140
(39,409)
(1,883,350)

8,232

(1,490,387)

2016 225 2019 30

(276,680)

44/270
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(30,152)
(2,134,978)

4,004

(2,437,806)
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2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30

2,445
25
982

16

3,468

* 2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400 2019 30

(82,532)
(41,657)
(1,539,028)

5,767

(1,657,450)

2016 JPX 400
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500

NAV

NAV

NAV
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2018 S&P 500

2016 225 2018
2020 30
2020 30
6,974,500 38,891
(2,874,500) (26,000)
4,100,000 12,891
6,408,489 19,882
1.56 1.54
2020 30
1,179,700 3,023
647,600 484,000
(1,461,300)
366,000 487,023
8,153,365 10,731,789
22.28 22.04
2020 30
25,415 2,223
499,600 2,618,100
(366,600) (1,437,901)
158,415 1,182,422
185,882 116,296
1.17 0.10
2020 30
1,127,400
(338,000)
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789,400
10,968,999
13.90
2019 30 2016 TOPIX 225 2018
S&P 500 2019 30
2016 JPX 400 2018
2019 30
2016 TOPIX 2019 30
10,624,500 38,891
2,750,000
(6,400,000)
6,974,500 38,891
10,837,077 59,663
1.55 1.53
2016 225 2019 30
109,000 39,423
1,215,000 413,000
(144,300) (449, 400)
1,179,700 3,023
24,715,217 63,545
20.95 21.02
2018 S&P 500 * 2019 30
145,100 2,223
(119, 685)
25,415 2,223
27,996 209
1.10 0.09
* 2018 11 27

2016 JPX 400
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1,127,400
1,127,400
15,406,976
13.67
9.
@ O ©
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
2018 S&P 500
) 2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV 0.02
2018 S&P 500
NAV
0.02 0.04
)
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 250
NAV 0.07 () NAV
250 500 NAV 0.06
() NAV NAV 0.05
10,000,000
2018 S&P 500
() NAV 250 NAV
0.11 () NAV 250 500
0.10 () NAV
500 NAV 0.09
100,000
©) NAV
0.05
2016 TOPIX 16,540,928 2019 30 20,361,646
11,620,380 2019 30 8,264,100
2016 225 26,809,479 2019 30 30,866,252
17,965,752 2019 30 18,087,202
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2018 S&P 500 364,869 2019 30 63,826
330,303 2019 30 63,826

2016 JPX 400 20,870,148 2019 30
22,359,852 15,314,984 2019 30 10,622,730
10.

2,500
2016 TOPIX 379,955 2019 30 316,638
2019 30
2016 225 379,955 2019 30 316,638
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 8,744 2019 30 7,744
2019 30
2016 JPX 400 379,955 2019 30 316,638
2019 30
11.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 100
NAV 0.07 () NAV 100
250 NAV 0.06 () NAV
250 500 NAV 0.05 ()
NAV 500 NAV 0.04
720,000
2018 S&P 500
() NAV
100 NAV 0.07 ()
NAV 100 250 NAV

0.06 () NAV 250 500

NAV 0.05 () NAV 500

NAV 0.04

6,000
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2016 TOPIX
9,746,628 10,588,880 2
2016 225
14,661,030 16,417,546
2018 S&P 500
42,608 141,100
2016 JPX 400
10,577,314 12,447,828
12.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400
120,000
2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX
17,674,688 30,609,634
2016 225
3,645,449 3,066,598 20
2018 S&P 500
115,903 2019
2016 JPX 400
3,871,562 4,043,884 20
13.
225 500
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8,687,343 2019
30 9,263,928

30
019

12,658,352 2019
30 15,008,748

30
2019

168,223
30

2019
42,608

30
2019

10,027,305
30 9,807,072

2019 30

2019

2016 225

NAV 0.01

NAV 0.01

1,000

10,586,872
2019 30

2019
20,645,683

30

3,068,648
30

2019
690,680

30
19

266,441
30

2019
11,813

30 11,813

3,162,031 2019
30 915,089

30
19

JPX 400

TOPIX



2016 JPX

NAV 0.02
0.01
500

500
NAV

)
0.001

NAV

4,150,441

2,897,630

14.

0.0005

2020
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400 2016 225
100,000
2018 S&P 500 NAV
2016 TOPIX () NAV 100
NAV 0.00 () NAV 100
NAV 0.005 () NAV
1000 NAV 0.003 ()
1000 3000 NAV 0.002
NAV 3000 5000 NAV
() NAV 5000
100,000
2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 848,967 2019 30 1,180,191
2019 30
2016 225 3,682,153 2019 30
2019 30
2018 S&P 500 29,986 2019 30 8,878
2019 30
2016 JPX 400 2,832,684 2019 30
2019 30
11
30
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2016 2016 2018 2016
TOPIX 225 S&P 500 JPX 400
2019 97,783 - 152,883
2019 11 465 457 -
2020 64,680 - 626 135,190
2020 176 64,935 -
163,104 65,392 626 288,073
2019 30
2016 2016 2018 2016
TOPIX 225 S&P 500 * JPX 400
2018 156,035 140,161
2018 11 470 18,191
2019 82,554 88 131,611
2019 552 603
239,611 18,794 88 271,772
* 2018 11 27
15.
74
50
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16.
10 11
17.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400 2016 225
2019 30 2018 S&P 500
2018 11 27 2019 30
18.
CovID-19 2019 12
CovID-19
19.
20.

2020 30 2020 12 18
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2018 S&P 500

2020 30
97.15% (2019 30 96.20%)
0.03% (2019 30 0.04%)
0.03% (2019 30 0.04%)
455 Everest Re Group Ltd 94 0.03
94 0.03
94 0.03
1.30% (2019 30 1.03%)
0.08% (2019 30 0.07%)
3,047 Aptiv Plc 237 0.08
237 0.08
0.51% (2019 30 0.43%)
7,242 Accenture Plc 1,555 0.51
1,555 0.51
0.04% (2019 30 0.04%)
1,048 Allegion Plc 107 0.04
107 0.04
0.46% (2019 30 0.47%)
15,246 Medtronic Plc 1,398 0.46
1,398 0.46
0.10% (2019 30 )
1,464 Willis Towers Watson Plc 288 0.10
288 0.10
0.08% (2019 30 )
2,719 Trane Technologies Plc 242 0.08
242 0.08
0.03% (2019 30 0.02%)
1,550 Perrigo Co Plc 86 0.03
86 0.03
3,913 1.30
0.37% (2019 30 0.40%)
0.15% (2019 30 0.16%)
1,650 Garmin Ltd 161 0.05
3,750 TE Connectivity Ltd 306 0.10
467 0.15

0.22% (2019 30 0.24%)
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5,131 Chubb Ltd 650 0.22
650 0.22
1,117 0.37

0.63% (2019 30 0.89%)

(2019 30 0.02%)
0.43% (2019 30 0.39%)
5,971 Linde Plc 1,267 0.43
1,267 0.43
0.11% (2019 30 0.09%)
4,535 IHS Markit Ltd 342 0.11
342 0.11
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
0.63% (2019 30 0.89%) ( )
0.02% (2019 30 0.02%)
1,884 Pentair Plc 72 0.02
72 0.02
(2019 30 0-26%)
0.01% (2019 30 0.04%)
4,782 TechnipFMC Plc 33 0.01
33 0.01
0.06% (2019 30 0.07%)
17,899 Amcor Plc 183 0.06
183 0.06
1,897 0.63
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%)
0.07% (2019 30 0.10%)
4,429 Interpublic Group of Cos Inc 76 0.03
2,436 Omnicom Group Inc 133 0.04
209 0.07
1.65% (2019 30 2.22%)
6,095 Boeing Co 1,117 0.38
2,642 General Dynamics Corp 395 0.13
4,363 Howmet Aerospace Inc 69 0.02
2,454 L3Harris Technologies Inc 416 0.14
2,806 Lockheed Martin Corp 1,024 0.34
1,762 Northrop Grumman Corp 542 0.18
16,721 Raytheon Technologies Corp 1,030 0.34
417 Teledyne Technologies Inc 130 0.04
572 TransDigm Group Inc 253 0.08
4,976 1.65
0.76% (2019 30 0.84%)
21,127 Altria Group Inc 829 0.27
6,315 Archer-Daniels-Midland Co 252 0.08
17,702 Philip Morris International Inc 1,240 0.41
2,321 0.76
0.20% (2019 30 0.36%)
1,394 Alaska Air Group Inc 51 0.02
5,650 American Airlines Group Inc 74 0.02
6,453 Delta Air Lines Inc 181 0.06
6,097 Southwest Airlines Co 208 0.07
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2,873

3,957
14,097

United Airlines Holdings Inc

0.59% (2019
Hanesbrands Inc

NIKE Inc CI B

30

0.60%)
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99 0.03
613 0.20
45 0.01
1,382 0.46
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
0.59% (2019 30 0.60%) ( )
806 PVH Corp 39 0.01
543 Ralph Lauren Corp 39 0.01

3,139 Tapestry Inc 42 0.01

2,142 Under Armour Inc CI A 21 0.01

2,234 Under Armour Inc CI C 20 0.01

3,625 VF Corp 221 0.07

1,809 0.59
0.41% (2019 30 0.42%)

1,677 Cummins Inc 291 0.10
44,407 Ford Motor Co 270 0.09
14,317 General Motors Co 362 0.12

3,930 PACCAR Inc 294 0.10

1,217 0.41
0.03% (2019 30 0.03%)
2,357 BorgWarner Inc 83 0.03
83 0.03
4.21% (2019 30 5.53%)
88,766 Bank of America Corp 2,108 0.70

9,160 Bank Of New York Mellon Corp 354 0.12
23,667 Citigroup Inc 1,209 0.40

4,850 Citizens Financial Group Inc 122 0.04

1,581 Comerica Inc 60 0.02

8,093 Fifth Third Bancorp 156 0.05

1,949 First Republic Bank 207 0.07

3,519 Goldman Sachs Group Inc 695 0.23
11,530 Huntington Bancshares Inc 104 0.03
34,640 JPMorgan Chase & Co 3,259 1.09
11,089 KeyCorp 135 0.04

1,458 M&T Bank Corp 152 0.05
13,614 Morgan Stanley 658 0.22

2,365 Northern Trust Corp 188 0.06

4,823 PNC Financial Services Group Inc 507 0.17
10,880 Regions Financial Corp 121 0.04

4,001 State Street Corp 254 0.08

586 SVB Financial Group 126 0.04
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15,319
15,583
42,416

1,863

2,073

Truist Financial Corp
US Bancorp
Wells Fargo & Co

Zions Bancorp NA

1.61% (2019 30

Brown-Forman Corp CI B

1.65%)
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575 0.19
574 0.19
1,086 0.36
63 0.02
12,713 4.21
132 0.04
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
1.61% (2019 30 1.65%) ( )

43,944 Coca-Cola Co 1,963 0.65
1,909 Constellation Brands Inc 334 0.11
2,138 Molson Coors Beverage Co 73 0.02
4,250 Monster Beverage Corp 295 0.10

15,774 PepsiCo Inc 2,086 0.69

4,883 1.61

2.04% (2019 30 1.81%)
2,510 Alexion Pharmaceuticals Inc 282 0.09
6,687 Amgen Inc 1,577 0.52
1,855 Biogen Inc 496 0.16
243 Bio-Rad Laboratories Inc 110 0.04
8,508 Corteva Inc 228 0.08

14,256 Gilead Sciences Inc 1,097 0.36
1,671 IHlumina Inc 619 0.20
2,051 Incyte Corp 213 0.07
1,147 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc 715 0.24
2,948 Vertex Pharmaceuticals Inc 856 0.28

6,193 2.04

0.36% (2019 30 0.31%)
9,256 Carrier Global Corp 206 0.07
1,588 Fortune Brands Home & Security Inc 102 0.03
8,457 Johnson Controls International Plc 289 0.10
708 Martin Marietta Materials Inc 146 0.05
2,998 Masco Corp 151 0.05
1,506 Vulcan Materials Co 174 0.06
1,068 0.36
1.22% (2019 30 1.30%)

2,511 Air Products and Chemicals Inc 606 0.20
1,209 Albemarle Corp 93 0.03
1,344 Celanese Corp 116 0.04
2,431 CF Industries Holdings Inc 68 0.02
8,421 Dow Inc 343 0.11
8,342 Dupont De Nemours Inc 443 0.15
1,545 Eastman Chemical Co 108 0.04
2,811 Ecolab Inc 559 0.18
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1,472 FMC Corp 147 0.05
1,215 International Flavors & Fragrances Inc 149 0.05
2,921 LyondellBasell Industries NV 192 0.06
3,964 Mosaic Co 50 0.02
2,682 PPG Industries Inc 284 0.09
919 Sherwin-Williams Co 531 0.18
3,689 1.22
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
2.25% (2019 30 1.74%)
4,886 Automatic Data Processing Inc 727 0.24
958 Cintas Corp 255 0.08
1,380 Equifax Inc 237 0.08
953 FleetCor Technologies Inc 240 0.08
1,014 Gartner Inc 123 0.04
3,400 Global Payments Inc 577 0.19
2,188 H&R Block Inc 31 0.01
431 MarketAxess Holdings Inc 216 0.07
1,833 Moody*"s Corp 504 0.17
4,053 Nielsen Holdings Plc 60 0.02

13,348 Paypal Holdings Inc 2,326 0.77
1,565 Quanta Services Inc 61 0.02
1,303 Robert Half International Inc 69 0.02
1,602 Rollins Inc 68 0.02
2,739 S&P Global Inc 902 0.30

819 United Rentals Inc 122 0.04
1,845 Verisk Analytics Inc 314 0.10
6,832 2.25

6.52% (2019 30 4.12%)

46,318 Apple Inc 16,897 5.59
6,146 Cognizant Technology Solutions Corp 349 0.12
2,885 Dxc Technology Co 48 0.02
1,525 Fortinet Inc 209 0.07

14,606 Hewlett Packard Enterprise 142 0.05

16,256 HP Inc 283 0.09

10,094 International Business Machines Corp 1,219 0.40
1,518 Leidos Holdings Inc 142 0.05
2,514 NetApp Inc 112 0.04
2,567 Seagate Technology Plc 124 0.04
3,407 Western Digital Corp 150 0.05

19,675 6.52

1.51% (2019 30 1.37%)
9,737 Colgate-Palmolive Co 713 0.24
3,383 Coty Inc 15 0.00
2,555 Estee Lauder Cos Inc 482 0.16
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28,144 Procter & Gamble Co 3,365 1.11
4,575 1.51

0.23% (2019 30 0.19%)
2,349 Copart Inc 196 0.06
6,512 Fastenal Co 279 0.09
3,456 LKQ Corp 91 0.03
492 WW Grainger Inc 155 0.05
721 0.23
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
3.89% (2019 30 3.84%)

7,504 American Express Co 714 0.24
1,391 Ameriprise Financial Inc 209 0.07
1,754 BlackRock Inc 954 0.31
5,176 Capital One Financial Corp 324 0.11
1,247 Choe Global Markets Inc 116 0.04
13,026 Charles Schwab Corp 439 0.15
4,077 CME Group Inc 663 0.22
3,482 Discover Financial Services 174 0.06
3,153 Franklin Resources Inc 66 0.02
6,221 Intercontinental Exchange Inc 570 0.19
4,278 Invesco Ltd 46 0.02
10,048 Mastercard Inc 2,971 0.97
1,306 Nasdaq Inc 156 0.05
1,386 Raymond James Financial Inc 95 0.03
6,105 Synchrony Financial 135 0.04
2,587 T Rowe Price Group Inc 319 0.11
19,180 Visa Inc Cl A 3,706 1.23
4,671 Western Union Co 101 0.03

11,758 3.89

2.80% (2019 30 2.78%)

7,559 Aes Corp 110 0.04
2,836 Alliant Energy Corp 136 0.05
2,807 Ameren Corp 198 0.07
5,634 American Electric Power Co Inc 449 0.15
6,192 CenterPoint Energy Inc 116 0.04
3,254 CMS Energy Corp 190 0.06
3,798 Consolidated Edison Inc 273 0.09
9,541 Dominion Energy Inc 775 0.26
2,190 DTE Energy Co 235 0.08
8,354 Duke Energy Corp 667 0.22
4,297 Edison International 233 0.08
2,276 Entergy Corp 214 0.07
2,578 Evergy Inc 153 0.05
3,825 Eversource Energy 319 0.11
11,078 Exelon Corp 402 0.13
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6,159 FirstEnergy Corp 239 0.08
5,564 NextEra Energy Inc 1,336 0.44
2,775 NRG Energy Inc 90 0.03
1,279 Pinnacle West Capital Corp 94 0.03
8,740 PPL Corp 226 0.07
5,748 Public Service Enterprise Group Inc 283 0.09
3,326 Sempra Energy 390 0.13
12,005 Southern Co 622 0.21
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
2.80% (2019 30 2.78%) ( )
3,586 WEC Energy Group Inc 314 0.10
5,969 Xcel Energy Inc 373 0.12
8,437 2.80
0.22% (2019 30 0.22%)
2,608 AMETEK Inc 233 0.08
6,792 Emerson Electric Co 421 0.14
654 0.22
1.06% (2019 30 0.98%)
3,510 Agilent Technologies Inc 310 0.10
3,364 Amphenol Corp 322 0.11
1,487 FLIR Systems Inc 60 0.02
3,370 Fortive Corp 228 0.08
7,979 Honeywell International Inc 1,154 0.38
2,126 Keysight Technologies In 214 0.07
272 Mettler-Toledo International Inc 219 0.07
1,266 PerkinElmer Inc 124 0.04
1,187 Roper Technologies Inc 461 0.15
704 Waters Corp 127 0.04
3,219 1.06
0.04% (2019 30 0.04%)
1,479 Jacobs Engineering Group Inc 125 0.04
125 0.04
0.02% (2019 30 )
1,615 Live Nation Entertainment Inc 72 0.02
72 0.02
0.21% (2019 30 0.23%)
2,388 Republic Services Inc 196 0.06
4,414 Waste Management Inc 467 0.15
663 0.21
ETF 0.70% (2019 30 8.11%)
7,500 Vanguard S&P 500 ETF 2,126 0.70
2,126 0.70
1.19% (2019 30 1.14%)
1,924 Campbell Soup Co 95 0.03
5,537 Conagra Brands Inc 195 0.06
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6,891 General Mills Inc 425 0.14
1,676 Hershey Co 217 0.07
3,186 Hormel Foods Corp 154 0.05
1,296 J M Smucker Co 137 0.05
2,844 Kellogg Co 188 0.06
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
1.19% (2019 30 1.14%) ( )
7,084 Kraft Heinz Co 226 0.07
8,938 Kroger Co 303 0.10
1,660 Lamb Weston Holdings Inc 106 0.04
1,406 McCormick & Co Inc 252 0.08
16,228 Mondelez International Inc 830 0.27
5,771 Sysco Corp 315 0.10
3,346 Tyson Foods Inc CI A 200 0.07
3,643 1.19
0.05% (2019 30 0.07%)
4,468 International Paper Co 157 0.05
157 0.05
0.08% (2019 30 0.09%)
1,391 Atmos Energy Corp 139 0.05
4,352 NiSource Inc 99 0.03
238 0.08
0.11% (2019 30 0.11%)
618 Snap-on Inc 86 0.03
1,752 Stanley Black & Decker Inc 244 0.08
330 0.11
3.35% (2019 30 3.16%)

20,109 Abbott Laboratories 1,839 0.61
511 ABIOMED Inc 123 0.04
815 Align Technology Inc 224 0.07

5,785 Baxter International Inc 498 0.16

16,242 Boston Scientific Corp 570 0.19

559 Cooper Cos Inc 159 0.05
7,154 Danaher Corp 1,265 0.42
2,491 DENTSPLY SIRONA Inc 110 0.04
7,045 Edwards Lifesciences Corp 487 0.16
1,623 Henry Schein Inc 95 0.03
2,935 Hologic Inc 167 0.06

966 IDEXX Laboratories Inc 319 0.11
1,326 Intuitive Surgical Inc 756 0.25
1,645 ResMed Inc 316 0.10

966 STERIS Plc 148 0.05
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3,665 Stryker Corp 660 0.22
528 Teleflex Inc 192 0.06
4,490 Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc 1,627 0.54
1,032 Varian Medical Systems Inc 126 0.04
837 West Pharmaceutical Services Inc 190 0.06
2,351 Zimmer Biomet Holdings Inc 281 0.09
10,152 3.35
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
2.01% (2019 30 1.75%)
2,866 Anthem Inc 754 0.25
6,584 Centene Corp 418 0.14

969 Davita Inc 77 0.03
2,994 HCA Healthcare Inc 291 0.10
1,503 Humana Inc 583 0.19
2,019 Igvia Holdings Inc 286 0.09
1,105 Laboratory Corp of America Holdings 184 0.06
1,520 Quest Diagnostics Inc 173 0.06

10,782 UnitedHealth Group Inc 3,181 1.06
883 Universal Health Services Inc 82 0.03
6,029 2.01
0.20% (2019 30 0.13%)

3,761 DR Horton Inc 209 0.07
3,122 Lennar Corp 192 0.06
39 NVR Inc 127 0.04
2,866 PulteGroup Inc 98 0.03
626 0.20

0.05% (2019 30 0.05%)
1,504 Leggett & Platt Inc 53 0.02

707 Whirlpool Corp 92 0.03

145 0.05
0.39% (2019 30 0.35%)

947 Avery Dennison Corp 108 0.04
2,795 Church & Dwight Co Inc 216 0.07
1,422 Clorox Co 312 0.10
3,872 Kimberly-Clark Corp 547 0.18

1,183 0.39

0.02% (2019 30 0.02%)
4,339 Newell Brands Inc 69 0.02
69 0.02
2.82% (2019 30 3.15%)

8,157 Aflac Inc 294 0.10
3,571 Allstate Corp 346 0.11
9,792 American International Group Inc 305 0.10
2,627 Aon Plc 506 0.17
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2,156 Arthur J Gallagher & Co 210 0.07

678 Assurant Inc 70 0.02
22,101 Berkshire Hathaway Inc Cl B 3,945 1.30
1,715 Cincinnati Financial Corp 110 0.04
1,113 Globe Life Inc 83 0.03
4,071 Hartford Financial Services Group Inc 157 0.05
2,197 Lincoln National Corp 81 0.03
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
2.82% (2019 30 3.15%) ( )
2,752 Loews Corp 94 0.03
5,800 Marsh & McLennan Cos Inc 623 0.20
8,770 MetLife Inc 320 0.11
2,896 Principal Financial Group Inc 120 0.04
6,654 Progressive Corp 533 0.18
4,491 Prudential Financial Inc 274 0.09
2,874 Travelers Cos Inc 328 0.11
2,313 Unum Group 38 0.01
1,605 W R Berkley Corp 92 0.03
8,529 2.82
11.07% (2019 30 8.18%)
3,411 Alphabet Inc CI A 4,837 1.60
3,325 Alphabet Inc CI C 4,700 1.56
4,763 Amazon.com Inc 13,140 4.36
465 Booking Holdings Inc 740 0.24
1,618 CDW Corp 188 0.06
2,513 E*TRADE Financial Corp 125 0.04
7,509 eBay Inc 394 0.13
1,540 Expedia Group Inc 127 0.04
692 F5 Networks Inc 97 0.03
27,336 Facebook Inc 6,208 2.05
5,000 Netflix Inc 2,275 0.75
6,161 NortonLifelLock Inc 122 0.04
8,920 Twitter Inc 266 0.09
1,156 VeriSign Inc 239 0.08
33,458 11.07
0.05% (2019 30 0.06%)
3,423 Nucor Corp 142 0.05
142 0.05
0.08% (2019 30 0-20%)
5,386 Carnival Corp 88 0.03
2,914 Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd 48 0.02
1,952 Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd 98 0.03
234 0.08
0.29% (2019 30 0.33%)
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Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc
Las Vegas Sands Corp
Marriott International Inc
MGM Resorts International

Wynn Resorts Ltd
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232 0.08
174 0.06
262 0.09
94 0.03
82 0.03
844 0.29
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
0.60% (2019 30 0.65%)
3,557 Deere & Co 559 0.19
1,636 Dover Corp 158 0.05
1,479 Flowserve Corp 42 0.01
857 IDEX Corp 135 0.04
3,931 Ingersoll Rand Inc 111 0.04
4,628 Otis Worldwide Corp 263 0.09
1,317 Rockwell Automation Inc 281 0.10
2,055 Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp 118 0.04
2,045 Xylem Inc 133 0.04
1,800 0.60
0.26% (2019 30 0.28%)
6,153 Caterpillar Inc 778 0.26
778 0.26
1.91% (2019 30 2.11%)
1,713 Charter Communications Inc CI A 874 0.29
51,780 Comcast Corp CI A 2,018 0.67
1,819 Discovery Inc CI A 38 0.01
3,596 Discovery Inc CI C 69 0.02
2,923 DISH Network Corp 101 0.03
3,895 Fox Corp ClI A 104 0.03
1,811 Fox Corp CI B 49 0.02
4,421 News Corp CI A 52 0.02
1,384 News Corp CI B 17 0.01
6,146 ViacomCBS Inc ClI B 143 0.05
20,535 Walt Disney Co 2,290 0.76
5,755 1.91
0.25% (2019 30 0.18%)
16,507 Freeport-McMoRan Inc 191 0.06
9,124 Newmont Corp 563 0.19
754 0.25
1.02% (2019 30 1.24%)
6,539 3M Co 1,020 0.34
1,536 A O Smith Corp 72 0.02
4,547 Eaton Corp Plc 398 0.13
99,441 General Electric Co 679 0.22
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3,268
1,459
2,588

2,082

Illinois Tool Works Inc
Parker-Hannifin Corp

Textron Inc

0.06% (2019 30

Xerox Holdings Corp

0.02%)
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571 0.19
267 0.09
85 0.03
3,092 1.02
32 0.01
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
0.06% (2019 30 0.02%) ( )
604 Zebra Technologies Corp 155 0.05
187 0.06
2.28% (2019 30 3.66%)
4,291 Apache Corp 58 0.02
4,531 Cabot Oil & Gas Corp 78 0.03
21,225 Chevron Corp 1,894 0.63
2,236 Concho Resources Inc 115 0.04
12,192 ConocoPhillips 512 0.17
4,351 Devon Energy Corp 49 0.02
1,794 Diamondback Energy Inc 75 0.02
6,617 EOG Resources Inc 335 0.11
48,068 Exxon Mobil Corp 2,150 0.71
2,968 Hess Corp 154 0.05
1,693 HollyFrontier Corp 49 0.02
8,985 Marathon Oil Corp 55 0.02
7,392 Marathon Petroleum Corp 276 0.09
5,453 Noble Energy Inc 49 0.02
10,232 Occidental Petroleum Corp 187 0.06
4,964 Phillips 66 357 0.12
1,874 Pioneer Natural Resources Co 183 0.06
4,635 Valero Energy Corp 273 0.09
6,849 2.28
0.20% (2019 30 0.35%)
7,447 Baker Hughes Co 115 0.04
9,973 Halliburton Co 129 0.04
4,414 National Oilwell Varco Inc 54 0.02
15,777 Schlumberger NV 290 0.10
588 0.20
0.18% (2019 30 0.18%)
3,706 Ball Corp 258 0.09
1,078 Packaging Corp of America 108 0.04
1,770 Sealed Air Corp 58 0.02
2,947 Westrock Co 83 0.03
507 0.18
5.95% (2019 30 5.06%)
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20,035 AbbVie Inc 1,967 0.65
1,688 AmerisourceBergen Corp 170 0.06
3,352 Becton Dickinson and Co 802 0.27

25,723 Bristol-Myers Squibb Co 1,513 0.50
3,319 Cardinal Health Inc 173 0.06
4,195 Cigna Corp 787 0.26

14,860 CVS Health Corp 965 0.32
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
5.95% (2019 30 5.06%) ( )
1,049 DexCom Inc 425 0.14
9,574 Eli Lilly and Co 1,572 0.52
29,951 Johnson & Johnson 4,213 1.40
1,840 McKesson Corp 282 0.09
28,695 Merck & Co Inc 2,219 0.73
5,877 Mylan NV 95 0.03
63,150 Pfizer Inc 2,065 0.68
5,399 Zoetis Inc 740 0.24
17,988 5.95
0.25% (2019 30 0.37%)
22,110 Kinder Morgan Inc 335 0.11
5,001 ONEOK Inc 166 0.05
13,792 Williams Cos Inc 262 0.09
763 0.25
0.06% (2019 30 0.06%)
3,810 CBRE Group Inc 172 0.06
172 0.06
2.69% (2019 30 2.63%)
1,435 Alexandria Real Estate Equities Inc 233 0.08
5,040 American Tower Corp 1,303 0.43
1,692 Apartment Investment and Management Co 64 0.02
1,600 AvalonBay Communities Inc 247 0.08
1,643 Boston Properties Inc 148 0.05
4,738 Crown Castle International Corp 793 0.26
3,050 Digital Realty Trust Inc 433 0.14
4,188 Duke Realty Corp 148 0.05
1,006 Equinix Inc 707 0.23
3,977 Equity Residential 234 0.08
744 Essex Property Trust Inc 171 0.06
1,468 Extra Space Storage Inc 136 0.05
800 Federal Realty Investment Trust 68 0.02
6,119 Healthpeak Properties Inc 169 0.06
8,014 Host Hotels & Resorts Inc 86 0.03
3,273 Iron Mountain Inc 85 0.03
4,917 Kimco Realty Corp 63 0.02
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1,300 Mid-America Apartment Communities Inc 149 0.05
8,397 Prologis Inc 784 0.26
1,709 Public Storage 328 0.11
3,904 Realty Income Corp 232 0.08
1,928 Regency Centers Corp 88 0.03
1,269 SBA Communications Corp 378 0.13
3,476 Simon Property Group Inc 238 0.08

870 SL Green Realty Corp 43 0.01
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
2.69% (2019 30 2.63%) ( )
3,352 UDR Inc 125 0.04
4,241 Ventas Inc 155 0.05
1,803 Vornado Realty Trust 69 0.02
4,746 Welltower Inc 246 0.08
8,483 Weyerhaeuser Co 191 0.06
8,114 2.69
5.22% (2019 30 4._84%)

786 Advance Auto Parts Inc 112 0.04
265 AutoZone Inc 299 0.10
2,584 Best Buy Co Inc 226 0.07
1,850 CarMax Inc 166 0.05
292 Chipotle Mexican Grill Inc 307 0.10
5,019 Costco Wholesale Corp 1,522 0.50
1,477 Darden Restaurants Inc 112 0.04
2,862 Dollar General Corp 545 0.18
2,697 Dollar Tree Inc 250 0.08
445 Domino®s Pizza Inc 164 0.05
2,420 Gap Inc 31 0.01
1,640 Genuine Parts Co 143 0.05
12,227 Home Depot Inc 3,063 1.01
1,793 Kohl*®s Corp 37 0.01
2,653 L Brands Inc 40 0.01
8,583 Lowe"s Cos Inc 1,160 0.38
8,453 McDonald*s Corp 1,559 0.52
844 0"Reilly Automotive Inc 356 0.12
4,040 Ross Stores Inc 344 0.11
13,280 Starbucks Corp 977 0.32
5,684 Target Corp 682 0.23
1,242 Tiffany & Co 151 0.05
13,618 TJX Cos Inc 689 0.23
1,315 Tractor Supply Co 173 0.06
640 Ulta Salon Cosmetics & Fragrance Inc 130 0.04
8,377 Walgreens Boots Alliance Inc 355 0.12
16,098 Walmart Inc 1,928 0.64
3,422 Yum! Brands Inc 297 0.10
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15,818 5.22
0.02% (2019 30 0.02%)
4,828 People®s United Financial Inc 56 0.02
56 0.02
4._65% (2019 30 3.32%)

13,315 Advanced Micro Devices Inc 701 0.23
4,188 Analog Devices Inc 514 0.17
10,419 Applied Materials Inc 630 0.21
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
4.65% (2019 30 3.32%) ( )
4,545 Broadcom Inc 1,434 0.47
48,134 Intel Corp 2,880 0.95
404 IPG Photonics Corp 65 0.02
1,763 KLA Corp 343 0.11
1,650 Lam Research Corp 534 0.18
3,031 Maxim Integrated Products Inc 184 0.06
2,789 Microchip Technology Inc 294 0.10
12,644 Micron Technology Inc 651 0.22
6,993 NVIDIA Corp 2,657 0.88
1,304 Qorvo Inc 144 0.05
12,789 QUALCOMM Inc 1,166 0.39
1,897 Skyworks Solutions Inc 243 0.08
10,434 Texas Instruments Inc 1,325 0.44
2,764 Xilinx Inc 272 0.09
14,037 4.65
0.03% (2019 30 0.03%)
460 Huntington Ingalls Industries Inc 80 0.03
80 0.03
10.32% (2019 30 6.84%)
8,759 Activision Blizzard Inc 665 0.22
5,477 Adobe Inc 2,384 0.79
1,845 Akamai Technologies Inc 198 0.07
977 ANSYS Inc 285 0.09
2,492 Autodesk Inc 596 0.20
1,305 Broadridge Financial Solutions Inc 165 0.05
3,174 Cadence Design Systems Inc 305 0.10
3,460 Cerner Corp 237 0.08
1,319 Citrix Systems Inc 195 0.06
3,282 Electronic Arts Inc 433 0.14
7,024 Fidelity National Information Services Inc 942 0.31
6,393 Fiserv Inc 624 0.21
2,965 Intuit Inc 878 0.29
871 Jack Henry & Associates Inc 160 0.05
86,212 Microsoft Corp 17,546 5.82
966 MSCI Inc 322 0.11
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23,662 Oracle Corp 1,308 0.43
3,629 Paychex Inc 275 0.09

548 Paycom Software Inc 170 0.06
10,243 salesforce.com Inc 1,919 0.64
2,168 ServiceNow Inc 878 0.29
1,714 Synopsys Inc 334 0.11
1,295 Take-Two Interactive Software Inc 181 0.06
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97.15% (2019 30 96.20%) ( )
94.82% (2019 30 93.84%) ( )
10.32% (2019 30 6.84%) ( )
452 Tyler Technologies Inc 157 0.05
31,157 10.32
2.90% (2019 30 2.89%)

611 Arista Networks Inc 128 0.04
81,000 AT&T Inc 2,449 0.81
11,229 CenturyLink Inc 113 0.04
48,212 Cisco Systems Inc 2,249 0.74

8,629 Corning Inc 223 0.07
3,767 Juniper Networks Inc 86 0.03
1,933 Motorola Solutions Inc 271 0.09
4,355 T Mobile Us Inc 1 0.00

6,261 T Mobile Us Inc (voting rights) 652 0.22
47,043 Verizon Communications Inc 2,593 0.86
8,765 2.90

0.02% (2019 30 0.03%)
676 Mohawk Industries Inc 69 0.02
69 0.02

0.04% (2019 30 0.04%)

1,449 Hasbro Inc 109 0.04
109 0.04

1.46% (2019 30 1.39%)
1,530 CH Robinson Worldwide Inc 121 0.04
8,702 CSX Corp 607 0.20
1,892 Expeditors International of Washington Inc 144 0.05
2,732 FedEx Corp 383 0.13
959 JB Hunt Transport Services Inc 115 0.04
1,080 Kansas City Southern 161 0.05
2,912 Norfolk Southern Corp 511 0.17
1,073 Old Dominion Freight Line Inc 182 0.06
7,714 Union Pacific Corp 1,304 0.43
8,005 United Parcel Service Inc CI B 890 0.29
4,418 1.46

0.09% (2019 30 0.07%)
2,058 American Water Works Co Inc 265 0.09
265 0.09
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286,531 94.82
293,552 97.15
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58 123,250 S&P 500 E-Mini September 2020 251 0.08
251 0.08
0.21 % 2019 30  0.00%
/
15/7/2020 258,168,807 2,407,016 13) 0.00
15/7/2020 12,931,219,095 120,524,081 (645) (0.22)
15/7/2020 255,773,205 2,393,928 (23) (0.01)
15/7/2020 7,206,320 773,270,682 37 0.01
15/7/2020 3,038,862 325,670,226 20 0.01
57 0.02
(681) (0.23)
(624) (0.21)
@373) (0.13)
293,179 97.02
7,069 2.34
2,421 0.80
(491) (0.16)
302,178 100.00
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ag at 30 line 2020
Series 2008 TOPDL Series 2018 Nildoed 225 Fund Serles 2018 SEP 500
Fumd Fund
30 June 2020 230 June 2020 30 June 2020
Astots Nates PYFOD0 P00 USD'00a
Fimandal assets at fair valee through
profit or loss 4 6,197,618 18,561,403 253,560
Iinterest receivable . . 1
[Dividiends receivable L] 28,540 54
drnourts due from brokers &GS - N
Cash and cash equivalents 145,530 205550 T.0Ea
Cash at brokers 124,472 1B5.000 241
Other receivables 7068 3,610 18
Total assets 6,494,271 18,962 812 303,754
Liabiities
[Finandal liabilties at fair valse through
prafit or loas 4 8,718) {8.480) fea1)
Management fees payable £l (11,8200 [17,968) (330)
‘Withholding tax payable i1,520) (4,127) {111)
Custodian fees payable 1 [30,E20) (3,067) (11E)
Administration fees payable 1 [10,589) [16,41%) (141)
Legal and professional fees payable 1,271 {1,852] {300
Ausdit foes payable {12 {8ag) .
Amauts due to brokers . [26.514) -
Other payables 862) i1,238) {167)
Tatal liabilitie 185,300) (77,658 1,578}
Net assets attributable to holders of redezmable units 6,428,371 18,805,154 302,178

T arcompanying rates sre an intagral part of theo feancial salemant.
11
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Ag at 20 June 2020
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Sories H016 IPX -
Miltked 400 Fund
30 June 2020
Azspis Motes Loyl
Fimandal assets at fair valee through profit or loss 4 10,753 068
\Diwidiends recevvable 19,154
Apnounts duse from brokers 8BTS
Cash and cash equivalents 156,485
Cash at brokers 97,318
Other receivables 1,865
Total assets 11,006,647
Liabilitles
[Finandial liabilties at fair vahse through profit or loss 4 [7o61)
Management fees payable ] {15,315}
‘Withholding tax payakbile [2933)
Custodian fees payable 1z [4.044)
Administration fees payable 11 {1448}
LLegal and professional fees payabde [2037)
Ausdit fees payable 31}
Other payables [za79)
Total liabilities {47,548)
Total Equity 10,968,999

Thie financial statements were approved and authonsed for issue by the Trustes and the Directors of the Manager on 12 December 2020,

fo e
"5:"»’7‘%._. i%fﬁlw}

mmﬁ\bﬁ [Cayman)) Limited as Trusbes

JP. Bdongan Mansart & Limited as g
Tem A W raries Irgagral part of thaw fizancial statements.
12

PassibA Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION [sontinused)
AR e 30 fome 2020

Sewies BOLE X -

kel 600 Fund

¥ June 2020

Aoty Notes 000
Fingncial arset o8 Falr vl tRrough pradit of kds L] 10,733,056
Tividenads recetvabie 19,154
Aevourns due from beoiers REH
Caih ind cash poisvalews i v
Carh o Ergleri 57,318
Caher necebvabibes . - 1%
Tornl assars o Mmem
Liabadities
Finansl Babdases ot fer valoe §hrgugh proftt o loss 4 {T.9EL)
Menagemery heet pryable 5 {15335}
Weithhoiding tex pyabie {za3)
Cuntodlan e payilile 12 (404}
Admenibration fees payele EH 1448,
Lisgad and professional fees pavable [roam)
At feei payabie [=1)
G gyl — (AT
Toad liabidities — A
Tatad Equity 10,558,559
The financial wahe ap o wet guth d T Haue by the Trustee and tha of tha i on 18 b B OO
lteruust Dorpovate Senvioes [Cayman] limfied @ Trintes 1P, Mdorgan iMaan as

12
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PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Ag at 20 June 2015
Series 2006 TOP Fund Series 2008 Mikiosl ZXS Fund Series 2008 SLP 500
Fund
30 bune 2019 30 bune 2013 30 June 2009
Azspts Kaotes APD0D IPYO00 USD' 000
Fimandal assets at fair valee through
profitor loss 4 10,586,401 24,341 537 2749
Iinterest receivable . . i |
Disidends: receivable 18371 35,537 E]
drnourts due from brokers 1L 954 - N
Cash and cash equivalents 255,019 280,558 973
Cash at brokers 50,540 1BE 535 155
idOther receivables 1535 1,418
Total assets 10,948,730 24,826,492 28,408
Liabilities
[Finandal liabilties at fair valse through
profit or loss 4 i1,231) - .
Management foes payable 8 8, 264] {18,087) {B4)
‘Withholding tax payable [2,487) {5,611) 123
Custodian fees payable 1 [20,B48) [ ] (b i)
Administration fees payable 11 9, 264) (15,004) 143)
Legal and professional fees payable i2,381) {3,190] 11%)
Husdit fees payable |7eE) {EE3) 1=
Arnouts due to brokers i3,148) "
Zot up fees payable i1,174) {1,2800
Other payables |2, B0%) {3,200) {33
Total liabilities [51,990) [47,730) {202)
Met aszets attributable to holders of redeemable units 10,808,740 24,778,762
*This Sub-Fund liurched on 17 Mesember 2018
Tew accampanying rates are an intagral part of thew Rsanclal stalemants.
13
PassiM Trust
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION [continued)
Ag at 20 June 2015
Series 2016 IPX -
Mikkei 400 Fund
30 June 2019
Azsets Hotes Y000
[Fimandal assets at fair valee through profit or loss 4 15,051,284
|Diwidhenids receivable 25,400
Apnounts due from brokers 25,838
Cash and cash equivalents 286,138
Cash at brokers 62,300
ither receivables 1,571
Total assets 15,452,331
Liabilitles
Management fees payable a9 {10,6E3)
‘Withholding tax payakbile (32900
Custodian fees payable 1z (218}
Administration fees payable 11 [9.807)
LLegal and professional fees payabde [3.226)
Musdit fees payable [F18)
Arnouts due o brokers (6, 309)
et up fees payable [L612)
Other payables [7.257)
Total liabilities |45,355)
Total Equity 15,406,978

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
14
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial pear from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020
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Series 2016 TOPIX Series 2006 Mikkel Series 2018 S&P 500
Funid 225 Fund Fund
300 June 2000 30 June 2030 30 June 2020
lIncome Notes gl IPY000 L1 g ]
Met gain/{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through prafit or loss 7 424,388 1,453 473 {13,5FE)
Desidend income 188,111 3BEE97 5002
lnterest {loss) . . ]
Total net Income/[loss) 612,466 2,362,170 [6,874)
Expenses
Management foes s {16,541 [26,808) [365)
Custodian fees 12 (10,587 (3,065) (268}
Administration fees 11 R [12858) [168)
Legal ardl professional fees [2.533) {2,533) {19}
Set up foes (24) . i)
Ausdlit foes (683 {ea) [
Ucense fees 13 sy 3.662) i20)
Trustes faes 19 380 {380 i
Other expenses [1,082) (3.113) (143}
Tatal aperating experses 1a1,426) (52,235) (L1}
Fimance cost:
Distritartion to: Unithalders 14 (163, 104) [65,352) [E26)
Proftt/fjLoss) before tak 807,008 2243,843 8,516
Withhciding tax 128,804) 186, 468) {1.67)
Met gaing{loss) attributable to holders of redesmabile
participating units ETERES: 187,377 {10,152

T accsmparying nates ane an Inbagral part of e feancl dalemants.
15
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)
For the finaneial jear from 1 Tuly 2019 ta 30 june 3020
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Thira are na gains of losses im tha Sinancial year othar than thesa deal with in the Statemsnt of Comgrabansive Incoms asd sccondingly no statement of total recognised

@ains and losses hs Been prasented

A rasults ane from conbisiing operations.

Thw accomparying rotes sne an insagral part of tha fzandsl salemanti.

PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME jcontinued)
For the finaneial year from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020

Incorme Notes

et gain on finandal assets and labilities at fair walue through
profit or loss 7
|Dewidend income

Total net gain
Expenses

Management foes
Custodian fees

Administration fees

LLegal and professional fees
Husdit fees

License fees 13
Trustes fees 10

Other expenses

& He

Total operating cxperses

Profit before tax
‘Withholding tax
et gain attributable to holders of equity units

Serles 2016 WK -
Mikkel 200 Fund
a0 June 2020
APYF00D

£31,138

{20,70)
13,162}
(10,027}
(2,541
JEas)
{2,233)
{320}
{1,247

f41,853)

(49,8361}
83,158

Thisra are n0 galns of kssas in thi financial year othar than those dealt with in the Stabemsnt of Comprebansive Inoomae and sccondingly s statament of total recognised

gaing and losses has Been prasanied.

Al rasults are from continuing aperations.

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial pear/period from 1 july 2018 to 30 June 2019

OOoooooooooooooooooood

Series 2016 TOPIX Series 2006 Mikkel Serbes 2018 5&P 500
Fund 25 Fund Fund®
30 June 2009 30 bunee 2019 30 June 2009
lIncome Notes gl IPY000 L1 g ]
Met {loss)/gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss 7 11,450,387) 2,437 806) 3468
[Dividiend income 325,250 387,810 517
Tatal net fioss]fincame i1,188,137) {2:050,196) 3,985
Expenses
Management fees a {20,362) (20,806 (B4}
Custodian fees 12 {17,675) {3,645 {12y
Administration fees 11 [9,747) [14,661) (43}
Legal and professional fees [2.528) {2,528) {18}
Set up fees i274) f402) i
Ausdit fees (721) 1721 (1]
License fees 13 [1,180) 4,158) =)
Trustes fees 16 {17 {317 i
Other sxpenses [L.787) {2715) i14)
Total aperating experses [54591) [69,005) f186)
Fimance cost:
Ibéstribution to Unithalders 14 [239,511) [18,754) {8}
{Lass)/Profit before tax {1,488 33) i2.128,995) 3
Withhoiding tax {44,804) (59,362 (151}
Wet [lass). ibutable 1o holders of rede
participating units {1.508,143) 2,168,357 3,560

*This Sub-F und lsurched on 17 Mossmber 1018

T accsmparying nates ane an Inbagral part of e feancl dalemants.
18
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {continued)
For the finaneial jear/period from 1 fuly 2018 ta 30 June 2019
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Thira are ma gains or losses in the financial year/pariod othar than those dealt with in the Statesant of Comprebansie Inoome and sccordingly no statament of botal

recognisd gains and loses has baan presantad.

A rasubs are o coatiniing aperetioes.

Thw accomparying rotes sne an insagral part of tha fzandsl salemanti.

PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME jcontinued)
For the finaneial year from 1 July 2018 ta 30 June 2019

Incame Motz

Met {loss) on financial assets and liabilites at fair value through
profit or loss T
[Dividiend income

Total net [ioss]

[Expenses
Management fees
Custodian fees
Administration fees

Legal and professional fees
%ot up foes

Husdit fees

License fees 13
Trustes fees 0
Other expenses

= =R

Total operating cxperses

(Loss] before tax
Withhpdding ta
Mt [kss) attributable to holders of equity units

Series 2016 1P -
Mkl 400 Fund
30 June 2019

(1,857 450§
288,524

(22,3504
(2472)
{10577}
i14)
721)

(217}
(1407}

{84,654)

1,313,520}
{s9.535)

— AT

Thira are na gains of kosses i tha financial year othar than thesa deal with in the Statemsnt of Comgrabansive Incoma asd sccondingly mo statamant of total recogeised

Rains and losses has Been prasantad.
A rasults are from conbisuing operations.

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UINITHOLDERS
For the financial pear from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020

Series 2016 TOPX Series 2006 Mikkel 225 Series 2018 SEP 500
Fund Fund Fund
30 June 2020 30 Jure 2020 30 Jure 2020
Motes P00 AP 00D s o0n
Total assets attributable to redeeming partidipating
undtholders at beginming of the financial year 10,896,740 24,778,762 28 206
[Procesds from the issue of redesmable partidpating
units . 25473054 224 164
[Payment on the redemption of redeemable
participabing units {4,247,451) 33,554,039) =
Met |decreasepfinoease resulting from unit
transactians {4,247 451) [8.080,925) 224 164
Met increassyf{decrease) for the finandal year in net
assets attributable to unitholders from operations
379,132 2,187,377 [10,152)
Total assets attributable to redeeming participating
wndtholders at end of the financal year 6428371 18,885,154 302,178

Thw aczarparying rotes sre an nbagral part of the fzancal dalemant.
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the finaneial jear from 1 Tuly 2019 ta 30 june 3020

Series 2016 IPX -
Mk 400 Fund
30 June 2020
Motes 000
Total equity at beginning of the financial year 15,406,976
[Procesds from the issue of redesmable partidpating
units .
[Payment on the redemption of redeemable
participabing units 5,003,063
et |decrese]) resulting from unit transactions (5,003 063)
[Distribastion to Unithalders 4 |28 07 3)
Met increase for the finandal year in net assets
attributable to unitholders from operations B63,158
Total equity at erd of the financlal year 10,558,855
Thw sccorpanying notes ane an Inbagral part of thas flzanchsl statemants.
22
PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO REDEEMING PARTICIPATING UNITHOLDERS {continued)
For the financial pear/period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2009
Series 2016 TOPX Series 2006 Mikkel 225 Series 2018 SEP 500
Fund Fund Fund*
30 bune 2019 30 Jure 2019 30 Jure 2019
Motes P00 AP 00D s o0n
Total assets attributable to redeeming partidipating
undttolders at beginning of the financial year 18,487 715 3,229 927
[Proceeds from the issse of redesmable particdpating
units 5013807 3B, B34 162 24 848
[Payment on the: redemption of redeemable
participabing units 11,0605 4350 (13,088,570 .
et {decreasefincrease resultng from unit
transactians B, 081,83 23,7371 24 B4
Met {decreasepfinorease for the finandal year in net
assets attributable to unitholders from operations {1,500,143) [2.188,357) 3, 580
Total assets attributable to redeeming participating
undtholders at end of the finandal year/jperiod 10,896,740 24,778,762 28 206

#This Sub-f und lsurched on I7 Mossmber I8

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thens fizsncal salemants.
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PassIM Trust

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY {continued)
For the financial pear from 1 July 2018 ta 30 June 2019

Motes
Total equity at beginning of the financial year

[Proceeds from the issse of redesmable particdpating
units

Payment on the redemption of redesmable

participabing units
Met increase resulting from wnit transactions

IDéstribation to Unithalders 4

et {decrease) for the finandal year in net assets
attributable to unitholders fnom operations

Total equity at end of the financlal year

EDINETOOOO
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Series 2016 0PX -
Mkl 400 Fund
30 June 2009

17,051,803

{271,772)

{1,373 085

1 ﬁﬂl

Thw aczarparying rotes sre an nbagral part of the fzancal dalemant.
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial pear from 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020

Serles 2016 TOPDR Series 2018 Mikkel X25 Series H018 SEP 500
Fund Fund Fund
30 June 2020 30 Jume 2020 30 hune 2020
JFY 000 AP 00D LISEr OO0
Cash flows from operating sothities
Oparating gainkoss) for th finascal war 379,173 157,377 [FTeRE- 5]
Bddjustmnis Tor:
Dbaribution pald to Unithobders 153, 04 65,392 B2
Dividend incoma |1E=110) {268,697) =, 703
Intarest floas) . . 7
Withhakfing tax on dividessd nceea 25,804 56855 LE75
Ogarating gaing[loss| before working capital chasges BED, 919 1,840,538 (13,585}
Dcraaca | incraaca) in Snarcial axsets ot Talr valus through profit or las 4,365,783 5,780,134 |z85,711)
Increass in feancial Nabiliies at fair valus theough profitor loss 7484 5,490 EB1
in v bk T.I67 2,153} 3
Incraa s in paryables E426 438 Baz
{Incruasa)fdecraasa in ik at Erokar {33,933) 1,336 (2,237}
Mat cash provided by/(used s oparation 4,739,447 7,749,744 {281,158)
INCoE Ta pakd (56 456) [L,67E)
Dividends receivad 134,453 378,388 5,389
Inbarest (las) - - (]
Mat cash providod by (wsed in| oparating st 4,905,096 BT 653 (277.442)
mhmimhmhﬂnuﬂqﬂhﬂm
Froceads from Biua of red El units - 75,473,054 B4, 164
[Faymiants from redesgtion of redesmable participating units (4,547 &31) 33,554,009 -
Distribution paid to Unithokdars | 153, 104) 155,352 638}
mnmm'm-—mm | 5000, 595 ) GEA8E3TT) 2E3,538
et change in carsh and cash equiaknts {105,299} e, 718} 5,005
Cagh and cash agquivalants at the beginsing of financial vaar 55,029 0,584 973
Cash and cash oqubmalents ot the and of the feancal year 143,530 05,850 7,063
Thw sccompanying notes sre an ingagral part of thew fissncil satements,
25
PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [continued)
For the financial pear from 1 fuly 2019 to 30 June 2020
Serbes 2016 IPX —
Miliciozd 400 Fund
30 June 2030
i
Cacsh Mawes From opesating acthitics
Diperating gaiim for the Nnascial yaar 853,159
Aafustmesas o
Dividand income [323,408)
Withiclding tax oo dividand incomi 45,530
Opiziating gain bilore workieg cagital thasge 589,783
Dacraasa In fanclal assets at falr vales through peolit or los 4 318,18
Ircraaca i financial labiitias ot fair vale throagh prolit or leas 7961
Dacraas in recavabls 16563
[Divmasa) s payables {5,56E)
[Incraass] in cash ab ok |35017)
Mt cash providid by opatalion 4,891,330
Income tax paid |&8.530)
Dividends recabead 329,652
Mt cach provided by oparating sctivitikes BT 483
Cocslhy Mioaes fusard in) by Tinamzing sctivities
Procaads from issue of unis o aguity hobdars =
Payprnents from redampticn of units rom aquity halder {5.03,063)
Distribtvation paid 1o Usitholders 2BE 073
Het cach outflow from linandng aciidties [5,30d,135)
Mt chasge in cash and msh auivalents {129,578}
Caah aind caah ayaivalants at tha baginning of fisancial year 156,139
Canlh and cash eguivalons ot the eed of the Tinascial year 156 455

Thm scoorpanying notes sre an ingagral part of thns fizsncal salemants.
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS [continued)

For the financial pear/period from 1 fuly 2018 to 30 June 2009

Fund Fand Fund™®
30 Juwex 2019 30 Juna 20159 30 Jumi: 2009
flg gl IFFooD LIy e ]
Cash Tinas Trom opetating ativithes
Oparating Moss] gl for the fnasdal pear | 1,508,143} |2.188,357) 3,580
Bljustmpints Tor:
Dibaribution pald to Unithokders 35,611 18,754 B
Dividand incoma {325.2500 (387,510 (]
Withhalding tax on dividesd s 45,804 59,3252 =1
Diprating hois,fgain balore working capital changes (L544,578) (2,497,811} 3,262
Dcraaca | incraaca) in Snarcial axsats ot Talr velus through profit or e 7,885,317 121,335, 781] 27,149
| Decraass) in fieancial liabilas at tair valua through peofit of ks [8.332) (1.229) .
[Decrasefincrease) in recakabls 4,648 3,159 560 [ral}
| Decraase}/incraass in payablas [35,653) |3,260,081) P03
Doraaca| incraaca) in cash at broker 35408 [49,248) {185}
Hat cash Ry i} 5,951, 4T 123,944,770} (23,871}
mEome Tar paid (49,804} [59.362) {151}
Dividands retaivad 332,640 358,379 437
Mot cash providad byl sed in) apeiating sotivitie 6,134,308 |23, 545, 753} [23,535)
Cash Tlows [used in|evovided by Tinastng activities
Froceads from beua of I pating usits 5,013,607 36,836,152 4,645
Faymiants from redesgtion of redesmable participating units (11,0085 439 [13,098.570] -
Obtribution gaid ko Unithakdars {139,501 [18,794] [
St cash (outfiew] finfow from Tinantieg ativitks. 6,321,443} 23,718,338 24,558
Mat change in cash and cash equivakiats [B7.137) 72845 T3
Cagh and cash squivalants at the beginming of financlal vasr 347 185 proer ol L -
Cash and cash equivabints at the end of the Beanclal year/period 55,018 0,584 a73

*This Subs-Ffund leurchad on 17 Mosember 1018

Thw sczerparying rates sre an nbagral part of th fzancal dalemants.

Sarks 2006 Nikked 225
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PassIM Trust
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the financial wear from 1 July 2018 ta 30 june 2019

Series 2016 JPX —
Nikkeil 400 Fund
30 June 2008
MY D00
Coail Mosats Fromm operating actiities
Diperating |loas) for tha Financial year [L.373,005)
Austments Tor:
Disidind Inconme 358,624
Withiolding tax om dividand incomis 58,535
Diperating (les) belers working capital changes 11,702,144}
Dacreasi in Seancial assets at Rair vales thicagh prolit or loa 1,701,598
[Dzraasa) i financial labifities ot Tair valus through profit or kas 5,580
[InEresse] in recevable (5,540
[Dacraasal im payabies (4,383
Dacraasa in cash ab Broker #5657
Mot cash providod by oparalion 30,600
Income tax paid {59,535)
Dividnds recabad 3BE 008
Mt cach prowidod by oparating extiviths 358,073
Carshh Mivwass sl in] by Tinamscing activitios
Procaads from issue of units fo equity hobdars
Payprents feom redampticn of wnits from aquity holders s
Distribtion paid to Usitholders 12?ng
Mt cash outflow fram lnandng acbivities 27,772}
et chasge in cash and mih equivalems ET.301
Cash and cash aguivalants at tha baginning of fisancial year 198,838
Conlh and cash equivalonts ot the s of the Tinascial year 285 139

Thu accomparying rotes sne an insagral part of ths Azandal delemanti.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

PassiM Trust {the “Trust™), is a unit trust established as an umbrella fund under the laws of the Cayman
Islands pursuant to the Trust Deed dated 2 December 2014, as amended and restated pursuant to an
Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust dated 25 July 2018 (the “Trust Deed™).

For the purposes of AIFMD, the Trust will constitute a Non-European Economic Area (“NOM-EEA™) AIF with
a European Economic Area (“EEA") AIFM. The distribution of this trust is restricted to lapanese investors
only.

The Trust has been established as an umbrella fund and accordingly the assets of the Trust are separated
into different sub-Funds (together, the “Sub-Funds™). As at 30 June 2020, the Trust holds 14 Sub-Funds,
Serles 2016 IPX-Nikkei 400 Fund, Series 2016 MNikkel 225 Fund, Series 2016 TOPIX Fund,
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund, China 2x Bull Fund, China 2x Bear Fund, Gold 2x Bull Fund, Gold 2x Bear Fund,
Imdia 2% Bull Fund, India 2x Bear Fund, AUD Target Maturity Bond Fund 201609, AUD Target Maturity Bond
Furmd 201612, US Technology 2X Bull Fund and US Technalogy 2X Bear Fund.

For the Sub-Funds Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund, Serles 2016 IPX — Nikkei 400 Fund, Serles 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund
and Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund for which this Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements have been
prepared, the fund administrators are State Street Fund Services (lreland) Limited and State Street
Cayman Trust Company Limited. Fund custodian are State Street Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited and
State Street Bank and Trust Company. For the remaining 10 Sub-Funds, the fund administrators are BNP
Paribas Securities Services and BMP Paribas Fund Administration Services {lreland) Limited and fund
custodian is BNP Paribas Securities Services, A separate Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
have been prepared for these 10 Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund commenced its operations from 20 September 2016, Series 2016 JPX = Nikkei 400
Fund commenced its operations from 14 October 2016, Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund commenced its
operations from 24 October 2016 and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund commenced its operations from 27
November 2018,

The Sub-Funds invest in Index Securities (as defined in the Supplements of the Sub-Funds) having
significantly the same weightings as those of the IPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index
and TOPIX Index and Financial Derivative Instruments (“FDI"), including, but not limited to, futures for
tracking the parformance of the IPX-Nikkel Index 400, Nikkel 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Indax
and for the purpose of efficient portfolio management, including equitisation of cash exposures.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. General Information (continued)

The Sub-Funds operate principally as index tracking funds and as such, the adverse performance of an
Index Security will not ardinarily result in the elimination of that |ndex Security from the Sub-Funds'
portfolios. The Sub-Funds may not be invested in all the Index Securities of the IPX-Nikkel index 400,
Mikkel 225 |ndex, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index at all times due to various factors such as, but not limited
to, the passive investment strategy of the Sub-Funds and changes to the composition of the JPX-Nikkei
Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index. For example, when an Index Security ceases
to be a constituent of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, &P 500 Index and TOPIX Index, Nikko
Asset Management Co., Ltd. ("Investment Manager”) may rebalance the Sub-Funds' portfolio by selling
the outgoing Index Security and using the proceeds to invest in a replacement Index Security, which will
reflect the replacement constituent of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and
TOPIX Index. However, the Sub-Funds' portfolio may at any time contain securities which are not a
constituent of the JPX-Nikkei Index 400, Nikkei 225 Index, S&P 500 Index and TOPIX Index, but will be
within the permitted investment univerze of the Sub-Funds.

2.  Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to the financial year presented, unless otherwise
stated.

All references to net asset value (“NAYV™) throughout these financial statements refer to net assets
attributable to registered holders of Units {"Unitholders™) unless otherwize stated.

{a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Sub-Funds have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS").

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenzes.
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PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation {continued)

Actual results may differ from these estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revision: to accounting estimates are recognized in the financial year in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The base currency of the Sub-Fund:s (excluding Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund) az well as the operational
currency of the redeemable participating units (the "Units”) is lapanese Yen ("JPY"). The base currency of
Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund is United States Dollar ("USD™). The financial statements of the Sub-Funds
{excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) are presented in JPY. The financial statements of Series 2018 5&P
500 Fund are presented in USD.

Mew standards, amendments and interpretations issued and effective for the financial year ended 30 June
2020

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments™ was issued in June 2017 and became effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, It clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes
which is applied to the determination of taxable profits (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments in accordance with 145 12, It
clarifies that the Entity should consider whether tax treatments should be considered independently or
collectively, whether the relevant tax authority will or will not accept each tax treatment and, the
requirement to reassess its judgements and estimates if facts and circumstances change. The application
of IFRIC 23 has not had a significant effect on the Sub-Funds® financial position, performance or disclosures
i its financial statements.

ments and in i i financial r

Jume 2020 and not early adopted

IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts, was ssued in May 2017 and will become effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023. It applies to: insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts,
Issued by an entity; reinsurance contracts held by an entity; and investment contracts with discretionary
participation features ssued by an entity that issues Insurance contracts. An insurance contract is defined
as "a contract under which one party (the lssuer) accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the
policyholder) by agreeing to compensate the polieyholder if a specified uncertain future event [the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholder’. The new standard is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Sub-Funds™ financial position, performance or disclosures in its financial
statements.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

{i} Classification

The Sub-Funds classify their investments in equity securities and FDI as financial assets or liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial Instrurnents™ ("IFRS 97).

{if}) Valuation of Investments

LP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited (the "Manager”) has appointed State Street Fund
Services (lreland) Limited (the “Administrator”) for the purpose: of calculating the NAV of the
Sub-funds” and valuing each asset in accordance with the pricing hierarchy and procedures outlined
in the Securities Valuation Price Source Agreemaent.

The Investment Manager mist assist the Adminkstrator and the Manager in pricing the azsats of
the Sub-funds’ where applicable, including the provision of any supporting pricing information.

Realised gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent the
difference between disposal proceeds or valuation and historic cost and take into account all
brokers' charges and commissions. Realised and unrealised gains or losses on financlal assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

{ifi) Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade date - the date on which the Sub-Funds
commit to purchase or sell the investments. Imvestments are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Sub-Funds have transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting pelicies |continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
{iv) Measurement

Investments are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs for financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investments are measured at fair value, The fair value of financial
assets and liabilities traded in active markets is based on their quoted market prices at the close of
trading on the reporting date. The quoted market prices used for financial asset: held by the
Sub-Funds are the market closing prices at reporting date.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the falr value of the “financial assets at falr value through
profit or loss™ categary are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within “net galns
of financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss” in the financlal year in which they arise.

{e) Financial Derivative Instruments

FD1 are recognised at fair value on the date onwhich a FD| contract is entered into and subsequently
are re-measured at their Fair value. All FDI are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and
as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes in fair values of FDI are included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. The price is based on counterparty tradeable market price.
The fair value of future contracts is based upon daily quoted settlernent prices. Changes in the value
of the contract are recognized as unrealized gain or losses in the income statement. The fair value
of open forward foreign currency exchange contracts and open forelgn currency exchange spot
contracts is calculated as the difference between the contracted rate and the current forward rate
that would close out the contract on the Statement of Financial Position date.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{d} Fair value estimation

The falr value of financial asset and liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded FDI and
trading securities) is based on guoted market prices at the date of the Statement of Financial
Position. When the Sub-Funds hold FDI with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices as a basis
for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies this bid or asking price to the net
open position, as appropriate.The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an
active market is determined using bid price of broker quotes. In particular, the fair value of debt securities
is determined by reference to the broker quotes as obtained from independent pricing sources including
Financial Times Evaluated and Bloomberg.

{e] Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position when thera iz a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly.

() Amounts due from,/to broker

Amounts due from/fto broker represent recelvables for securities sold and payables for securities
purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered at the financial year end

respectivehy.

(g} Income and expenses

Imterest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. It
includes interest income from cash and cash eguivalents and on debt securities at fair value through profit

or loss.

Expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{h) Foreign currency translation
{1} Functional and presentation currency

Itemz included in the Sub-Funds' financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™).

This is JPY for the Sub-Funds {excluding Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund) which reflects the primary capital
ralsing market. The financial statements are presented in the IPY which is also the Sub-Funds'
{excluding Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund) presentation currency. The functional presentation currency

of Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund is USD,
(i} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into
the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the financial position date.

Foraign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of all assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.,

The Sub-Funds do not Isolate that portion of gains or lasses on trading securities and FDI which is due
to changes in forelgn exchange rates from that which s due to changes In the market price of
securities. Such fluctuations are included in the net gaine or losse: an financlial assetz and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

{i} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
imvestrients with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, if any,
are shown as liabilities in the Staterment of Financial Position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i} Cash at Broker

Cash at broker Includes margin depositz for futures contracts which relates to collateral held with the
relevant broker.

(K} Redeemable units

Unitholders may request the Sub-Funds to redeem all or any of their units on any redemption date at the
net asset value per unit on such redemption date, in accordance with the redemption procedures. The
minimurm redemption amount that applies to the Sub-Funds are contained in the Prospectus or, as the
case may be, the relevant Supplement. The Manager may, in ts absolute discretion, walve the minimum
redemption amount for each class in general, or in respect of a specific redemption reguest in whole or
im part.

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund have two classes of
units in issue as at 30 June 2020, Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class units in issue as at 30
June 2020, Units are classified as eguity when there is only one class of units outstanding for a Sub-Fund
as at the Statement of Financial Position date and these units meet all the other conditions of equity
classification under 1AS 32 “Financial Instruments Presentation”, including the condition that these units
wiere the most subordinated units in issue in that Sub-Fund.

{I} Taxation

The Sub-Funds currently incur withholding taxes imposed by certain countries on investment income and
capital gains. Such income or gains are recorded gross of withholding taxes In the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Withholding taxes are shown as a separate item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Refer to Note 15 for details of taxation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. Ssummary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{m) Preliminary expenses

The preliminary expenses of the Trust and each Sub-Fund are borne by the respective Sub-Funds. The
preliminary expense: ineurred In the establishment of the Trust and the Sub-Funds are recognised as
expenses of the Sub-Funds in the financial yvear in which they arizse,

{n] Distributions

The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the distributions payable to the
Unitholders of the Sub-Funds. All distributions will be pald net of any taxes required to be withheld.

3. Financial risk management

The Sub-Funds activities expose them to a variety of risks, including but not limited to market price risk,
interest rate risk, currency rizk, credit risk and liguidity risk arizing from the financial instruments held.
The financial instruments are held in accordance with the published investment policies of the Sub-Funds
and managed accordingly to achieve the investment objectives.

The risks and respective risk management policies employed to manage these risks are disclosed below:

{a) Market price risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held. It represents
the potential loss the Sub-Funds might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price
movements, Market risk is managed by the Manager. In the case of these Sub-Funds, market risk within
the FDI will be significant, but is entirely in line with investor returns. Realised and unrealised gains are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the financial year in which they arise.

An outbreak of an infectious respiratory lliness caused by a novel coronavirus known as COVID-19 was
first detected in China in December 2019 and has now developed into a glabal pandemic. This coranavirus
has resulted in travel restrictions, closed international borders, enhanced health screenings at ports of
entry and elsewhere, disruption of and delays in healthcare service preparation and delivery, prolonged
guarantines, cancellations, supply chain disruptions, and lower consumer demand, as well as general
concern and uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk {continued)

The impact of COVID-19 has adversely affected the economies of many nations across the entire global
economy, individual issuers and capital markets, and could continue to extents that cannot necessarily be
foreseen. In addition, the impact of infectious ilinesses in emerging market countries may be greater due
to generally less established healthcare systems. Public health crises caused by the COVID-19 outbreak
may exacerbate other pre-existing political, soclal and economic risks In certain countries or globally. The
duration of the COVID-1% outbreak and its effects cannot be determined with certainty.

As at reporting date the overall market exposure [s as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2020
IFY 000

Held for trading

Equities 6,197,618

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6,197,618

Held for trading

Futures (8,715]

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (8,715)

If the prices of listed equities and FDI had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY61,889,030.

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2020
IPY 000
Held for trading
Equities 18,561,403
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss m
E ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Market price risk [continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund [continued) 30 June 2020
IFY' 000

Held for trading

Futures (5,450]

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss W

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY185,559,130.

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund 30 June 2020
UsoDooo

Held for trading

Equities 293,552

Futures 251

Forwards 57

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss T,Bﬁﬂ

Held for trading

Forwards (B&1)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss W

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreazed by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
UsD2,931,790,

339
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk ([continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2020
IFY' 000

Held for trading

Equities 10,733,066

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss m

Held for trading

Futures (7.961)

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss W

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY107,251,050.

As at 30 June 2019 the overall market exposure is as follows:

Series 2016 TOPILX Fund 30 June 2019
IFY 000
Held for trading
Equities 10,566,401
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss m
Held for trading -
Futures (1,231)
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss w

If the prices of listed eguitiez and FDI had increazed/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net aszets
attributable to Unithalders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY105,651, 700,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk ([continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019
IFY 000

Held for trading

Equities 24,338,763

Futures 2,774

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 24,341,537

If the prices of listed equities and FIM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
JPY243,415,370.

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund™* 30 June 2019
UsoDooo

Held for trading

Equities 27,134

Futures 14

Forwards 1

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —IT,MEI

Held for trading

Forwards**

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss .

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 2018
*SEargards which are less than $500 are rounded to e,

If the prices of listed equities and FIM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial period would have resulted in an increase/decrease of
USD271,490.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{a) Market price risk (continued)

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund 30June 2019
JPY'000

Held for trading

Equities 15,051,097

Futures 187

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15,051,284

If the prices of listed equities and FOM had increased/decreased by 1%, the Sub-Fund's net assets
attributable to Unitholders at end of the financial year would have resulted in an increaze/decrease of
JPY150,512 840,

{b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes In interest rates will affect future cash flows or
the fair values of financial Instruments. Changes to prevalling interest rate: or changes in expectations of
future rates may result in an increase or decrease in the value of the securities held. In general, if interest
rates rise, the value of fixed income securities will decline. A decline in interest rates will in general have
the opposite effect. Other assets and liabilities bear no interest rate risk. The Sub-Funds invest primarily
im equity securities, therefore is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk and no sensitivity analysis
has been presented.

{e) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Sub-Funds are not exposed to currency risk arising from balances and transactions in
forelgn currencies as the majority of their azsets and liabilities are denominated in JPY and USD, the
Sub-Funds’ functional and presentation currency. Accordingly, the Management considers that it is not
necessary to present a sensitivity analysis of currency risk.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)
{d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or a counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a commitment
{including payment of amounts in full when due) that it has entered into with the Sub-Funds.

The Sub-Funds will be exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will aleo bear the risk of
sottlement default. Cash and trading securities are held with the Custodian throughout the year. All
trading securities held by the Sub-Funds are companies listed on recognised stock exchanges in lapan and
the United Statez, None of them are in the nature of debt. The zettlement of equities with the
counterparty = on an against delivery basis and iz regulated by rules of respective stock exchanges. |n
general, there is no credit risk involved for such kind of cash settlernent.

For the purpose of cash management, the Sub-Fund has bank accounts with the Custodian and Broker.
Intertrust Corporate Services {Cayman) Limited as Trustee has appointed State Street Custodial Services

{Ireland) Limited and State Street Bank and Trust Company as its Custodian.

All the assets/(liabilities) of the Sub-Funds were held with the Custodian except cash held at the Broker,
Mizuho Securities Singapore, for futures trading.

The tables below summarises the amount of the Sub-Funds” assets held with the Custodian and Broker
with external rating and maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 Jure 2020 and as at 30 June 2019:

Series 2016  Series 2016 Series 2018 5&P Series 2016 IPX -

30 June 2020 S&P TOPIX  Nikkei 225 500 Fund  Nikkei 400 Fund
Global Fund Fund USD’000 IPY'000
Ratings IPY'000 IPY’000
Assets at Custodian AA- 6,338,433 18,761,763 293,816 10,881,570
Assets at Broker A 124,472 165,000 2,421 97,318
43
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{d} Credit risk {continued)

Series 2016  Series 2016 Series 2018 5&P Series 2016 JPX -

30 June 2019 S&P TOPIX  Nikkei 225 500 Fund®  Nikkei 400 Fund
Global Fund Fund USD’000 JPY'000
Ratings IPY'000 IPY’000

Assets at Custodian AA- 10,820,158 24,622,102 27,147 15,337,423

Assets at Broker A 80,540 166,336 185 62,301

*This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 2018

(e} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeating obligations aszociated with financial
liabilities.

The Sub-Funds are exposed to dally cash redemptions of participating units. Sub-Funds tharefore invest
the majority of thelrs assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readlly disposed.
The Sub-Funds' majority assets are listed securities which are considered readily realisable as they are
listed on well established stock exchanges.

The tables on the following page analyse the Sub Funds® financial liabilities which will be settled on a net
basiz into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial
Position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. All payables are due for settlement within one month.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e)] Liguidity risk [continued)
Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund

As at 30 June 2020

Financial llabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2020

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fee payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Amounts due to brokers

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders

Total liabilities

Less than 3 months
JPY 000

8,715
1,520
10,589
712
11,620
30,610
1,272
862
6,428,371

6,494,271

Less than 3 months
IPY'000

5,490
4,127
16,418

845

17,966
3,067
1,992
26,514
1,239
18,885,154

18,962,812
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e)] Liguidity risk [continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
As at 30 June 2020 Less than 3 months
UsD'000
Financial llabflities at fair value through profit or loss 681
Withholding tax payable 111
Administration fees payable 141
Management fees payable 330
Custodian fees payable 116
Legal and professional fees payable 30
Other payables 167
Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders 302,178
Total liabilities 303,754
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
As at 30 June 2020 Less than 3 months
IPY'000
Financial llabflities at fair value through profit or loss 7,961
Withholding tax payable 2,933
Administration fees payable 12,448
Audit fees payable 31
Management fees payable 15,315
Custodian fees payable 4,044
Legal and professional fees payable 2,037
Other payables 2,879
Total liabilities 47,648
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e) Liguidity risk {continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund

As at 30 June 2019

Fimancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Withholding tax payable

Administration fees payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Set up fees payable

Amounts due to brokers

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholdars
Total liabilities

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

As at 30 June 2019

Withholding tax payable

Administration fee payable

Audit fees payable

Management fees payable

Custodian fees payable

Legal and professional fees payable

Set up fees payable

Other payables

Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders
Total liabilities

Less than 3 months
JPY'000

1,231
2,487
9,264

788

8,264
20,646
2,381
1,178
3,148
2,602
10,896,740

10,548,730

Lezs than 3 months
IPY'000

5,611
15,009
653
18,087
691

3,190
1,280
3,209
24,778,762

24,826,492
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

{e)] Liguidity risk [continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund*

As at 30 June 2019 Less than 3 months

UsD'000
Withholding tax payable 23
Administration fee payable 43
Audit fees payable 9
Management fees payable B4
Custodian fees payable 12
Legal and professional fees payable 18
Other payables 33
Met asset value attributable to redeeming participating unitholders 28,206
Total liabilities 28,408

* This Sub-Fund lruriched on 27 Novenber 2018,

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

As at 30 June 2019 Less than 3 months

IPY'000
Withholding tax payable 3,890
Administration fees payable 9,807
Audit fees payable 716
Management fees payable 10,623
Custodian fees payable 915
Legal and professional fees payable 3,226
Set up fees payable 2,612
Amounts due to brokers 6,309
Other payables 7,257
Total liabilities 45,355
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Financial risk management (continued)

(f) Capital risk management

The Sub-Funds' capital iz represented by the Units in the Sub-Funds and shown as net assets attributable
to the holders of redeemable units in the Statement of Financial Position. In order to achleve the
Imvestrment objectives, the Sub-Funds endeavar to imiest its capital in accordance with the investment
policies as autlined in the Prospectus, whilst maintaining sufficient liguidity to meet redemption requests.
Such liquidity is augmented by the holding of liquid investments.

4. Fair value measurement

The Sub-Funds classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Inputs that reflects unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Sub-Funds have the ability to access at measurement date;

Imvestments whoze values are bazed on quoted market prices in active markets, and are therefore
classified within Level 1.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly, ineluding inputs in markets that are not considerad to be active;

Imvestrments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued bazed on guoted
market prices, dealer guotations or alternative pricing sources supported by obsarvable input: are
clazsified within Level 2.

As Level 2 Iinvestments include positions that are not traded in active markets andfor are subject to
transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/for non-transferability, which are
generally based on available market information.

Lewvel 3 - Valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments
where the valuation technigue includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs
could have a significant impact on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are
valued based on guoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

49
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4.  Fair value measurement {continued)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement iz categorised in its antirety
is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. For thiz purpose, the significance of an input Is azsezsed against the fair value measurement in
its entiraty. IF a falr value measurement uses observable Inputs that reguire significant adjustment based
on unobservable inputs, that measurement s a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement, considering factors
specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes "observable” requires significant judgment by the Managers, The
Managers consider observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed
orupdated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively
imvalved in the relevant market.

The following tables analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and liabilities
measured at falr value at the financial year ended 30 June 2020:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IPY' 000 1PY 000 1PY'000 IPY 000
Financial assets
Financial assets at falr value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 6,197,618 - - 6,197,618
Total 6,197,618 - - 6,197,618
Financial liabilities
Financial Nabilitles at fair
value through profit or loss
Futures (8,715) - - (8,715)
Total (8,715) - - (8,715)
50
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Falr value measurement (continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Tatal
JPY'000 IPY 000 IPY 000 IPY'000
Financial assats
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 18,561,403 - - 18,561,403
Total 18,561,403 . - 18,561,403
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at foir
value through prafit or loss
Futures (5,450) - - {5,490)
Total {5,490) . - {5,490)
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 293,552 - - 293,552
Futures 251 - - 251
Forwards - 57 - 57
Total 293,803 57 - 293,860
51
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement |continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
uspD'000 UsD'000 UsD 000 UsSD'000
Financial liabilities
Financial fabilities at fair value
through prafit or loss
Forwards - (681} - (681)
Total - (681) - (681}
Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IPY' 000 IFY' 000 IPY 000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through prafit or loss
Equity securities 10,733,066 - - 10,733,066
Total 10,733,066 - - 10,733,066
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at foir
value through prafit or loss
Futures [7,961) . . {7,961)
Total {7,961) . - {7,961)
52
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4. Fair value measurement (continued)

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Sub-Funds’ financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value at the financial year ended 30 June 2019:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund
Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3 Total
IPY 000 IPY'000 1PY" 0 IPY 000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 10,566,401 - - 10,566,401
Total 10,566,401 - - 10,566,401
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at foir value
through profit or loss
Futures (1,231) - = {1,231)
Total {1,231) - - {1,231)
53
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement |continued)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
IFY' 000 IFY 000 IFY'000 JPY'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through praofit or loss
Equity securities 24,338,763 - = 24,338,763
Futuras 2,774 - - 2,774
Total 24,341,537 - . 24,341,537
Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
uso'000 UsD'000 UsD'000 UsSD 000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 27,134 - - 27,134
Futures 14 - - 14
Farwards - 1 - 1
Total 27,148 1 - 27,149
54
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurement |continued)

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund® (continued)
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total

usp'000 usD'000 UsD'000 UsD'000
Financial liabilities
Financial Habilities at fair value
through prafit or loss

Forwards** - - - -

Total - - - .

* This Sub-Fund launched on 27 November 20018,
5 pypl 3 seourities which are less than 5500 are rounded to rero.

Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

IPY" 000 1PY 000 IPY* 000 IPY 000
Financial assats
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 15,061,087 - . 15,051,087
Futures 187 - - 187
Total 15,051,284 - - 15,051,284

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of the
financial year and are deemed to have occurred when the pricing source or methodology used to price an
imvestrent has changed which triggers a change in level as defined under IFRS 13. There wera no transfers
between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the financial year.

&5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. Fair value measurament (continued)

Assets and llabllities not carried at fair value are carrled at amortised cost; their carrying values are a
reasonable approximation of fair value. Cash includes deposits held with banks and other short-term
imvestrnents in an active market and they are categorised as Level 1. Recelvable for investments sold and
other recelvables include the contractual amounts for settlement of trades and other obligations due to
the Sub-Funds. Other payables represent the contractual amounts and obligations due by the Sub-Funds
for settlement of trades and expenszes. All receivable and payable balances are categorised as Level 2. The
value of redeeming units is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all other
liabilities. A demand feature is attached to these units, as they are redeemable at the holders’ option and
can be put back to the Sub-Funds at any dealing date for cash equal to a proportionate share of the
Sub-Fund's net asset value attributable to the share class, As such, Level 2 iz deemed to be the most
appropriate categorisation for the net assets attributable to holders of redeeming units.

5. Financial instruments by category

Financial assets

Apart fram investrents disclozed inthe Statement of Financial Position which are classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, all other financial assets a:z disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position,
Iincluding other recelvables, amounts due from broker and cash and cash equivalents, are categorized as
“other financlial receivables".

Financial liabilities

Apart from Investments disclosed in the Staterment of Financlal Position which are classified as fair value
through profit or loss, all financial liabilities as disclosed in the Staterent of Financlal Position, including
administration fee payable, management fee payable, trustee fee payable, audit fee payable, amounts
due to broker and other payables are categorised as “other financial liabilities"”.

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category

The Sub-Funds hold futures and forwards.

A futures contract is an agreement between two parties to buy or sell a security or currency at a specific
price or rate at a future date. The daily change in contract value is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss

and the Sub-Funds recognise a realised gain or loss when the contract is closed. Unrealised gaing and
lozses on futures contracts are recognised in the Statement of Comprahenzive Income.

128/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

PassIM Trust

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category (continued)

A forward currency contract is an agreement between two parties to buy and sell a currency at a sat price
on a future date (or to pay or receive the amount of the change in relative values of the two currencies).
The market price of a forward currency contract fluctuatas with changes in forward currency exchange
rates.

As of 30 June 2020, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following Ffutures:

30 June 2020 Notional value Fair value
IPY 000 1PY 000

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 242,439 (&,715)
Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund 288,321 (5,490)
Series 2016 JPX = Mikkel 400 Fund 241,094 (7,961)
30 June 2020 Notional value Fair value
UsD"000 UsD"000

Serles 2018 58P 500 Fund 2,649 281

As of 30 June 2020, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financlal Position Iincluded the following forwards:

30 June 2020 Unrealised loss

UsD"000

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund [624)
57
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6. Financial Derivative Instruments by category (continued)

As of 30 June 2019, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following futures:

30 June 2019 MNotional value Fair value
IPY 000 1PY 000

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 328,021 {1,231)
Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund 428,062 2,774
Series 2016 JPX = Mikkel 400 Fund 350,548 187
30 June 2019 MNotional value Fair value
UsD"o00 UsSD"000

Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund* 1,002 14

*This Sub-Fund Bunched 27 Nowemnber 2018

As of 30 June 2019, the Sub-Funds’ Statement of Financial Position included the following forwards:

30 June 2019 Unrealised gain
UsD 000
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund* 1

*Thiz Sub-Fund launched 2¥ November 2008,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Mot gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2020
1PY 000

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss:
Realised gain on investments 48,687
Realized gain on financial derivatives 33,532
Unrealised gain on investments 349,220
Unrealised loss on financial derivatives (7,484)
424,355
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2020
IPY' 000
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss:
Realized gain on investmeants 271,328
Realized gain on financial derivatives 43,664
Unrealised gain on investmants 1,686,746
Unrealised loss on financial derivatives (8,265)
1,993,473

59
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. MNet gain/{loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund

30 June 2020
UsD"oo0a

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realised loss on investments
Realized gain on financial derivatives
Unrealised gain on investments

Unrealised losz on financial derivatives

Series 2016 JIPX — Mikkei 400 Fund

(13,744
925
633

(389)

(12,575)

30 June 2020

IFY'000

MNet gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss:

Realized loss on investments
Realized gain on financial derivatives
Unrealised gain on investments

Unrealised losz on financial derivatives

(274,907)
35,017
879,174

(8,148)

631,136
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {[continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2019
JPY' 000

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realized gain on investmants 424,140

Realized loss on financial derivatives (39,409)

Unrealised los: on investments {1,883,350)

Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 8,232
{1,490,387)

Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019

IPY'000

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:

Realised loss on Investments {276,680)

Realised loss on financial derivatives {20,152)

Unrealised loss on investments {2,134,978)

Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 4,004
(2,437,806)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

7. Met gain/(loss) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss {[continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund™* 30 June 2019
UsD'ooa

Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss:
Realized gain on investmants 2,445
Realized gain on financial darivatives 25
Unrealised gain on investiments 9g2
Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 16
3,468
*This Sub-Fund launched 27 Novemnber 2018
Series 2016 IPX — Mikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2019
IPY'D00
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss:
Realized loss on investments (82,532)
Realized loss on financial derivatives (41,657)
Unrealised losz on investments (1,539,028)
Unrealised gain on financial derivatives 5,767
(1,657,450)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue

Redeemable participating units are classified as equity for Series 2016 IPX - Nikkel 400 Fund and liability
for Series 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund and Serles 2018 58P 500 Fund. Series 2016 TOPIX
Fund, Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund do not fulfil the criteria of having a single
share class required to classify redeemable participating units as equity. Redeemable participating units
are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the date of the Statement of Financial Position if
the holders exercise their rights to put the units back to the Sub-Funds for cash at the relevant dealing

day.

Redesmable participating units are issued and redeemed at the option of the holders at prices based on
the Sub-Funds” NAY per unit at the time of ksue or redemption.

The Sub-Funds" NAV per unit iz calculated by dividing the net assets attributable to holders of each class
of redeemable particlpating units with the total number of outstanding redeemable participating units for
each respective class, In accordance with the provisions of the Sub-Funds' regulations, investment
positions are valued based on the quoted market prices for the purpose of determining the NAV per unit
for subseriptions and redemptions. Unitholders may redeem thelr units on any dealing day which is dally
im whole or In part. In addition, in accordance with the explanatory memeorandum, the preliminary
expenses incurred in the formation of the Trust and the Sub-Funds are borne by the Sub-Funds.

Series 2016 TOPIX, Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund have two classes of units
imissue as at 30 June 2020, Class A and Class B, Series 2016 1PX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class of units in
issue as at and 30 June 2020, Class Al
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

The movements of the Redeemable Participating Units during the financial year from 1 July 2019 to 30
Jurne 2020 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPLX Fund 30 June 2020 30 June 2020
Class A Class B
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year 6,974,500 35,891
Units issued - -
Units redeemed (2,874,500) (26,000)
Mumber of units in ssue at the end of the financial
year 4,100,000 12,891
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JFY'000 6,408,485 19,882
et asset value per unit - JIPY'000 1.56 1.54
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2020 30 June 2020
Class A Class B
Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year 1,175,700 3,023
Units issuad 647 600 484,000
Units redeemead (1,461,300) =
Mumber of units in ssue at the end of the financial
year 366,000 487,023
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY'000 8,153,365 10,731,789
et asset value per unit - JIPY'000 22.28 22.04
64
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2018 58P 500 Fund

Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued
Units redeemed

Number of units in issue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'000

Met asset value per unit - USD'000

Series 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund

Number of units in issue at the beginning of the
financial year

Units issued

Units redeemed

Number of units in Esue at the end of the financial
year

Met assets attributable to equity Unitholders- 1PY' 000

Met asset value per unit - IPY'000

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
Class A Class B
25415 2,223

499 600 2,618.100
(366,600) {1,437,901)
158 415 1182422
185,882 116,285
117 0.10

30 June 2020

Class A

1,127 400

{338,000)

T8G9, 400

10,968,999

13.90
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Redeemable units in issue (continued)

Series 2016 TOPIX, Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund and Series 2018 5&P 500 Fund have two classes of units in
issue as at 30 June 2019, Class A and Class B. Series 2016 JPX — Nikkei 400 Fund has one class of units in
issue as at and 30 June 2019, Class A, The movements of the Redeemable Participating Units during the
financial year/period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Series 2016 TOPIX Fund 30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Class A Class B
:.I:ar:her of units in issue at the beginning of the financial 10,624,500 38,891
Units issued 2,750,000
Units redeemed (6,400,000}
Number of units in lssue at the end of the financial year 6,974,500 38,891
Net assets attributable to Unitholders - JPY' 000 10,837,077 59,663
Net asset value per unit - JIPY000 1.55 1.53
Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund 30 June 2019 30 June 2019
Class A Class B
::ar:ber of units in issue at the baginning of the financial 108,000 39,423
Units issuad 1,215,000 413,000
Units redeemed (144,300) (449,400)
Number of units in izsue at the end of the financial year 1,179,700 3,023
Met assets attributable to Unitholders - IPY'000 24,715,217 63,545
Net asset value per unit - JPY'000 20.85 21.02
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Redeemable units in issue [continued)
Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund™* 30 June 2019 30 June 2019

Class A Clazs B

Number of units in izsue at the beginning of the

financial year

Units issued 145,100 2,223

Units redeemed {119,685)

::ar:ber of units in issue at the end of the financial 25,415 2,223

et assets attributable to Unitholders - USD'000 27,996 209

Met ascet value per unit - USD'000 1.10 0.09

* Thils Sub-Fund lsunched 27 November 2018,

Series 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund 30 June 2019
Class A

Number of units in izsue at the beginning of the financial 1,127 400

year

Units issued

Units redeemad

Number of units in issue at the end of the financial year 1,127 400

Net assets attributable to equity Unitholders- IPY'000 15,406,976

et asset value per unit - JIPY'000 13.67

9. Management fees

An aggregate amount of the management fees described below as (a), (b) and (sc) is payable to the
Manager out of the assetz of the Sub-Funds. The Manager will pay, out of the management fees, the fees
of the lnvestment Manager and the Distributor, as allocated by the Manager as follows, subject to its
absolute discretion.

67
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
8. Management fees (continued)

The management fees are calculated on each Valuation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY gquarterly in
arrears for Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 20016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund and
payable in US Dollars quarterly in arrears for Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund.

{a) For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund the
Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of 0.02% of
the NAV of the Sub-Funds. For Series 2018 58P 500 Fund the Manager iz entitled to receive out of
the assetz of the Sub-Fund the following Met Asset Value percentage per Class: Class A - 0.02% and
Class B - 0.04%.

{b) Investrment Manager Fee:

For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 IPX - Mikkei 400 Fund and Series 2016 Nikkei 225 Fund the
Imvestment Manager s entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of:
{1} 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is
equal to or less than JPY25 billion: (1) 0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the
aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than JPY25 billien and equal or less than JPYS0 billlon;
and {[i) 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund
which Is mare than IPYS0 billlen, provided that the Investment Manager shall be entitled to a
minimum of JPY10,000,000 per annum. For Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund the Investment Manager is
entitled to recelve out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: {i) 0.11% of the NAV of
the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal to or less than
USD250 million; (i) 0.10% of the NAY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the
Sub-Fund which is more than USD250 million and equal or less than USDS00 million; and (i) 0.09%
of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAY of the Sub-Fund which is more than
USDS00 million, provided that the Investment Manager shall be entitled to a minimum of
USD100,000 par annum.

{c) For all Sub-Funds the Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at an
annual rate of 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY16,540,928 (30 lune 2019: JPY20,361,646) with IPY11,620,380 (30 June 2019: JPYE,264,100) in
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
9. Management fees (continued)

The investment management fees for the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
IPY26,809,479 (30 June 2019: IPY30.866,252) with JPY17,965,752 (30 June 2019: IPY18,087,202) in
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The investment management fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to
USD364,869 (30 June 2019: USDE3, 826), with USD330,303 (30 June 2019: USDE3,826) In outstanding fees
at the end of the financial year.

The investment management fees for the Serles 2016 IPX — Mikkei 400 Fund for the financial year
amounted to JPY20,870,148 (30 June 2019: JPY22,359,852) with JPY15,314,984 (30 June 2019:
JPY10,622,730) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

10. Trustee fees

Imtertrust Corporate Services (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee”) is entitled to receive out of the assets of
the Sub-Funds, the annual Trustee Fee of USD2,500 payable guarterly in arrears, plus fees for additional
time, disbursernents, out-of-pocket expenses and start-up expenses,

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY379,955 (30 June
2019: IPY316,638) with JPYMIl {30 June 2019: IPYNII) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee feas for the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financlal year amounted to JPY379,955 (30
Jume 2019: IPY316,638) with JPYNII (30 June 2009: IPYNI) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial

year.

The Trustee fees for the Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to USDE, 744 (30 June
201%: USD?,744) with USDNII (30 June 2019: USDNII) in cutstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The Trustee fees for the Series 2016 IPX — Nikkel 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY379,955
{30 June 2019: IPY316,638) with JPYNIl (20 June 2019: JIPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Administrators fees

For Serles 2016 Toplx Fund, Serles 2016 JPX - Nikkel 400 Fund and Serles 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund, State
Street Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Administrator”) is entitled to receive out of the assets of the
Sub-Funds a fee at annual rate of: (1) 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate
WAV of the Sub-Funds which is equal to or less than JPY10 billion; (i) 0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds
for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPY10 billion and equal or less
than JPY25 billion; (i) 0.05% of the NAY of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate MAY of the
Sub-Funds which is more than IPY25 billion and equal or less than JPYS0 billion; and (iv) 0.04% of the NAV
of the Sub-Funds for any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the Sub-Funds which is more than JPYS0 billion,
provided that the Administrator shall be entitled to a minimum of JPYT20,000 per month.

The Administrator Fee is calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The Administrator
Fee is payable in Japanese Yen quarterly in arrears.

The Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-Funds for its disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses,

For Series 2018 SEP 500 Fund, State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd. (the “Administrator”) is entitled
to receive out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at annual rate of: (i) 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund
for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which iz equal to or less than USD 100 million; (i)
0.06% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which iz more
than USD 100 million and equal or less than USD 250 million; (i) 0.05% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for
any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 250 million and egual or lass
than USD 500 million; and {iv) 0.04% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund fior any portion of the aggregate NAV of
the Sub-Fund which is more than USD 500 million, provided that the Administrator shall be entitled to a
minimurm of USD 6,000 per month. The Administrator Fee will be calculated on each Valuation Day and
shall be accrued daily, The Administrator Fee shall be payable in US Dollars quarterly in arrears. The
Administrator will be reimbursed by the Sub-Fund for its disbursements and out-of-pocket expenses.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYS 687,343
{30 June 2019: IPY9,746,628) with JPY10,588,880 (30 June 2019: IPY9,263,928) in outstanding fees at the
end of the financial year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 MNikkei 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY12,658,352 (30 June 2019: IPY14,661,030) with JPY16,417 546 (30 June 2019: JPY15,008,748) in
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11. Administrators fees (continued)

The Administrator fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted wo USD168,223
(30 June 2019: USD42,608) with USD141,100 (30 June 2019: USD42,608) in outstanding fees at the end
of the financial year.

The Administrator fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Mikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY10,027,305 (30 lune 2019: IPY10,577,314) with IPY12. 447,828 (30 June 2019: JPY9.807,072) Iin
outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

12. Custodians fees

For Series 2016 Topix Fund, Series 2016 JPX - Nikkel 400 Fund and Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund, State
Streat Custodial Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Custadian™) is entitled to receive out of the assets of the
Sub-Funds a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Funds, provided that the Custodian shall
be entitled to a minimum of JPY 120,000 per month. The Custodian Fee will be calculated each Valuation
Day and shall be acerued daily. The Custodian Fae shall be payable in Japanese Yen guarterly in arrears.

For Serles 2018 S&P 500 Fund, State Street Bank and Trust Company (the "Custodian™) 15 entitled to
recelve out of the assets of the Sub-Fund a fee at an annual rate of 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund,
provided that the Custodian shall be entitled to a minimum of USD 1,000 per month. The Custodian Fee
will be calculated on each Valuation Day and shall be accrued daily. The Custodian Fee shall be payable in
US Dollars gquarterly in arrears. The Custodian will be relmbursed by the Sub-Fund for its disbursemenis
and out-of-pocket expenses.,

The Custodian fees for the Series 2006 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY10,586,872 (30
Jure 2019: IPY17,674,688) with JPY30,609,634 (30 June 2019: JPY20,645,683) in outstanding fees at the
end of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 Mikkei 225 Fund fior the finandial year amounted to JPY3, 068,648
{30 June 2019: JPY3,645,449) with JPY3,066,598 (30 June 2019: IPY690,680) in outstanding fees at the end
of the financial year.

The Custodian fees for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial year amounted to USD266,441 (30
Jume 2019: USD11,813) with USD115,902 (30 June 2019: USD11,813) in outstanding fee:z at the end of
the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
12. Custodians fees (continued)

The Custodian fees for the Series 2016 JPX — Mikkel 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to
JPY3,162,031 (30 June 2019: JPY3,871,562) with JPY4,043,884 (30 June 2019: IPY915,089) in cutstanding
fees at the end of the financial year.

13. License fees

Fees incurred in connection with the reference to a licensed index are paid to the JPX-Mikkei Index 400
licensor, Nikkei 225 Index licensor, S&F 500 Index licenzor and TOPLY Index licensor and borne by the
Sub-Funds,

The License fee for the Series 2016 JPX — Nikkel 400 Fund and the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund is 0.02% of
the NAY of the Sub-Funds provided that the licensor shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY100,000 per
annum for each of these Sub-Funds, For Series 2018 S&P Fund it iz 0.01% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. For
the Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund iz (1) 0.01% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAVY
of the Sub-Fund which is less than JPY10 billien; (i) 0.005% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of
the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than IPY10 billlon and less than IPY50 billion;
{iif) 0.003% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate MAV of the Sub-Fund which s
equal or more than JBYS0 billion and less than JPY100 billion; (iv) 0.002% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund for
any portion of the aggregate NAV of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than IPY100 billlon and less
than JPY300 billion; (v) 0.001% of the NAVY of the Sub-Fund for any portion of the aggregate NAVY of the
Sub-Fund which is equal or more than JPY300 billion and less than JPYS00 billion and (vi) 0.0005% of the
WAV of the Sub-Fund for amy portion of the aggregate MAY of the Sub-Fund which is equal or more than
JPY500 billion, provided that the licensor shall be entitled to a minimum of JPY100,000 per annum.

The License fee will be calculated on each Valuation Day, accrued daily and payable in JPY except Series
2018 S&P 500 Fund, will be payable in US Dollars.

The Licenze fees for the Series 2016 TOPIX Fund for the financial year amounted to JPYE48,967 (30 June
2019: JPY1,180,191) with JPYMIl {30 June 2019: IPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial year.

The License feas for the Series 2016 Nikkel 225 Fund for the financial year amounted to JPY3,682,153 (30
Jure 2019: IPY4, 150,44 1) with JPYMIl (30 June 2019: IPYNI) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial

year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
13. License fees (continued)

The License fee for the Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund for the financial period amounted to USD29,986 (30
June 2019: USDE,ET78) with USDMIl {30 June 2019: USDNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the financial

year.

The License fees for the Series 2016 IPX = Nikkei 400 Fund for the financial year amounted to IPY2 832,684
(30 June 2019: JPY2,897,630) with JPYMIl (30 June 2019: JPYNIl) in outstanding fees at the end of the
financial year.

14. Distribution
The Sub-Funds” investments are expected to generate a certain amount of income on a periodic basis.

It is the current Intention of the Manager (althaugh it s under no obligation to do so) to make semi-annual
distributions in February and August for Clazs A, and in May and Nevember for Clazs B of each year to
Unitholders of record of the Sub-Funds on the Business Day immediately preceding the relevant
distribution date.

Distributions may be made out of the net income, realised and unrealised capital gains net of realised and
unrealised losses and capital of the Sub-Funds for the relevant financial year, or in such ather manner as
specified in the Trust Deed. The Manager has complete discretion as to the amount and timing of the
distributions payable to the Unitholders of the Sub-Funds.

However, the Manager will on each occasion consult with the Investment Manager as to the amount of
such distributions and will rely on the Administrator's continuing calculations and information as to the
amount available to be distributed based on the pozsibility of continuing sustainable pay-out amounts on
such semi-annual basis.

All distributions will be paid net of any taxes required to be withheld.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Distribution (continued)

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2020:

SEF'E-‘:I_ZD'-':: Series 2016 Series 2018 JP){S:I:E;:;:
& S&P 500

Fund Mikkei 225 Fund Fund Fund
Ex-date 1FY' 000 JPY'000 USD’000 JPY 000
01 August 2019 97,783 - - 152 883
01 Novermber 2019 465 457 - .
03 February 2020 4,680 - 626 135,190
01 May 2020 176 54,935 - .
Total distribution 163,104 65,392 626 288,073

The table below summarises the distribution of the Sub-Funds as at 30 June 2019:
5’”"’:';“;: Series 2016 series 2018 JPKSZ::efz;:

es S&P 500
Fund Mikkei 225 Fund Fund® Furnd
Ex-date 1FY' 000 JPY'000 USDYO00 JBY 000
01 August 2018 156,035 - - 140,161
01 Novernber 2018 470 18,191 .
01 February 2019 82,554 - i3 131,611
07 May 2019 52 603 - .
Total distribution 239,611 18,794 88 271,772
*This Subr-Fund launched 27 November 2018,
74
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15. Taxation

The Trust and its sub-funds are not subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the Cayman
Izlands. The only taxes which will be chargeable on the Trust and its Sub-Funds in the Cayman Islands are
nominal amounts payable to the registrar of Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Funds are registered as an exempted trust pursuant to Section 74 of the Trusts Law. The Trustee
has obtained a tax exemption certificate from the Governor-in-Cabinet of the Cayman lslands, which
provides that, for a period of 50 years from the date of the creation of the Sub-Funds, no law that is
thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax or duty to be levied on income or on capital
assets, gaing, or appreciation or any tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax will apply to amy
property comprised in the Sub-Funds, or to any income arising under the Sub-Funds or to the Trustee or
to the Unitholders in respect of any such property or income. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
is included in these financial statements.

Unitholders will not be subject to any income, withholding or capital gains taxes in the Cayman lslands,
with respect to the Units owned by them and distributions received on such Units, nor will they be subject
to any estate or inheritance taxes in the Cayman |slands. There are no exchange controls in Cayman.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-Funds may be subject to withholding tax imposed in
the country of arigin. Investment income is recorded gross of such taxes.

The Trust and its Sub-Funds have been formed as a unit trust under the Cayman Islands law. The Trust
and its Sub-Funds are assumed to be treated as a foreign investment trust, as a matter of Japanese law,
which is similar to a securities investment trust under the Law concerning Inwestment Trusts and
Investrment Corporations of Japan. Further, it iz anticipated that the Sub-Funds are not listed on any stock
exchange.

The Cayman lslands are not party to any double taxation treaties. Under current Cayman Islands law no
tax will be charged in the Cayman lslands on profits or gains of the Sub-Funds and dividends of the
Sub-Funds will be payable to Unitholders reside in or outside the Cayman lslands without deduction of
tax. Mo stamp duty is levied in the Cayman Islands on the transfer or redemption of Units inthe Sub-Funds.
The Sub-Funds invest in securities issued by entities which are domiciled in countries ather than the
Cayrman Islands.

75

147/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Taxation (continued)

Mary of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes are required to be
determined on a self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Funds'
broker on a "withholding” basis.

16. Transactions with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party to exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decision.

Details of the related party transactions are included in Notes @, 10 and 11.

There are no other related party tranzactions during the financial year,

17. Comparative period

The comparative amounts in these financial statements for Serles 2016 TOPIX Fund, Series 2016 IPX -
Mikkel 400 Fund and Serles 2016 Mikkel 225 Fund are for the financial year ended 30 June 2019. The
comparative amounts for Serles 2018 5&P 500 Fund are for the financial period from 27 Movember 2018
to 30 June 2019,

18. Significant events during the financial year

An outbreak of an infectious respiratery illness caused by a novel coronavirus known as COVID-19 was
first detected in China in December 2019 and has now developed into a global pandemic. The impact of
this significant event on the Trust's financial risk exposure s disclozed in Mote 3. The Investment Manager
has assessed the impact of market conditions arising from the COVID-19 outbreak on the Trust's ability to
meeat its investment objectives. Based on the latest available information, the Trust continues to be
managed in line with its investment objectives, with no disruption to the operations of the Trust and the
publication of net asset values.

There were no other significant events during the financial year.
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PassIM Trust

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. Post Balance Sheet events

There are no significant events after the financial year end date that would have an impact to the financial
staternents.

20. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 were approved and authorised for
Issue by the Trustee on 18 December 2020,

b
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As at 30 June 2020
Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019: 96.20%)
Bermuda: 0.03% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)
Insurance: 0.03% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)
455 Everest Re Group Ltd 94 0.03
94 0.03
Total Bermuda 94 0.03
lreland: 1.30% (30 June 2019: 1.03%)
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.08% (30 June 2019: 0.07%)
3,047 Aptiv Plc 237 0.08
237 0.08
Computers: 0.51% (30 June 2019: 0.43%)
7,242 Accenture Plc 1,555 0.51
1,555 0.51
Electronics: 0.04% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)
1,048 Allegion Plc 107 .04
107 0.04
Healthcare Products: 0.46% (30 June 2019: 0.47%)
15 246 Medtronic Plc 1,398 0.46
1,388 0.46
Isurance: 0.10% (30 June 2019: Nil)
1,464 Willls Towers Watson Plc 188 0.10
288 0.10
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 0.08% (30 June 2019: Nil)
2718 Trane Technologies Plc 242 0.08
242 0.08
Pharmaceuticals: 0.03% (30 June 2019: 0.02%)
1,550 Perrigo Co Pl 86 0.03
86 0.03
Total Ireland 3,913 1.30
Switzerland: 0.37% (30 June 2019: 0.40%)
Electronics: 0.15% (30 June 2019: 0.16%)
1,650 Garmin Ltd 161 0.05
3,750 TE Connectivity Ltd 306 0.10
467 0.15
Insurance: 0.22% (30 June 2019: 0.24%)
5131 Chubb Ltd 650 0.22
650 0.22
Total Switzerland 1,117 0.37
United Kingdom: 0.63% (30 June 2019: 0.89%)
Apparel: Nil (30 June 2019: 0.02%)
Chemicals: 0.43% (30 June 2019: 0.39%)
54871 Linde Pic 1,267 0.43
1,267 0.43
Commercial Services: 0.11% (30 June 2019: 0.09%)
4,535 IHS Markit Ltd 342 0.11
342 011
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Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United Kingdom: 0.63% (30 June 2019: 0.89%) (continued)
Environmental Control: 0.02% (30 June 2019: 0.02%)
1,884 Pentair Plc 72 0.02
T2 .02
Insurance: Nil (30 June 2019: 0.26%)
Oil & Gas Services: 0.01% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)
4 782 TechnipFbAC Plc 33 0.01
33 0.01
Packaging & Containers: 0.06% (30 June 2019: 0.07%)
17 899 Amcor Plc 183 0.06
183 0.06
Total United Kingdom 1,857 0.63
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%)
Advertising: 0.07% (30 June 2019: 0.10%)
A A28 Interpublic Group of Cos Inc 76 0.03
2436 Omnlcom Group Inc 133 0.04
209 0.07
Aerospace & Defense: 1.65% (30 June 2019: 2.22%)
6,005 Boeing Co 1,117 0.38
2,642 General Dynamics Corp 395 0.13
4 363 Howmet Aerospace Inc 69 0.02
2,454 L3Harris Technologies Inc 416 0.14
2 B0G Lockheed Martin Corp 1,024 034
1,762 Maorthrop Grumman Corp 542 0.18
16,721 Raytheon Technologies Corp 1,030 034
a17 Teledyne Technologies Inc 130 0.04
572 TransDigm Group Inc 253 0.08
4,976 1.65
Agriculture: 0.76% (30 June 2019: 0.84%)
21127 Altria Group Inc B29 027
6,315 Archer-Daniels-Midland Co 52 0.08
17,702 Phillp Maorris International Inc 1,240 0.41
2,331 0.7
Airlines: 0.20% (30 June 2019: 0.36%)
1,304 Alzska Alr Group Inc 51 0.02
5650 American Alrlines Group Inc 74 0.02
6,453 Delta Alr Lines inc 181 0.06
6,097 Southwest Alrlines Co 208 0.07
2873 United Airlines Holdings Inc 99 0.03
613 0.20
Apparel: 0.59% (30 June 2019: 0.60%)
3,957 Hanesbrands Inc 45 0.01
14,097 MIEE Inc C1 B 1,382 0.46
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Apparel: 0.59% (30 June 2019: 0.60%) {continued)

206 PVH Corp 39 0ol
543 Ralph Lauren Corp 39 001
3,139 Tapestry Inc 42 001
2,142 Under Armour Inc Cl A 21 001
2,234 Under Armaur Inc ClC 20 001
3,625 VF Carp 221 007
1,809 0.59
Auto Manufacturers: 0.41% (30 June 2019: 0.42%)

1677 Cummins Inc 291 0.10
44,407 Ford Mator Co 270 009
14,317 General Motors Co 362 012

3,930 PACCAR Inc 294 0.10

1,217 0.41
Auto Parts & Equipment: 0.03% (30 June 2019: 0.03%)
2,357 BorgWarner Inc 83 0.03
83 0.03
Banks: 4.21% (30 June 2019: 5.53%)
BE.7T66 Bank of America Corp 2,108 070

9,160 Bank Of New York Mellon Carp 354 012
23,667 Citigroup Inc 1,209 0.40

4,850 Citizens Finandial Group Inc 122 004

1,581 Comeerica Inc &0 0.02

8,093 Fifth Third Bancorp 156 0.05

1,949 First Republic Bank 207 0.07

3,519 Galdman Sachs Group Inc Ba5 023
11,530 Huntington Bancshares Inc 104 0.03
34,640 IPhorgan Chase & Co 3,259 108
11,089 EeyCorp 135 004

1458 MET Bank Corp 152 0.05
13,614 Morgan Stanley 658 0.22

2,365 Marthern Trust Corp 188 006

4,823 PMC Financial Services Group Inc 507 0.17
10,880 Regions Financial Corp 121 004

4,001 State Street Corp 254 0.08

586 SVB Financial Group 116 Ou04
15,319 Truist Financial Corp 575 019
15,583 US Bancorp 574 019
42,416 Wells Fargo & Co 1,086 036

1,863 Zions Bancorp NA 63 002

12,713 4.21
Beverages: 1.61% (30 June 2019: 1.65%)
2,073 Brown-Forman Corp Ol B 132 004
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Beverages: 1.61% (30 June 2019: 1.65%) (continued)

43,944 Coca-Cola Co 1,963 0.65
1,909 Constellation Brands Inc 334 011
2,138 Molson Coors Beverage Co 73 0.02
4,250 Monster Beverage Corp 295 010

15,774 PepsiCo Inc 2,086 0.69

4,883 1.61

Biotechnology: 2.04% (30 June 2019: 1.81%)
2,510 Alexion Pharmaceuticals Inc 282 009
6,687 Amgen Inc 1,577 0.52
1,855 Biogen Inc 496 016
243 Bio-Rad Laboratories Inc 110 0.04
8,508 Corteva Inc 228 008

14,256 Gilead Sciences Inc 1,087 0.36
1671 Mlumina Inc 619 0.20
2,051 Incyte Corp 213 007
1,147 Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc 715 0.24
2,948 Vertex Pharmaceuticals Inc 856 0.28

6,193 .04

Building Materials: 0.36% (30 June 2019: 0.31%)
9,256 Carrier Global Corp 206 0.07
1,588 Fortune Brands Home & Security Inc 102 0.03
8457 lohnson Controls International Plc 289 010
708 Bartin Marietta Materials Inc 146 0.05
2,998 Masco Corp 151 0.05
1,506 Vulcan Materials Co 174 0.06
1,068 0.36
Chemicals: 1.22% (30 June 2019: 1.30%)
2,511 Ajr Products and Chemicals Inc =i 0.20
1,209 Albemarle Corp 93 0.03
1,344 Celanese Corp 116 004
2,431 CF Industries Holdings Inc [:1:3 002
8421 Drow Inc 343 011
8,342 Dupont De Memaours Inc 443 015
1,545 Eastman Chemical Co 108 0.04
2811 Ecolab Inc EE9 018
1472 FMC Corp 147 0.05
1,215 International Flavors B Fragrances Inc 149 0.05
2921 LyondellBasell Industries NV 192 0.06
3,964 Mosaic Co 50 002
2,682 PPG Industries Inc 284 009
919 Sherwin-Williams Co 531 018
3,689 1.22
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Commercial Services: 2.25% (30 June 2019: 1.74%)

4,886 Automatic Data Processing Inc 727 024
958 Cintas Corp 255 0.08
1,320 Equifax Inc 237 0.08
953 FleetCor Technologies Inc 240 0.08
1,014 Gartner Inc 123 004
3,400 Global Payments Inc 577 019
2,188 HER Block Inc 31 001
431 Marketixess Holdings Inc 216 0o7
1,833 Moody's Corp S04 017
4,053 Mielsen Holdings Plc &0 002
13,348 Paypal Holdings Inc 2,326 077
1,565 Quanta Services Inc 61 002
1,303 Robert Half International Inc &9 002
1,602 Rollins Inc [:1] 002
2,739 SEP Global Inc 902 0.30
a219 United Rentals Inc 122 004
1,845 Verisk Analytics Inc 314 0,10
6,832 2.25

Computers: 6.52% (30 June 2019: 4.12%)

46,318 Apple Inc 16,897 5.59
6,146 Cognizant Technology Solutions Corp 349 012
2,885 Do Technology Co 48 002
1,525 Fortinet Inc 209 007

14,606 Hewlett Packard Enterprise 142 0.05

16,256 HP Inc 283 009

10,094 International Business Machines Corp 1,219 0.40
1,518 Leidos Holdings Inc 142 0.05
2514 MetApp Inc 112 004
2,567 Seagate Technology Plc 124 0.04
3,407 Western Digital Corp 150 0.05

19,675 6.52

Cosmetics & Personal Care: 1.51% (30 June 2019: 1.37%)
9,737 Colgate-Palmalive Co 713 0.24
3,383 Coty Inc i5 0.00
2,555 Estee Lauder Cos Inc 482 016
28,144 Procter & Gamble Co 3,365 111
4,575 1.51

Distribution & Wholesale: 0.23% (30 June 2019: 0.19%)
2,349 Copart Inc 196 006
6,512 Fastenal Co 279 009
3456 LEQ Corp 91 003
432 WW Grainger Inc 155 0.05
721 0.23
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Diversified Financial Services: 3.89% (30 June 2019: 3.84%)

7,504 American Express Co 714 0.24
1,391 Ameriprise Financial Inc 209 0.07
1,754 BlackRock Inc 954 031
5176 Capital Ome Financial Corp 324 011
1,247 Choe Global Markets Inc 116 0,04
13,026 Charles Schwab Corp 439 015
4,077 CME Grouwp Inc 663 022
3,482 Discover Financial Services 174 0.06
3,153 Franklin Resources Inc 13 002
6,221 Intercontinental Exchange Inc 570 019
4,278 Invesco Ltd 46 002
10,048 Mastercard Inc 2971 0.a7
1,306 Masdaq Inc 156 0.05
1,386 Raymond James Financial Inc a5 0.03
6,105 Synchrony Financial 135 004
2,587 T Rowe Price Group Inc 319 011
19,120 Visa Inc Cl A 3,706 123
4,671 Western Unicn Co 101 003
11,758 3.89
Electric: 2.80% (30 June 2019: 2.78%)
7.559 Aes Corp 110 004
2,836 Alliant Energy Corp 136 0.05
2,807 Ameren Corp 198 007
5,634 American Electric Power Co Inc 449 0.15
6,192 CenterPoint Energy Inc 116 004
3,254 CMS Energy Carp 190 006
3,798 Consolidated Edison Inc 273 009
9,541 Dominicn Energy Inc 775 0.26
2,190 DOTE Energy Co 235 0.08
8,354 Duke Energy Corp 667 022
4,297 Edison International 233 0.08
2,276 Entergy Corp 214 0.07
2,578 Evergy Inc 153 0.05
3,825 Eversource Emergy 319 011
11,078 Exelon Corp 402 013
6,159 FirstEnergy Corp 239 0.08
5,564 MextEra Energy Inc 1,336 0.44
2,775 MRG Energy Inc a0 0.03
1,274 Finnacle West Capital Corp a4 0.03
8,740 PPL Carp 226 0.07
5748 Public Service Enterprise Group Inc 283 009
3,326 Sempra Energy 380 013
12,005 Southern Co 622 021
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Electric: 2.80% (30 June 2019: 2.78%) (continued)

3,586 WEC Energy Group Inc 314 010
5,963 ¥cel Energy Inc 373 0.12
8,437 2.80
Electrical Components & Equipment: 0.22% (30 June 2019: 0.22%)
2,608 AMETEK Inc. 233 0.08
6,792 Emerson Electric Co 421 0.14
654 0.22
Electronics: 1.06% (30 June 2019: 0.98%)
3,510 Agilent Technologies Inc 310 0.10
3,364 Amphenal Corp 322 011
1,487 FLIR Systems Inc &0 0.02
3,370 Fortive Corp 28 0.08
7.974 Haneywell International Inc 1,154 038
2,126 Keysight Technalogies In 214 0.07
272 Mettler-Toledo International Inc 219 0.07
1,266 PerkinElmer Inc 124 004
1,187 Roper Technologies Inc 461 015
T Waters Corp 117 Ou04
3,719 1.06
Engineering & Construction: 0.04% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)
1479 Jacobs Engineering Group Inc 125 004
125 0.04
Entertainment: 0.02% (30 June 2019: Nil)
1,615 Live Nation Entertainment Inc T2 002
T2 0.02
Environmental Control: 0.21% (30 lune 2019: 0.23%)
2,388 Republic Services Inc 136 0.06
d.414 Waste Management Inc 457 015
663 0.21
ETF: 0.70% (30 June 2019: 8.11%)
7,500 Vanguard S&P 500 ETF 2,126 0.70
2,126 0.70
Food: 1.19% (30 June 2019: 1.14%)
1,924 Campbell Soup Co as 0.03
5,537 Conagra Brands Inc 1a5 0.06
6,891 General Mills Inc 425 014
1,676 Hershey Co 217 0.07
3,186 Harmel Foods Corp 154 0.05
1,296 1 M Smucker Co 137 0.05
2,844 Kellogg Co 188 0.06
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Food: 1.19% (30 June 2019: 1.14%) {continued)

7,084 Kraft Heinz Co 226 007
2,938 Eroger Co ENE] 0.10
1,660 Lamb Weston Holdings Inc 106 004
1,406 McCormick & Co Inc 252 008
16,228 Mondelez International Inc 830 0.27
5771 Sysco Corp 315 0,10
3,346 Tyson Foods Inc ClA 200 0.07
3,643 1.19
Forest Products & Paper: 0.05% (30 June 2019: 0.07%:)
4,468 International Paper Co 157 005
157 0.05
Gas: 0.08% (30 June 2019: 0.09%)
1,391 Atmos Energy Corp 139 0.05
4,352 MiSource Inc 99 003
238 0.08
Hand & Machine Tools: 0.11% (30 June 2019: 0.11%)
618 Snap-an Inc i3 0.03
1,752 Stanley Black & Decker Inc 244 008
330 011
Healtheare Products: 3.35% (30 June 2019: 3.16%)

20,109 Abbott Laborataories 1,839 06l
511 ABIOMED Imc 123 0.04
815 Align Technology Inc 234 0.07

5. 785 Baxter International Inc 493 016

16,242 Boston Scientific Corp 570 019

559 Cooper Cos Inc 159 0.05
7,154 Danaher Corp 1,265 0.42
2,491 DENTSPLY SIRONA Inc 110 0.04
7,045 Edwards Lifesciencas Corp 487 016
1,623 Henry Schein Inc a5 0.03
2,935 Halogic Inc 187 0.06

966 IDEXX Laboratories Inc 319 011
1,326 Intuitive Surgical Inc 756 0.25
1,645 Reshled Inc 316 0,10

966 STERIS Plc 148 0.05
3,665 Stryker Carp 660 022

528 Teleflex Inc 192 006
4,490 Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc 1,627 0.54
1,032 Varian Medical Systems Inc 126 004

837 West Pharmaceutical Services Inc 190 006
2,351 Zimmer Biomet Holdings Inc 281 009

10,152 3.35
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Healthcare Services: 2.01% (30 June 2019: 1.75%)

2,866 Anthem Inc 754 0.25
6,584 Centene Corp 418 014
969 DaVita Inc 77 0.03
2,994 HCA Healthcare Inc 291 010
1,503 Humana Inc L 019
2,019 lqvia Haldings Inc 286 0.09
1,105 Laboratory Corp of America Holdings 184 0.06
1,520  Quest Diagnostics Inc 173 0.06
10,782 UnitedHealth Group Inc 3,181 106
a3 Universal Health Services Inc g2 0.03
6,029 201
Home Builders: 0.20% (30 June 2019: 0.13%)

3,761 DR Horton Inc 209 007
3,122 Lennar Corp 192 0.06
EL] MVR Inc 127 004
2,866 PulteGroup Inc a8 0.03
626 0.20

Home Furnishings: 0.05% (30 June 2019: 0.05%)
1,504 Leggett & Platt Inc 53 0.02

707 Whirlpool Corp az 0.03

145 0.05
Household Products & Wares: 0.39% (30 June 2019: 0.35%)

947 Avery Dennison Corp 108 004
2,795 Church & Dwight Co Inc 216 0.07
1,422 Clorox Co 312 010
3,872 Kimberly-Clark Corp 547 0.18

1,183 039

Housewares: 0.02% (30 June 2019: 0.02%)
4,339 Mewell Brands Inc &9 002
69 0.02

Insurance: 2.82% (30 June 2019: 3.15%)

8,157 Aflac Inc 294 010
3571 Allstate Carp 346 011
9,792 American International Group Inc 305 0.10
2,627 Aon Pk 506 017
2,156 Arthur | Gallagher & Co 210 007
678 Assurant Inc TO 0.02
22,101 Berkshire Hathaway Inc O B 3,945 1.30
1,715 Cincinnati Financial Corp 110 004
1,113 Globe Life Inc &3 0.03
4,071 Hartford Financial Services Group Inc 157 005
2,197 Lincoln Mational Corp Bl 0.03
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Insurance: 2.82% (30 June 2019: 3.15%) (continued)

2,752 Loews Corp 94 003
5,800 Marsh & Mclennan Cos Inc 623 0.20
B.770 MetLife Inc 310 011
2,896 Principal Financial Group Inc 120 004
6,654 Progressive Corp 533 018
4,491 Prudential Financial Inc 274 oua
2,874 Travelers Cos Inc 328 011
2,313 Unum Group gL ool
1,605 W R Berkley Corp 92 003
8,529 2.82
Internet: 11.07% (30 June 2019: 8.18%)
3411 Alphabet Inc C1 A 4,837 160
3,325 Alphabet Inc C1 C 4,700 156
4,763 Amazon.com Inc 13,140 4.36
A65 Booking Holdings Inc T40 024
1,618 COW Carp 158 006
2,513 E*TRADE Financial Carp 115 Ou04
7,508 eBay Inc 394 013
1,540 Expedia Group Inc 127 004
632 F5 Networks Inc a7 003
27,336 Facebook Inc 6,208 2.05
5,000 Metfiix Inc 2,275 075
6,161 MortonLifelock inc 132 Ou04
8,920 Twitter Inc 266 .09
1,156 VeriSign Inc 239 008
33,458 11.07
Iron & Steel: 0.05% (30 June 2019: 0.06%)
3423 Mucor Corp 142 0.05
142 0.05
Leisure Time: 0.08% (30 June 2019: 0.20%)
5,386 Camival Corp pit:] 003
2,914 Morwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd 48 002
1,952 Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd a8 0.03
234 0.08
Lodging: 0.29% (30 June 2019: 0.33%)
3,152 Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc 232 008
3,820 Las Vegas 5ands Corp 174 0.06
3,060 Marriott International Inc 262 009
5.607 MGM Resorts International a4 0.03
1,10 Wynn Resorts Ltd B2 003
Ba4d 0.29
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Machinery - Diversified: 0.60% (30 June 2019: 0.65%)

3,557 Deere & Co 559 019
1,636 Daver Corp 158 0.05
1,479 Flowserve Carp 42 001
857 IDEX Corp 135 004
3,931 Ingersoll Rand Inc 111 0.04
4,628 Otis Worldwide Corp 263 0.09
1317 Rockwell Automation Inc 281 0.10
2,055 Woestinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp 118 Ou04
2,045 ¥ylem Inc 133 0.04
1,800 0.60
Machinery Construction & Mining: 0.26% (30 June 2019: 0.28%)
6,153 Caterpillar Inc 778 0.26
778 0.26
Media: 1.91% (30 June 2019: 2.11%)
1,713 Charter Communications Inc Cl A 874 0.29
51,780 Comcast Corp Cl A 2,018 0.67
1,819 Discovery Inc Cl A EL:S 001
3,596 Discovery Inc €I C &9 0.02
2,923 DISH Metwork Corp 101 0.03
3,895 Fox Corp Cl A 104 0.03
1,811 Fox Corp CI B 49 0.02
4,421 Mews Corp Cl A 52 0.02
1,384 Mews Corp Cl B i7 0.01
6,146 ViacomCB5 Inc C1 B 143 0.05
20,535 Walt Disney Co 2,290 0.76
5,755 181
Mining: 0.25% (30 June 2019: 0.18%)
16,507 Freeport-McMoRan Inc 191 0.06
9,124 Mewmont Corp 563 0.19
754 0.25
Miscellaneous Manufacturing: 1.02% (30 June 2019: 1.24%)
6,539 3IM Co 1,020 0.34
1,536 A 0 Smith Corp 72 0.02
4,547 Eaton Corp Plc 398 0.13
99,441 General Electric Co 679 022
3,268 Nlinois Tool Works Inc 571 019
1,454 Parker-Hannifin Corp 267 0.08
2,588 Textron Inc &5 0.03
3,092 1.02
Office & Business Equipment: 0.06% (30 lune 2019: 0.02%)
2,082 ¥erox Holdings Corp 32 0.01
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Office & Business Equipment: 0.06% (30 June 2019: 0.02%) (continued)

a0 Zebra Technologies Corp 155 005
187 0.06

Oil & Gas: 2.28% (30 lune 2019: 3.66%)
4,291 Apache Corp 1] 002
4,531 Cabot Oil & Gas Corp 78 003

21,225 Chevron Corp 1,894 0.63
2,236 Concho Resources Inc 115 004

12,192 ConocoPhillips 512 017
4,351 Devan Energy Corp 49 002
1,794 Diamondback Energy Inc 75 002
6,617 EOG Resources Inc 335 011

48,068 Exxon Mobil Corp 2,150 071
2,968 Hess Corp 154 0.05
1,693 HallyFrontier Carp 49 0.02
8,985 Marathon Oil Carp 55 002
7.392 Marathon Petroleum Corp 276 009
5453 Maoble Energy Inc 49 002

10,232 Occidental Petroleum Corp 187 006
4,964 Phillips 6& 357 012
1,874 Fioneer Natural Resources Co 183 0.06
4,635 Valero Energy Corp 273 009

6,849 2.28
Oil & Gas Services: 0.20% (30 June 2019: 0.35%)
7447 Baker Hughes Co 115 004
9,973 Halliburton Co 129 0.04
4,414 Mational Ditwell Varco Inc Ed 002
15,777 Schlumberger NV 290 0,10
588 0.20
Packaging & Containers: 0.18% (30 June 2019: 0.18%)
3,706 Ball Carp 258 009
1,078 Packaging Corp of America 108 004
1,770  Sealed Air Corp L1:] 0.02
2,947 Westrock Co 83 003
507 0.18
Pharmaceuticals: 5.95% (30 June 2019: 5.06%)

20,035 Abb\ie Inc 1,967 0.65
1,688 AmerisourceBergen Corp 170 0.06
3,352 Becton Dickinson and Co 802 0.27

25,723 Bristol-Myers Squibb Co 1,513 0.50
3,319 Cardinal Health Inc 173 006
4,195 Cigna Corp 787 0.26

14,860 CV5 Health Carp 955 032
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Pharmaceuticals: 5.95% (20 June 2019: 5.06%) (continued)

1,049 DreeCom Inc 425 014
9,574 Eli Lilly and Co 1,572 052
29,951 lohnson & Johnson 4,213 1.40
1,840 McKesson Corp 282 009
28,695 Merck & Co Inc 2,219 073
5877 Miylan NV a5 003
63,150 Pfizer Inc 2,065 0.68
5,399 Zoetis Inc 740 0.24
17,988 5.95
Pipelines: 0.25% (30 June 2019: 0.37%)
22,110 Kinder Morgan Inc 335 011
5,001 OMNEQK Inc 166 0.05
13,792 Williams Cos Inc 262 009
763 0.25
Real Estate: 0.06% (30 lune 2019: 0.06%)
3,810 CBRE Group Inc 172 006
172 0.06
Real Estate Investment Trust: 2.69% (30 June 2019: 2.63%)
1,435 Alexandria Real Estate Equities Inc 233 008
5.040 American Tower Corp 1,303 0.43
1,692 Apartment Investment and Management Co .18 0.02
1,600 AvalonBay Communities Inc 247 0.08
1,643 Boston Properties Inc 148 0.05
4,738 Cronem Castle International Corp 793 0.26
3,050 Digital Realty Trust Inc 433 014
4,188 Duke Realty Carp 148 0.05
1,006 Equinix Inc Ta7 023
3,977 Equity Residential 234 008
744 Essex Property Trust Inc 171 0.06
1,468 Extra Space Storage Inc 136 0.05
200 Federal Realty Investment Trust [:1:] 002
6,119 Healthpeak Properties Inc 169 0.06
8,014 Haost Hotels & Resorts Inc 86 003
3,273 Iron Mountain Inc &5 0.03
4917 Eimco Realty Corp &3 002
1,300 Mid-America Apartment Communities Inc 149 0.05
8,397 Prologis Inc T84 0.26
1,709 Public Storage 328 011
3,904 Realty Income Corp 232 0.08
1,928 Regency Centers Corp 1] 003
1,269 SBA Communications Corp are 013
3,476 Simon Property Group Inc 238 0.08
a7o 5L Green Realty Corp 43 001
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Real Estate Investment Trust: 2.69% (30 June 2019: 2.63%) (continued)

3,352 UDR Inc 125 004
4,241 Ventas Inc 155 0.05
1,803 Vornado Realty Trust (1] 002
4,746 Welltower Inc 246 008
8,483 Weyerhasuser Co 191 0.06
8,114 2.69
Retail: 5.22% (30 June 2019: 4.84%)

786 Advance Auto Parts Inc 112 Ou04
265 AutoZone Inc 299 0.10
2,584 Best Buy Co Inc 226 007
1,850 CarMax Inc 166 0.05
292 Chipotle Mexican Grill Inc N 0.10
5,019 Costoo Whaolesale Corp 1,522 0.50
1,477 Darden Restaurants Inc 112 0.04
2,862 Dallar General Corp 545 018
2,697 Dallar Tree Inc 250 0.08
445 Domino's Pizza Inc 164 0.05
2420 Gap Inc 31 0ol
1,640 Genuine Parts Co 143 0.05
12,227 Home Depat Inc 3,063 101
1,793 Kohl's Corp 37 001
2,653 L Brands Inc 40 0.01
8,583 Lowe's Cas Inc 1,160 038
8453 McDonald's Corp 1,559 052
244 O'Reilly Automotive Inc 356 012
4,040 Ross Stores Inc 344 011
13,280  Starbucks Corp 977 0.32
5684 Target Corp 682 023
1,242 Tiffany & Co 151 0.05
13,618 TI¥ Cos Inc G6E9 0.23
1,315 Tractor Supply Co 173 006
G40 Ulta Salon Cosmetics & Fragrance Inc 130 004
8377 Walgreens Boots Alliance Inc 355 012
16,098 Walmart Inc 1,928 064
3,422 ¥Yum! Brands Inc 297 0.10
15,818 5.22

Savings & Loans: 0.02% (30 June 2019: 0.02%)
4828 People's United Financial Inc 56 002
56 0.02

Semiconductors: 4.65% (30 June 2019: 3.32%)
13,315 Advanced Micro Devices Inc F01 023
4,188 Analog Devices Inc 514 017
10,419 Applied Materials Inc 630 021
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Semiconductors: 4.65% (30 June 2019: 3.32%) (continued)

4,545 Broadcom Inc 1,434 0.47
48,134 Intel Corp 2,880 0.95
A0 IPG Photonics Corp &5 002
1,763 ELA Corp 343 011
1,650 Lam Research Corp 534 018
3,031 Maxim Integrated Products Inc 184 0.06
2,789 Microchip Technology Inc 294 0.10
12,644 Micron Technology Inc 651 022
6,993 MVIDIA Corp 2,657 088
1,304 Qorvo Inc 144 0.05
12,789 QUALCOMM Inc 1,166 0.39
1,897 Skyworks Solutions Inc 243 0.08
10,434 Texas Instruments Inc 1,325 044
2,764 Hilinx Inc 72 009
14,037 4.65

Shipbuilding: 0.03% (30 June 2019: 0.03%)
460 Huntington Ingalls Industries Inc &0 0.03
B0 0.03

Software: 10.32% (30 June 2019: 6.84%)

8,759 Activision Blizzard Inc 665 022
5477 Adobe Inc 2,384 079
1,845 Akamai Technalogies Inc 198 007
977 AMNSYS Inc 285 009
2,492 Autodesk Inc 596 0.20
1,305 Broadridge Financial Solutions Inc 165 0.05
3,174 Cadence Design Systems Inc ans 0.10
3,480 Cerner Corp 237 0.08
1,319 Citrix Systems Inc 195 0.06
3,282 Electronic Arts Inc 433 014
7.024 Fidelity Mational Information Services Inc 942 031
6,393 Fiserv Inc 624 021
2,965 Intuit Inc a7s 0.29
a71 lack Henry & Associates Inc 160 0.05
86,212 Microsoft Corp 17,546 582
966 MISCI Inc 3 011
23,662 Oracle Corp 1,308 0.43
3,629 Paychex Inc 275 009
548 Paycom Software Inc 170 0.06
10,243 salesforce.com Inc 1,919 064
2,168 ServiceMow Inc 878 0.29
1,714 Synopsys Inc 334 011
1,295 Take-Two Interactive Software Inc 181 0.06
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Fair Value % of Total
Mominal UsSD'000 Net Assets
Common Stock: 97.15% (30 June 2019; 96.20%) (continued)
United States: 94.82% (30 June 2019: 93.84%) (continued)
Software: 10.32% (30 June 2019: 6.84%) (continued)

452 Tyler Technologies Inc 157 005
31,157 10.32
Telecommunications: 2.90% (30 June 2019: 2.89%)

611 Arista Networks Inc 128 004
£1,000 ATET Inc 2,449 081
11,229 CenturyLink Inc 113 0.04
48,212 Cisco Systems Inc 2,249 0.74

8,629 Corning Inc 223 007
3,787 Juniper Networks Inc 86 003
1,933 Motorola Solutions Inc 271 009
4,355 T Maobile Us Inc 1 0.00
6,261 T Mabile Us Inc (woting rights) 652 0.22
47,043 Verizon Communications Inc 2,593 0.86
8,765 290
Textiles: 0.02% (30 June 2019: 0.03%)
676 Mohawk Industries Inc &9 002
69 0.02
Toys & Games: 0.04% (30 June 2019: 0.04%)
1448 Hasbro Inc 109 004
109 0.04
Transportation: 1.46% (30 June 2019: 1.39%)
1,530 CH Robinson Worldwide Inc 121 004
8,702 C5X Corp 607 0.20
1,892 Expeditors International of Washington Inc 144 005
2,732 FedEx Carp 383 0.13
959 1B Hunt Transport Services Inc 115 004
1,080  Kansas City Southern 161 0.05
2,912 Morfolk Southern Corp 511 0.17
1,073 Old Dominion Freight Line Inc 182 0.06
7,714 Union Pacific Corp 1,304 0.43
8,005 United Parcel Service Inc Cl B 230 0.29
4,418 1.46
Water: 0.09% (30 June 2019: 0.07%)
2,058 American Water Works Co Inc 265 009
265 0.09
Total United States 286,531 94.82
Total Common Stock 293,552 §97.15
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Series 2018 S&P 500 Fund

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (unaudited) (continued)
As at 30 June 2020

Open Futures Contracts® 0.08% (30 June 2019: 0.05%)

Mo of Average cost Unrealizsed Gain % of Total
contracts price UsD 000 Met Assets
58 123,250 S&P 500 E-Minl September 2020 251 0.08

Total Unrealised Gain on Futures Contract 751 0.08

*The broker for Futures Contracts s Mizuho Securities Singapore.

Open Forward Contracts (0.21)% (30 June 2019: 0.00%)

Settlement Amount Amount Unrealised Gain/f{Loss) % of Total
Date Bought Sold UsD'000 Met Assets
15/7/2020  IPY 258,168,807 USD 2,407,016 {13) 0.00
15/7/2020 JPY 12,931,219,095 USD 120,524,081 (B45) (0.22)
15/7/2020  IPY 255,773,205 USD 2,393,928 {23) (0,01}
15/7/2020 USD 7,206,320 IPY 773,270,682 37 0.01
15/7/2020 USD 3,038 862 JPY 325,670,226 20 0.01

Unrealised gain on Open Forward Foreign
Currency Exchange Contracts 57 0.02

Unrealised loss on Open Forward Foreign
Currency Exchange Contracts {681) (0.23)

Met unrealised loss on Open Forward Foreign
Currency Exchange Contracts [624) (0.21})
Total Financial Derivative Instruments {373) (0.13)
Fair Value % of Total
UsD'000 Met Assets
Total investments at fair value through profit or loss 293,179 97.02
Cash and cash equivalent 7,065 2.34
Cash at broker 2,421 0.80
Other assets and liabilities {491) (0.16)
Met assets attributable to equity unitholders 302,178 100.00
155
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2020 12 31

2018 S&P 500

2020 12 31
4 199,048 21,848
149 16
3,842 422
970 106
22 2
204,031 22,394
4 (82) )
9 (146) (16)
(43) ®)
12 (72) ®)
11 (60) Q)
(40) ()
(92) (10)
(535) (59)
203,496 22,336
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2020 30

2018 S&P 500

2020 30
4 293,860 32,254
1 0

385 42

7,069 776

2,421 266

18 2

303,754 33,340

4 (681) (75)
9 (330) (36)
(111) (12)

12 (116) (13)
11 (141) (15)
(30) (©)

(167) (18)

(1,576) (173)

302,178 33,167
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2020 2020 12 31

2018 S&P 500

2020 12 31
7 67,815 7,443
1,893 208
5 1
69,713 7,652
9 (146) (16)
12 (106) 12)
11 (70) ®)
(10) €Y
©) ©
13 (1) ()
10 ) (O]
(€] ®)
(407) (45)
14 (2,488) (273)
66,818 7,334
(517) 7
66,301 7,277
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13

10
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2018 S&P 500

2019 121 31
16,192 1,777
1,144 126
©) o
17,328 1,902
(82) ©))
©)) o
(44) ®
© o

©) o

® ©

® o

* @
(29) ®
(194) (21)
17,134 1,881
(373) 41
16,761 1,840
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2020 12 31

2018 S&P 500

2020 12 31
302,178 33,167
(164,983) (18,109)
(164,98:_%) (18,105_9)
66,301 7,277
203,496 22,336
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2019 2019 12 31

2018 S&P 500

2019 12 31

28,206 3,096
82,669 9,074
82,66; 9,07;
16,761 1,840
127,636 14,009
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2020 12 31

2018 S&P 500

2020 12 31
66,301 7,277
2,488 273
(1,893) (208)
® o
517 57
67,408 7,399
94,812 10,407
(599) (66)
O] ©)
(441) (48)
1,451 159
162,627 17,850
(517) G7)
2,129 234
5 1
164,244 18,027
(164,983) (18,109)
(2,488) 73)
(167,471) (18,382)
(3,227) (354)
7,069 776
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2019 2019 12 31

2018 S&P 500

2019 12 31
16,761 1,840
(1,144) (126)

8 1

373 41
15,998 1,756
(96,734) (10,618)
442 49
(70) ®

® o
(549) (60)
(80,918) (8.882)
(373) (41)
1,068 117
® (€))

(80,231) (8.806)
82,669 9,074
82,669 9,074

2,438 268
973 107
3,411 374
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EEA AIFM

14

225 2016 TOPIX

201612

2016 225

BNP

2016 TOPIX 2016

2016 225
11 27

JPX

TOPIX
JPX 400

FDI

2014 12 2018 25

AIFMD
NON-EEA AlIF

2020 12 31
2016 JPX 400 2016
2018 S&P 500

201609
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400
2018 S&P 500
10
BNP
BNP
10
2016 JPX 400 2016 10 14
2016 10 24 2018 S&P 500 2018
225 500
500 TOPIX
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2020

2020

2020

b)

@

IFRS IFRS
FDI

(ii)

J.P.

NAV

(iv)

180/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

©
FDI  FDI FDI
FDI
@
FDI
FDI
©
Q)

@

181/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

Q)

O

2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500
2018 S&P 500 2018 S&P 500
(ii)
FDI

O
@
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2020 12 31 2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018
S&P 500 2020 12 31 2016 JPX

400 O
(i) 1AS 32

O)

15

m

Q)

2020 30
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2020 2020 12 31
2016 TOPIX
3,992,904 3,992,904
7,297 7,297
4,000,201 4,000,201
2016 225
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2016 JPX

2016 TOPIX

400

2020
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15,241,943 15,241,943
27,821 27,821
15,269,764 15,269,764
198,081 198,081
98 98
- 869 869
198,179 869 199,048
(82) 82)
(82) (82)
7,390,999 7,390,999
3,776 3,776
7,394,775 7,394,775
30
6,197,618 6,197,618
6,197,618 6,197,618
(8,715) (8,715)
(8.,715) (8,715)
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2016 225

18,561,403 18,561,403
18,561,403 18,561,403
(5,490) (5,490)
(5,490) (5,490)
2018 S&P 500
293,552 293,552
251 251
57 57
293,803 57 293,860
(681) (681)
(681) (681)
2016 JPX 400
10,733,066 10,733,066
10,733,066 10,733,066
(7,961) (7,961)
(7,961) (7,961)
IFRS 13
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5.
6.
2020 12 31
2020 12 31

2016 TOPIX 263,283 7,297
2016 225 803,232 27,821
2016 JPX 400 167,738 3,776
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2020 12 31

2018 S&P 500 1,152 98
2020 12 31
2020 12 31
2018 S&P 500 787
2020 30
2020 30
2016 TOPIX 242,439 (8,715)
2016 225 288,321 (5,490)
2016 JPX 400 241,004 (7,961)
2020 30
2018 S&P 500 2,649 251
2020 30
2020 30
2018 S&P 500 (624)
7.
2016 TOPIX 2020 1 2020 12 31
(39,574)
11,566
726,056
16,012

714,060
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2016 225 2020 1 2020 12 31

567,576
101,356
2,971,776

33,311

3,674,019

2018 S&P 500 2020 1 2020 12 31

42,511
1,074
22,997

1,233

67,815

2016 JPX 400 2020 1 2020 12 31

252,215
17,730
1,432,140

11,738

1,713,823

2016 TOPIX 2019 1 2019 12 31

(45,190)
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2016 225

2018 S&P 500

2016 JPX

400
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31,647
1,077,037

1,571

1,065,065

2019 1 2019 12 31

443,713
60,993
2,170,144

487

2,675,337

2019 1 2019 12 31

7,616
238
8,748

(410)

16,192

2019 1 2019 12 31

(170,713)
27,491
1,866,840

97

1,723,715
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2016 JPX 400

2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018 S&P 500
NAV
NAV
NAV
2020 12 31 2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018
S&P 500 2020 12 31
2016 JPX 400
2020 2020 12 31
2016 TOPIX 2020 12 31
4,100,000 12,801
2,972
(1,760,000) (3,000)
2,342,972 9,891
4,243,885 17,751
1.81 1.79
2016 225 2020 12 31
366,000 487,023
170,791
(385,000) (46,800)
151,791 440,223

4,161,716 11,934,383
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27.42 27.11
2018 S&P 500 2020 12 31
158,415 1,182,422
304,100 383,600
(341,800) (1,292,700)
120,715 273,322
169,696 33,800
1.41 0.12
2016 JPX 400 2020 12 31
789,400
(320,000)
469,400
7,568,628
16.12
2020 30 2016 TOPIX 2016 225 2018
S&P 500 2020 30
2016 JPX 400 2019
2020 30
2016 TOPIX 2020 30
6,974,500 38,891
(2,874,500) (26,000)
4,100,000 12,891
6,408,489 19,882
1.56 1.54
2016 225 2020 30
1,179,700 3,023
647,600 484,000

(1,461,300)
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2018 S&P 500

2016 JPX 400
9.
@ @
2016 TOPIX
) 2016 TOPIX
0.02
®
2016 TOPIX

©

NAV
0.04
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366,000 487,023
8,153,365 10,731,789
22.28 22.04
2020 30
25,415 2,223
499,600 2,618,100
(366,600) (1,437,901)
158,415 1,182,422
185,882 116,296
1.17 0.10
2020 30
1,127,400
(338,000)
789,400
10,968,999
13.90
2016 JPX 400 2016 225
2018 S&P 500
2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV 0.02
2018 S&P 500
2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 250
NAV 0.07 () NAV
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250
)
Q)
0.11
500
©
0.05
11,375,533
10.
11.
2016 TOPIX
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500 NAV 0.06
NAV 500 NAV 0.05
10,000,000
2018 S&P 500
NAV 250 NAV
() NAV 250 500
NAV 0.10 () NAV
NAV 0.09
100,000
NAV
2016 TOPIX 6,833,011 2019 12 31 9,203,798
6,868,301 2020 30 11,620,380
2016 225 12,691,986 2019 12 31 17,220,488
12,731,428 2020 30 17,965,752
2018 S&P 500 145,899 2019 12 31 81,571
145,899 2020 30 330,303
2016 JPX 400 9,057,979 2019 12 31
9,045,093 2020 30 15,314,984
2,500
2016 TOPIX 140,935 2019 12 31 191,700
2020 30
2016 225 140,935 2019 12 31 191,700
2020 30
2018 S&P 500 4,409 2019 12 31 4,396
2020 30
2016 JPX 400 140,935 2019 12 31 191,700
2020 30
2016 JPX 400 2016 225
() NAV 100
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NAV 0.07 ()
250 NAV 0.
250 500
NAV 500
2018 S&P 500
100
NAV 100 250
0.06 () NAV 250
NAV 0.05 (
NAV 0.04
6,000
2016 TOPIX
4,390,950 4,355,248
2016 225
7,948,769 5,960,865
2018 S&P 500
43,682 60,289
2016 JPX 400
5,383,441 4,355,248
12.
2016 TOPIX 2016 JPX 400
120,000

2018 S&P 500
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06

NAV

)

2020

2020

NAV 100
() NAV
NAV 0.05 ()
NAV 0.04
720,000
() NAV
0.07 ()
NAV
500
NAV 500
2,496,368 2019 12 31
30 10,588,880
1,523,181 2019 12 31
30 16,417,546
69,696 2019 12 31
2020 30 141,100
1,067,616 2019 12 31
2020 30 12,447,828
2016 225
NAV 0.01
NAV 0.01
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1,000
2016 TOPIX 2019 12 31 6,617,038
3,938,800 2020 30 30,609,634
2016 225 13,919,905 2019 12 31
1,896,761 1,452,410 2020 30 3,066,598
2018 S&P 500 106,407 2019 12 31 9,332
71,847 2020 30 115,903
2016 JPX 400 3,477,420 2019 12 31
522,051 1,344,577 2020 30 4,043,884
13.
JPX 400
225 500 TOPIX
2016 JPX 400 2016 225
NAV 0.02 100,000
2018 S&P 500 NAV
0.01 2016 TOPIX () NAV 100
NAV 0.0 () NAV 100
500 NAV 0.005 () NAV
500 1000 NAV 0.003 ()
NAV 1000 3000 NAV 0.002
() NAV 3000 5000 NAV
0.001 () NAV 5000
NAV 0.0005 100,000
2018 S&P 500
2016 TOPIX 261,029 2019 12 31 507,250
2020 30
2016 225 1,818,918 2019 12 31
2,412,487 2020 30
2018 S&P 500 10,918 2019 12 31 7,717
2020 30
2016 JPX 400 1,140,529 2019 12 31

2,897,630 2020 30
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14.
11
2020 12 31
2016 2016 2018 2016
TOPIX 225 S&P 500 JPX 400
2020 2,488
2020 50,985 46,231 97,630
2020 11 113 55,853
51,098 102,084 2,488 97,630
2019 12 31
2016 2016 2018 2016
TOPIX 225 S&P 500 JPX 400
2019 97,783 152,882
2019 11 465 457 -
98,248 457 152,882
15.

74
50
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16.
10 11
17.
2020 30 2019 12 31
18.
COVID-19 2019 12

COVID-19
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19.

20.

2020 12 31 2021 23
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2018 S&P 500

2020 12 31
96.07% (2020 30 97.15%)
0.03% (2020 30 0.03%)
0.03% (2020 30 0.03%)
247  Everest Re Group Ltd 58 0.03
58 0.03
58 0.03
1.24% (2020 30 1.30%)
0.11% (2020 30 0.08%)
1,667  Aptiv Plc 217 0.11
217 0.11
0.49% (2020 30 0.51%)
3,912  Accenture Plc 1,021 0.49
1,021 0.49
0.03% (2020 30 0.04%)
568 Allegion Plc 66 0.03
66 0.03
0.48% (2020 30 0.46%)
8,312 Medtronic Plc 974 0.48
974 0.48
(2020 30 0.10%)
0.11% (2020 30 0.08%)
1,483 Trane Technologies Plc 215 0.11
215 0.11
0.02% (2020 30 0.03%)
843  Perrigo Co Plc 38 0.02
38 0.02
2,531 1.24
0.39% (2020 30 0.37%)
0.17% (2020 30 0.15%)
921 Garmin Ltd 110 0.05
2,042 TE Connectivity Ltd 247 0.12
357 0.17
0.22% (2020 30 0.22%)

2,787  Chubb Ltd 429 0.22
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3,241

2,301

0.70% (2020
0.42% (2020 30
Linde Plc

0.10% (2020
IHS Markit Ltd

30

0.63%)

0.43%)

30

0.11%)
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429
786

854
854

207

0.22
0.39

0.42
0.42

0.10
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96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
0.70% (2020 30 0.63%) ( )
0.03% (2020 30  0.02%)

1,027 Pentair Plc 55 0.03
55 0.03

0.08% (2020 30 )
796  Willis Towers Watson Plc 168 0.08
168 0.08

0.01% (2020 30 0.01%)
2,609  TechnipFMC Plc 25 0.01
25 0.01
0.06% (2020 30 0.06%)
9,686  Amcor Plc 114 0.06
114 0.06
1,423 0.70
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%)
0.07% (2020 30 0.07%)
2,409  Interpublic Group of Cos Inc 57 0.03
1,328 Omnicom Group Inc 83 0.04
140 0.07
1.48% (2020 30 1.65%)

3,277 Boeing Co 701 0.34
1,435 General Dynamics Corp 214 0.11
2,410 Howmet Aerospace Inc 69 0.03
1,297 L3Harris Technologies Inc 245 0.12
1,520 Lockheed Martin Corp 540 0.27
957  Northrop Grumman Corp 292 0.14
9,378 Raytheon Technologies Corp 671 0.33
228  Teledyne Technologies Inc 89 0.04
336  TransDigm Group Inc 208 0.10
3,029 1.48

0.71% (2020 30 0.76%)

11,476  Altria Group Inc 471 0.23
3,436 Archer-Daniels-Midland Co 173 0.09
9,617  Philip Morris International Inc 796 0.39

1,440 0.71

0.25% (2020 30 0.20%)
764  Alaska Air Group Inc 40 0.02
3,772 American Airlines Group Inc 59 0.03
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3,938
3,645
1,807

2,151

Delta Air Lines Inc
Southwest Airlines Co

United Airlines Holdings Inc

0.73% (2020 30

Hanesbrands Inc

0.59%)
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158 0.08
170 0.08
78 0.04
505 0.25
31 0.02
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96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
0.73% (2020 30 0.59%) ( )

7,749  NIKE Inc 1,096 0.54
439  PVH Corp 41 0.02
298 Ralph Lauren Corp 31 0.02

1,713  Tapestry Inc 53 0.03

1,164  Under Armour Inc 20 0.01

1,202  Under Armour Inc CI C 18 0.01

1,975 VF Corp 169 0.08

1,459 0.73

2.07% (2020 30 0.41%)
914  Cummins Inc 208 0.10
24,130 Ford Motor Co 212 0.10

7,778  General Motors Co 324 0.16

2,139  PACCAR Inc 185 0.09

4,683 Tesla Inc 3,304 1.62

4,233 2.07
0.03% (2020 30 0.03%)
1,510 BorgWarner Inc 58 0.03
58 0.03
4.53% (2020 30 4._21%)
47,010 Bank of America Corp 1,425 0.70
5,034 Bank of New York Mellon Corp 214 0.11
12,857  Citigroup Inc 793 0.39

2,637 Citizens Financial Group Inc 94 0.05
859  Comerica Inc 48 0.02

4,399 Fifth Third Bancorp 121 0.06

1,074  First Republic Bank 158 0.08

2,125 Goldman Sachs Group Inc 560 0.28

6,282 Huntington Bancshares Inc 79 0.04

18,823  JPMorgan Chase & Co 2,391 1.17

6,030 KeyCorp 99 0.05
792  M&T Bank Corp 101 0.05

8,826 Morgan Stanley 605 0.30

1,285 Northern Trust Corp 120 0.06

2,616  PNC Financial Services Group Inc 390 0.19

5,931 Regions Financial Corp 96 0.05

2,179  State Street Corp 159 0.08
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320
8,325
8,465

25,531
1,013

SVB Financial Group
Truist Financial Corp
US Bancorp

Wells Fargo & Co

Zions Bancorp NA
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124 0.06
399 0.20
394 0.19
771 0.38
44 0.02
9,185 4.53
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96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
1.54% (2020 30 1.61%)
1,127  Brown-Forman Corp 90 0.04
23,884 Coca-Cola Co 1,310 0.64

1,047 Constellation Brands Inc 229 0.11

1,162 Molson Coors Beverage Co 53 0.03

2,282  Monster Beverage Corp 211 0.10

8,534  PepsiCo Inc 1,266 0.62

3,159 1.54
1.52% (2020 30 2.04%)

1,351 Alexion Pharmaceuticals Inc 211 0.10

3,595  Amgen Inc 827 0.41
950 Biogen Inc 233 0.11
133  Bio-Rad Laboratories Inc 78 0.04

4,601 Corteva Inc 178 0.09

7,741  Gilead Sciences Inc 451 0.22
902  Illumina Inc 334 0.16

1,149  Incyte Corp 100 0.05
648  Regeneron Pharmaceuticals Inc 313 0.15

1,606 Vertex Pharmaceuticals Inc 380 0.19

3,105 1.52
0.38% (2020 30 0-36%)

5,031 Carrier Global Corp 190 0.09
858  Fortune Brands Home & Security Inc 74 0.04

4,470 Johnson Controls International Plc 208 0.10
385 Martin Marietta Materials Inc 109 0.05

1,616 Masco Corp 89 0.04
818 Vulcan Materials Co 121 0.06

791 0.38
1.25% (2020 30 1.22%)

1,365 Air Products and Chemicals Inc 373 0.18
657  Albemarle Corp 97 0.05
722  Celanese Corp 94 0.05

1,321 CF Industries Holdings Inc 51 0.03

4,580 Dow Inc 254 0.12

4,532  Dupont De Nemours Inc 322 0.16
837 Eastman Chemical Co 84 0.04

1,534 Ecolab Inc 332 0.16
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801 FMC Corp 92 0.05
660 International Flavors & Fragrances Inc 72 0.04
1,588 LyondellBasell Industries NV 146 0.07
2,130 Mosaic Co 49 0.02
1,459  PPG Industries Inc 210 0.10
505  Sherwin-Williams Co 371 0.18
2,547 1.25
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96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
2.23% (2020 30 2.25%)

2,648 Automatic Data Processing Inc 467 0.23
543  Cintas Corp 192 0.09
751  Equifax Inc 145 0.07
515  FleetCor Technologies Inc 141 0.07
551  Gartner Inc 88 0.04

1,848 Global Payments Inc 398 0.20
234  MarketAxess Holdings Inc 134 0.07
997  Moody"s Corp 289 0.14

2,205 Nielsen Holdings Plc 46 0.02

7,235 Paypal Holdings Inc 1,694 0.83
857 Quanta Services Inc 62 0.03
704  Robert Half International Inc 44 0.02

1,366  Rollins Inc 53 0.03

1,486  S&P Global Inc 488 0.24
445  United Rentals Inc 103 0.05

1,004 Verisk Analytics Inc 208 0.10

4,552 2.23
7.30% (2020 30 6.52%)

98,691 Apple Inc 13,094 6.43
3,302 Cognizant Technology Solutions Corp 271 0.13
1,571  Dxc Technology Co 40 0.02

832  Fortinet Inc 124 0.06

7,948 Hewlett Packard Enterprise 94 0.05

8,482 HP Inc 209 0.10

5,502 International Business Machines Corp 693 0.34
826  Leidos Holdings Inc 87 0.04

1,379  NetApp Inc 91 0.04

1,380 Seagate Technology Plc 86 0.04

1,879  Western Digital Corp 104 0.05

14,893 7.30
1.45% (2020 30 1.51%)

5,293 Colgate-Palmolive Co 453 0.22

1,399 Estee Lauder Cos Inc 372 0.18

15,312 Procter & Gamble Co 2,130 1.05

2,955 1.45
0.31% (2020 30 0.23%)
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1,283
3,545
1,729
248
278

Copart Inc
Fastenal Co
LKQ Corp
Pool Corp

WW Grainger Inc
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163 0.08
173 0.09
61 0.03
92 0.05
114 0.06
603 0.31
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96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
3.90% (2020 30  3.89%)

4,028 American Express Co 487 0.24
729  Ameriprise Financial Inc 142 0.07
876  BlackRock Inc 632 0.31

2,825 Capital One Financial Corp 279 0.14
667 Choe Global Markets Inc 62 0.03

9,212 Charles Schwab Corp 489 0.24

2,217  CME Group Inc 404 0.20

1,893 Discover Financial Services 171 0.08

1,683  Franklin Resources Inc 42 0.02

3,466 Intercontinental Exchange Inc 400 0.20

2,326 Invesco Ltd 41 0.02

5,433 Mastercard Inc 1,939 0.95
709 Nasdaq Inc 94 0.05
753  Raymond James Financial Inc 72 0.04

3,353  Synchrony Financial 116 0.06

1,398 T Rowe Price Group Inc 212 0.10

10,471  Visa Inc 2,289 1.12
2,539 Western Union Co 56 0.03
7,927 3.90

2.53% (2020 30 2.80%)

4,107 AES Corp 97 0.05

1,542  Alliant Energy Corp 79 0.04

1,527  Ameren Corp 119 0.06

3,065 American Electric Power Co Inc 255 0.13

3,364  CenterPoint Energy Inc 73 0.04

1,768 CMS Energy Corp 108 0.05

2,113  Consolidated Edison Inc 153 0.08

5,038 Dominion Energy Inc 379 0.19

1,195 DTE Energy Co 145 0.07

4,545  Duke Energy Corp 416 0.20

2,337 Edison International 147 0.07

1,236 Entergy Corp 123 0.06

1,401 Evergy Inc 78 0.04

2,117  Eversource Energy 183 0.09

6,024 Exelon Corp 254 0.12

3,351  FirstEnergy Corp 103 0.05
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12,098 NextEra Energy Inc 933 0.46
1,508 NRG Energy Inc 57 0.03

695 Pinnacle West Capital Corp 56 0.03
4,748 PPL Corp 134 0.07
3,124  Public Service Enterprise Group Inc 182 0.09
1,781  Sempra Energy 227 0.11
6,523  Southern Co 401 0.20
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1,948
3,245

1,421
3,693

1,890
1,847
810
2,082
4,333
1,144
147
648
832
383

800

883

1,299
2,401

1,251
3,017
3,775
911
1,734
705

96.07% (2020 30
93.71% (2020 30
2.53% (2020 30

94.82%) (
2.80%) (
WEC Energy Group Inc
Xcel Energy Inc

97.15%) (

)
)

)

0.23% (2020 30 0.22%)

AMETEK Inc

Emerson Electric Co

1.12% (2020 30 1.06%)
Agilent Technologies Inc
Amphenol Corp
FLIR Systems Inc
Fortive Corp
Honeywell International Inc
Keysight Technologies Inc
Mettler-Toledo International Inc
Roper Technologies Inc
Vontier Corp

Waters Corp

0.04% (2020

Jacobs Engineering Group Inc

0.03% (2020 30 0.02%)

Live Nation Entertainment Inc

0.20% (2020 30 0.21%)
Republic Services Inc

Waste Management Inc

1.05% (2020 30 1.19%)
Campbell Soup Co
Conagra Brands Inc
General Mills Inc
Hershey Co
Hormel Foods Corp

J M Smucker Co

30

0.04%)

212/270

179 0.09
216 0.11
5,097 2.53
172 0.08
297 0.15
469 0.23
224 0.11
242 0.12
36 0.02
147 0.07
922 0.45
151 0.07
168 0.08
279 0.14
28 0.01
95 0.05
2,292 1.12
87 0.04
87 0.04
65 0.03
65 0.03
125 0.06
283 0.14
408 0.20
60 0.03
109 0.05
222 0.11
139 0.07
81 0.04
81 0.04



1,571
4,001
4,782

904
1,536

Kellogg Co

Kraft Heinz Co

Kroger Co

Lamb Weston Holdings Inc

McCormick & Co InMD
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98 0.05
139 0.07
152 0.07

71 0.03
147 0.07
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8,832
3,145
1,816

2,427

777
2,366

335
989

10,945
279
443

3,154
8,842
303
3,904
1,350
3,849
1,587
527
726
691
895
527
2,019
288
2,447
564
457

96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) (
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) (
1.05% (2020 30 1.19%) ( )
Mondelez International Inc
Sysco Corp
Tyson Foods Inc
0.06% (2020 30 0.05%)
International Paper Co
0.07% (2020 30 0.08%)
Atmos Energy Corp
NiSource Inc
0.12% (2020 30 0.11%)
Snap-on Inc
Stanley Black & Decker Inc
3.45% (2020 30 3.35%)

Abbott Laboratories
ABIOMED Inc

Align Technology Inc
Baxter International Inc
Boston Scientific Corp
Cooper Cos Inc

Danaher Corp

DENTSPLY SIRONA Inc
Edwards Lifesciences Corp
Hologic Inc

IDEXX Laboratories Inc
Intuitive Surgical Inc
PerkinElmer Inc

ResMed Inc

STERIS Plc

Stryker Corp

Teleflex Inc

Thermo Fisher Scientific Inc
Varian Medical Systems Inc

West Pharmaceutical Services Inc

)

)
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516 0.25
234 0.11
117 0.06
2,166 1.05
121 0.06
121 0.06
74 0.04
54 0.03
128 0.07
57 0.03
177 0.09
234 0.12
1,198 0.59
90 0.04
237 0.12
253 0.12
318 0.16
110 0.05
867 0.43
71 0.03
351 0.17
116 0.06
263 0.13
594 0.29
99 0.05
190 0.09
100 0.05
495 0.24
119 0.06
1,140 0.56
99 0.05
129 0.06



1,280

1,536
1,017
3,580

456

Zimmer Biomet Holdings Inc

1.97% (2020
Anthem Inc
Catalent Inc
Centene Corp

DaVita Inc

30

2.01%)
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197 0.10
7,036 3.45
493 0.24
106 0.05
215 0.11
54 0.03
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1,630
817
1,184
601
832
5,859
480

2,048
1,699

22
1,656

818
386

515
1,534
778

2,100

2,332

4,034
1,878
5,320
1,412
1,188
366
12,018
924

96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) (
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) (
1.97% (2020 30  2.01%)

HCA Healthcare Inc

Humana Inc

Igvia Holdings Inc

Laboratory Corp of America Holdings
Quest Diagnostics Inc

UnitedHealth Group Inc

Universal Health Services Inc

0-20% (2020 30 0.20%)
DR Horton Inc
Lennar Corp
NVR Inc

PulteGroup Inc

0.05% (2020 30
Leggett & Platt Inc
Whirlpool Corp
0.33% (2020 30 0.39%)

Avery Dennison Corp
Church & Dwight Co Inc
Clorox Co

Kimberly-Clark Corp

0.02% (2020 30 0.02%)

Newell Brands Inc

2.83% (2020 30 2.82%)
Aflac Inc
Allstate Corp
American International Group Inc
Aon Plc
Arthur J Gallagher & Co
Assurant Inc
Berkshire Hathaway Inc

Cincinnati Financial Corp

)
)
( )

0.05%)
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268 0.13
335 0.16
212 0.10
122 0.06
99 0.05
2,054 1.01
66 0.03
4,024 1.97
141 0.07
130 0.06
90 0.04
71 0.03
432 0.20
36 0.02
70 0.03
106 0.05
80 0.04
134 0.07
157 0.08
283 0.14
654 0.33
50 0.02
50 0.02
179 0.09
206 0.10
201 0.10
298 0.15
147 0.07
50 0.02
2,787 1.37
81 0.04
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595  Globe Life Inc 57 0.03
2,213  Hartford Financial Services Group Inc 108 0.05
1,122  Lincoln National Corp 56 0.03
1,443  Loews Corp 65 0.03
3,132 Marsh & McLennan Cos Inc 366 0.18
4,724  MetLife Inc 222 0.11
1,578 Principal Financial Group Inc 78 0.04
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3,616
2,445
1,564
1,258

869

1,857
1,793
2,634

253
883
4,044
779
839
380

14,845
2,728
3,655
4,911

620

1,864

4,593
1,949
1,150

1,713
2,028
1,642
2,532

600

96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
2.83% (2020 30 2.82%) ( )
Progressive Corp
Prudential Financial Inc
Travelers Cos Inc
Unum Group
W R Berkley Corp
10.89% (2020 30 11.07%)

Alphabet Inc CI A
Alphabet Inc CI C
Amazon.com Inc
Booking Holdings Inc
CDW Corp

eBay Inc

Etsy Inc

Expedia Group Inc
F5 Networks Inc
Facebook Inc
Netflix Inc
NortonLifeLock Inc
Twitter Inc

VeriSign Inc

0.05% (2020 30 0.05%)
Nucor Corp
0.11% (2020 30 0.08%)

Carnival Corp
Norwegian Cruise Line Holdings Ltd

Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd

0.33% (2020 30 0-29%)
Hilton Worldwide Holdings Inc
Las Vegas Sands Corp
Marriott International Inc
MGM Resorts International

Wynn Resorts Ltd
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358 0.18
191 0.09
220 0.11
29 0.01

58 0.03
5,757 2.83
3,254 1.60
3,141 1.54
8,578 4.22
563 0.28
116 0.06
203 0.10
139 0.07
111 0.05
67 0.03
4,054 1.98
1,475 0.72
76 0.04
266 0.13
134 0.07
22,177 10.89
99 0.05

99 0.05

99 0.05

50 0.02

86 0.04
235 0.11
191 0.09
121 0.06
217 0.11
80 0.04

68 0.03
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677 0.33
0.70% (2020 30 0.60%)

1,935 Deere & Co 521 0.26
890  Dover Corp 112 0.06
804  Flowserve Corp 30 0.01
468  IDEX Corp 93 0.05

2,295 Ingersoll Rand Inc 105 0.05

2,515 Otis Worldwide Corp 170 0.08
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717
1,105
1,113

3,355

901
28,195
990
1,822
1,527
2,084
955
2,414
752
3,489
11,180

8,972
4,961

3,562
836
2,461
54,094
1,779
795

1,413

1,029
329

96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )

93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) (

)

0.70% (2020 30 0.60%) (

Rockwell Automation Inc
Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp

Xylem Inc

0.30% (2020 30

Caterpillar Inc

2.20% (2020 30 1.91%)
Charter Communications Inc Cl A
Comcast Corp
Discovery Inc Cl A
Discovery Inc Cl C
DISH Network Corp
Fox Corp CI A
Fox Corp CI B
News Corp CI A
News Corp CI B
ViacomCBS Inc

Walt Disney Co

0.26% (2020 30 0-25%)
Freeport-McMoRan Inc

Newmont Corp

0.26%)

1.09% (2020 30 1.02%)

3M Co

A 0 Smith Corp

Eaton Corp Plc

General Electric Co
Il1inois Tool Works Inc
Parker-Hannifin Corp

Textron Inc

0.07% (2020 30 0.06%)
Xerox Holdings Corp

Zebra Technologies Corp

220/270

180 0.09
81 0.04
113 0.06
1,405 0.70
611 0.30
611 0.30
596 0.29
1,477 0.73
30 0.01

48 0.02

49 0.02

61 0.03

28 0.01

43 0.02

13 0.01
130 0.06
2,025 1.00
4,500 2.20
233 0.11
297 0.15
530 0.26
623 0.31
46 0.02
296 0.15
584 0.29
363 0.18
217 0.11
68 0.03
2,197 1.09
24 0.01
126 0.06
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150 0.07

1.76% (2020 30 2.28%)
2,331  Apache Corp 33 0.02
2,461 Cabot Oil & Gas Corp 40 0.02
11,888  Chevron Corp 1,004 0.49
1,212  Concho Resources Inc 71 0.03
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6,595
2,362
976
3,602
26,110
1,688
920
4,875
4,018
5,175
2,697
1,015
2,518

4,235
5,459
2,398
8,596

2,020
586
958

1,622

10,902
908
1,791
13,955
1,812
2,231
8,083
593
4,903

96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )

93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) (

)

1.76% (2020 30 2.28%) ( )

ConocoPhillips

Devon Energy Corp
Diamondback Energy Inc
EOG Resources Inc

Exxon Mobil Corp

Hess Corp

HollyFrontier Corp
Marathon Oil Corp
Marathon Petroleum Corp
Occidental Petroleum Corp
Phillips 66

Pioneer Natural Resources Co

Valero Energy Corp

0.20% (2020 30
Baker Hughes Co
Halliburton Co
National Oilwell Varco Inc

Schlumberger NV

0.18% (2020 30 0.18%)
Ball Corp
Packaging Corp of America
Sealed Air Corp

Westrock Co

5.27% (2020 30 5.95%)
AbbVie Inc
AmerisourceBergen Corp
Becton Dickinson and Co
Bristol-Myers Squibb Co
Cardinal Health Inc
Cigna Corp
CVS Health Corp
DexCom Inc

Eli Lilly and Co

0.20%)
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264 0.13
37 0.02
47 0.02

180 0.09

1,076 0.53
89 0.04
24 0.01
33 0.02

166 0.08
90 0.04

189 0.09

116 0.06

142 0.07

3,601 1.76
88 0.04

103 0.05
33 0.02

188 0.09

412 0.20

188 0.09
81 0.04
44 0.02
71 0.03

384 0.18

1,168 0.57
89 0.04

448 0.22

866 0.43
97 0.05

464 0.23

552 0.27

219 0.11

828 0.41



882
16,257
992
15,624
34,324
7,450

Henry Schein Inc
Johnson & Johnson
McKesson Corp
Merck & Co Inc
Pfizer Inc

Viatris Inc
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59 0.03
2,558 1.26
173 0.09
1,278 0.63
1,263 0.62
140 0.07
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2,935

12,022
2,744
7,494

2,072

765
2,743
862
875
2,663
1,730
2,297
550
2,115
403
798
425
3,325
4,356
1,780
2,671
706
4,565
939
2,167
974
686
2,025
448
1,818

96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
5.27% (2020 30 5.95%) ( )
Zoetis Inc
0.20% (2020 30 0.25%)

Kinder Morgan Inc
ONEOK Inc

Williams Cos Inc

0.06% (2020 30 0.06%)
CBRE Group Inc

2.29% (2020 30 2.69%)

Alexandria Real Estate Equities Inc
American Tower Corp

AvalonBay Communities Inc
Boston Properties Inc

Crown Castle International Corp
Digital Realty Trust Inc

Duke Realty Corp

Equinix Inc

Equity Residential

Essex Property Trust Inc

Extra Space Storage Inc

Federal Realty Investment Trust
Healthpeak Properties Inc

Host Hotels & Resorts Inc

Iron Mountain Inc

Kimco Realty Corp

Mid-America Apartment Communities Inc
Prologis Inc

Public Storage

Realty Income Corp

Regency Centers Corp

SBA Communications Corp

Simon Property Group Inc

SL Green Realty Corp

UDR Inc

224/270

486 0.24
10,688 5.27
164 0.08
105 0.05
150 0.07
419 0.20
130 0.06
130 0.06
136 0.07
616 0.30
138 0.07
83 0.04
424 0.21
241 0.12
92 0.05
393 0.19
125 0.06
96 0.05
92 0.05
36 0.02
101 0.05
64 0.03
52 0.03
40 0.02
89 0.04
455 0.22
217 0.11
135 0.07
44 0.02
194 0.10
173 0.09
27 0.01
70 0.03



2,313

968
2,577
4,609

419

Ventas Inc
Vornado Realty Trust
Wel ltower Inc

Weyerhaeuser Co

5.06% (2020 30 5.22%)

Advance Auto Parts Inc
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113 0.06
36 0.02
167 0.08
155 0.08
4,604 2.29
66 0.03
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96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
5.06% (2020 30 5.22%) ( )

143 AutoZone Inc 170 0.08
1,423 Best Buy Co Inc 142 0.07
1,013 CarMax Inc 96 0.05

173 Chipotle Mexican Grill Inc 240 0.12
2,725 Costco Wholesale Corp 1,027 0.50

804 Darden Restaurants Inc 96 0.05
1,513  Dollar General Corp 318 0.16
1,452  Dollar Tree Inc 157 0.08

243  Domino®s Pizza Inc 93 0.05
1,270 Gap Inc 26 0.01

891  Genuine Parts Co 89 0.04
6,648 Home Depot Inc 1,766 0.87
1,443 L Brands Inc 54 0.03
4,525 Lowe"s Cos Inc 726 0.36
4,601 McDonald"s Corp 987 0.49

447  O"Reilly Automotive Inc 202 0.10
2,198 Ross Stores Inc 270 0.13
7,248  Starbucks Corp 775 0.38
3,092 Target Corp 546 0.27

667 Tiffany & Co 88 0.04
7,414  TJX Cos Inc 506 0.25

719  Tractor Supply Co 101 0.05

348 Ulta Salon Cosmetics & Fragrance Inc 100 0.05
4,438 Walgreens Boots Alliance Inc 177 0.09
8,561  Walmart Inc 1,233 0.61
1,863  Yum! Brands Inc 202 0.10

10,253 5.06

0.02% (2020 30 0.02%)
2,624  People®s United Financial Inc 34 0.02
34 0.02
4.95% (2020 30 4.65%)

7,427 Advanced Micro Devices Inc 681 0.33
2,282  Analog Devices Inc 337 0.17
5,640 Applied Materials Inc 487 0.24
2,498  Broadcom Inc 1,094 0.54
25,306 Intel Corp 1,261 0.62
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221 IPG Photonics Corp 49 0.02
954  KLA Corp 247 0.12
889  Lam Research Corp 420 0.21
1,651 Maxim Integrated Products Inc 146 0.07
1,608 Microchip Technology Inc 222 0.11
6,874  Micron Technology Inc 517 0.25
3,822  NVIDIA Corp 1,996 0.98

227/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
4._95% (2020 30 4.65%) ( )

704 Qorvo Inc 117 0.06
6,984  QUALCOMM Inc 1,063 0.52
1,026  Skyworks Solutions Inc 157 0.08
1,025 Teradyne Inc 123 0.06
5,669 Texas Instruments Inc 930 0.46
1,514  Xilinx Inc 215 0.11

10,062 4.95
0.02% (2020 30 0.03%)

250  Huntington Ingalls Industries Inc 43 0.02
43 0.02

9.44% (2020 30 10.32%)
4,773  Activision Blizzard Inc 443 0.22
2,962  Adobe Inc 1,481 0.73
1,005 Akamai Technologies Inc 106 0.05

530  ANSYS Inc 193 0.09
1,358  Autodesk Inc 415 0.20

714  Broadridge Financial Solutions Inc 109 0.05
1,722  Cadence Design Systems Inc 235 0.12
1,893 Cerner Corp 149 0.07

760  Citrix Systems Inc 99 0.05
1,791 Electronic Arts Inc 257 0.13
3,832  Fidelity National Information Services Inc 542 0.27
3,551 Fiserv Inc 404 0.20
1,623  Intuit Inc 616 0.30

471  Jack Henry & Associates Inc 76 0.04

46,688  Microsoft Corp 10,383 5.09
512 MSCI Inc 229 0.11
11,714  Oracle Corp 758 0.37
1,976  Paychex Inc 184 0.09

303 Paycom Software Inc 137 0.07
5,650 salesforce.com Inc 1,256 0.62
1,205 ServiceNow Inc 663 0.33

942  Synopsys Inc 244 0.12

710 Take-Two Interactive Software Inc 148 0.07

249  Tyler Technologies Inc 109 0.05

19,236 9.44
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2.44% (2020 30 2.90%)
336  Arista Networks Inc 98 0.05
44,005  AT&T Inc 1,266 0.62
6,098 CenturyLink Inc 59 0.03
26,094 Cisco Systems Inc 1,168 0.57
4,718 Corning Inc 170 0.08
2,036  Juniper Networks Inc 46 0.02
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96.07% (2020 30 97.15%) ( )
93.71% (2020 30 94.82%) ( )
2.44% (2020 30 2.90%) ( )

1,047 Motorola Solutions Inc 178 0.09
3,602 T Mobile Us Inc 486 0.24
25,554  Verizon Communications Inc 1,501 0.74
4,972 2.44

0.03% (2020 30 0.02%)
369 Mohawk Industries Inc 52 0.03
52 0.03

0.04% (2020 30 0.04%)

787  Hasbro Inc 74 0.04
74 0.04

1.62% (2020 30 1.46%)

839  CH Robinson Worldwide Inc 79 0.04
4,723  CSX Corp 429 0.21
1,045 Expeditors International of Washington Inc 99 0.05
1,492  FedEx Corp 387 0.19

516  JB Hunt Transport Services Inc 71 0.03

578 Kansas City Southern 118 0.06
1,568 Norfolk Southern Corp 373 0.18

594  0ld Dominion Freight Line Inc 116 0.06
4,161 Union Pacific Corp 866 0.43
4,417 United Parcel Service Inc 744 0.37

3,282 1.62

0.08% (2020 30 0.09%)
1,119 American Water Works Co Inc 172 0.08
172 0.08
190,706 93.71
195,504 96.07

ETF : 1.27% (2020 30 0.70%)

1.27% (2020 30 0.70%)
7,500 Vanguard S&P 500 ETF 2,577 1.27
2,577 1.27
ETF 2,577 1.27
198,081 97.34
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25 30,750 S&P 500 E-Mini March 2021 98 0.05
98 0.05
30

/
15/01/2021 4,184,495,759 39,797,632 738 0.36
15/01/2021 128,117,707 1,232,787 8 0.00
15/01/2021 967,600,000 9,275,782 97 0.05
15/01/2021 92,530,165 888,849 7 0.00
15/01/2021 108,684,786 1,034,208 19 0.01
15/01/2021 9,821,041 1,021,496,000 74) (0.04)
15/01/2021 9,893,164 1,022,145,600 ®) (0.00)
869 0.42
(82) (0.04)
787 0.38
885 0.43
198,966 97.77
3,842 1.89
970 0.48
(282) (0.14)

203,496 100.00
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2021

354,378,171 38,896,548
1,124,447 123,419
353,253,724 38,773,129

180,515

530,323

1,576.41 173,027

14,244
() 2021 31 109.76
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131

2021 31
109.76
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J.P.

2020 12 31
2020 2019
13 41,827 4,591
14 15,308,007 1,680,207 13,661,742 1,499,513
15 6,588,374 723,140 6,637,394 728,520
21,896,381 2,403,347 20,299,136 2,228,033
21,938,208 2,407,938 20,299,136 2,228,033
16 (6,376,524) (699, 887) (6,041,154) (663,077)
15,519,857 1,703,460 14,257,982 1,564,956
15,561,684 1,708,050 14,257,982 1,564,956
17 25,000,002 2,744,000 25,000,002 2,744,000
34,864 3,827 34,864 3,827
(9,473,182) (1,039,776)  (10,776,884)  (1,182,871)
15,561,684 1,708,050 14,257,982 1,564,956

2021 20

2021 20
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J.P.

2020 12 31
2020 2019

6 18,366,426 2,015,899 9,460, 856 1,038,424
6 (12,523,244)  (1,374,551)  (5,281,301) (579,676)
(4,494,555) (493,322)  (3,807,165) (417,874)

7 63,558 6,976 2,193 241
1,412,185 155,001 374,583 41,114

9,754 1,071 103,410 11,350

9 (11,097) (1,218) (8,500) (933)
10 1,410,842 154,854 469,493 51,532
11 (107,140) (11,760) (86,611) (9,506)
1,303,702 143,094 382,882 42,025

2019
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J.P.

2020 12 31

o 25,000,002 2,744,000 34,864 3,827  (11,159,766) (1,224,896) 13,875,100 1,522,931
382,882 42,025 382,882 42,025

2019 12 31
25,000,002 2,744,000 34,864 3,827 (10,776,884) (1,182,871) 14,257,982 1,564,956
1,303,702 143,094 1,303,702 143,094

2020 12 31

25,000,002 2,744,000 34,864 3,827 (9,473,182) (1,039,776) 15,561,684 1,708,050
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J.P.
JpP
25
FCA
101
FRS 101 2006
2006
FRS 101 2006
46 52
1AS 38
1AS 79(a) (1v)
IFRS 1AS 16
1AS
IAS 24 17

IAS 24
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Jp
E14 5JP
FCA
FRS 101
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS 45(b)
1AS
1AS 30 31
IAS 24



4.1

4.2

4.3

JP

4.4

238/270
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4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.9.1
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FVOCI
FVTPL

FVTPL

SPP1 SPP1

FVTPL
SPP1

FVTPL

JP

4.9.2
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FVOCI

4.9.3

ECL FVOCI

R&S
12
ECL

ECL

4.10

a)

b)

4.11

ECL
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IFRS
EMEA
2020 2019
3,947,116 3,227,052
14,419,310 6,233,804
18,366,426 9,460,856
(12,523,244)) 5,281,301
5,843,182 4,179,555
JP
3,947,116 2019 3,227,052
2020 2019
63,558 2,193
2020 2019
9,754 103,410

JP

2020 2019
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11

(

(

)

)
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11,097 8,500
JP
2020 2019
68,360 98,509
22,969 23,263
1,944,965 1,538,626
299,803 267,990
153,779 149,485
147,811 299,742
2019
2020 2019
235,578 86,611
(86,611)
148,967 86,611
(41,827)
(41,827)
107,140 86,611
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2019

12

LTIP

2006

2020

13

19
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19 2019 19

2020 2019
1,410,842 469,493
19
268,060 89,204
(86,611)
1,458 623
(33,940) (3,216)
(41,827)
107,140 86,611
2020 2019
17,383 28,080
125 381
2 3
2 3
LTIP
200,000 2006
2020 2019
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41,827
41,827
2020 2019
11,186
6,577,188 6,637,394
6,588,374 6,637,394
1,649,063 (2019 :3,227,052
2020 2019
4,518,483 4,836,731
1,540,744 1,092,063
68,013 22,840
249,284 89,520
6,376,524 6,041,154
818,764 2019
2020 2019

2019 2
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25,000,000
2019 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002
18
2020 106,388 2019 101,409
19
JP 2015 19
2018 15 LTIP
LTIP 2020 12 31 67 2019 75
2022 LTIP
LTIP
LTI
RSU RSU
50 50
RSU
RSU RSU

RSU SAR
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2019 2020

2020 12 31 106.52 2019 113.7

147,811 2019 299,742
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Balance sheet

3 December 2020 2018
Maote H -

Man-current assels

Dwferrad lax asaal 13 41 B27 —

Current agaals

Cash and cash eqguivalents 14 15,308,007 13,661,742

Dehbons 15 6,568 374 6,637,304

Total current assals 21,586, 381 20299136

Tolal assets 21,838 208 20,299 136

Curremnt liabilitses

Cradibars: amounls falling due within one year 16 {6,376,524) (6,041,154

Mei current assels 15,519,857 14,257,882

Mal aasels 15,561,684 14,257,082

Equity

Called-up share capital 17 25,000,002 25,000,002

Jiner regarnes 34 Bod 34,864

Accumulated sgas (3473.182) (10,776, 884)

Total eguity 15,561,684 14,257,982

The notas an pages 21 - 28 farm an integral part of thesa financial statemanis.

The financial statements on pages 18 - 28 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 April 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

ML

Matthew Malling
Director

Date: 20 April 2021

-19-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Income statement

Year ended 31 December 2020 2010
Neotbe H -
Operating income g 18,366,426 9,460,856
Ciperating expense i (12,523 244) (5,281,301
Adminiatrative expenses {4,404 555) (3,807, 165)
CIter oo T 63,558 2,183
Operating profit 1,412,185 374,583
Interest and similar incame L 9,734 103,410
Wnierest expense and similar charges 9 {14,007 {8,500)
Profit Before income lax 10 1.410,842 459,493
Income tax axpense i {107, 140) {86,611)
Profit for the financial year 1,303,702 382,882

Statement of comprehensive income

Thara were no othar items of comprehensive income or expensa other than tha profit for the financial year shown above (2019:
Lnil). As a result, profit for the financial year represants total comprehensive income in both tha currant and pricr financial year.

The notas an pages 21 - 28 farm an integral part of thesa financial statemanis.

-18-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity

Called-up Other Accurmulated

share capital reserves losses Total eguity

$ % S -

Balance as al 1 January 2019 25,000,002 34,864 (11,150,766} 13,875,100
Profit for the financal year — = 382 BEZ 382 882
Balance as at 31 December 2019 25,000,002 34,864 (10,776,684) 14,257 982
Profit for the financial year — — 1,303,702 1,303,702
Balance as at 31 December 2020 25,000,002 34,564 (9,473,182) 15,561,684

Other reserves relate to share based paymeni awards granted to employeas by the Company.

The notas on pages 21 - 2B form an integral part of thesa financial statemanis.

-20-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements

1. General information

The Company is a private limiled company incarporated and domiciled in United Kingdom. The Company's immediate parant
underiaking is Tha Bear Stearns Companies LLC, incorporated in the state of Delawarea in the United States of Amearnca ("U.5.7)
The Company's ultimate parant undertaking, and the parent underiaking of the only group in which the results of the Company are
consolidated, is JPMargan Chase & Cao. (the "Firm” or "JPMuorgan Chase"), which is incorporated in the state of Dalaware in the
U.5. The consolidated financial statemants of the Firm can ba obtained from the Company's registerad office at 25 Bank Strast,
Canary Wharf, Landon, E14 5P, England.

Principal activities

The Company is an assal managemant company which pravidas risk managament and sirategic asset managament services o
clanls. The Company promofes, launches and manages funds, invesiments and other invesiment solulions in line with its
ragulatory permissions a5 sel by the Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA”™). The Company is authorsed and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority ("FCA™).

2. Basis of preparation

These financal slatements have bsen prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101, "Reducad Disclosure
Framework” ("FRS 1017). FRS 101 applies the recognition and measuremeant requiremanis of International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRS"} in confarmily with the requirements of the Companias Act 2006,

The financial siatemants have bean prapared on a going concem basis under the historical cost convantion and in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006.

The following exempfions fram the requirements of IFRS in conformity with the requiremants of the Companies Act 2006 hawe
been applied in the praparation of thesa financial statemsants, in accordance with FRS 101:

+  Cerfain share basad payment dischosures in respect of Group equity instruments {(IFRS 2, 'Share-based payment’
paragraphs 45(b) and 48 to 52};

=  Comparative information disclosuras (paragraph 38 of [AS 1, 'Presentation of financial statemeants’ ("LlAS 17} for
reconciliation of share capital {paragraph 78{a){iiv) of I1AS 1)

+«  Statemant of compliance to IFRS (paragraph 18, 1AS 1};

+  Cash flow statemant and related noles (JAS 7 Cash flow statermenis);

+  Disdlosures in relation to new ar revisad standards issued but not yat effective (paragraph 30 and 31, 1AS 8 "Accounting
poficies, changes in accounting astimates and emaors');

+  Key managemant compensation disclosures (paragraph 17, 1AS 24 'Related Party Disclosuras’ (MIAS 24"}k
+  Ralated party transactions with whally owned group undariakings (LAS 24).

3.  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statemantis gensrally requires managemant o make judgemants, estimates and assumplions that
affect tha amaunts recognisad in the financial statemanis. Due to the nature of Company's business and balances, no significant
accounting estimates or udgemeants wera required in preparation of thess financial stalemanis.

4.  Significant accounting policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements. Thase policies hawve
been appliad consistantly in each of the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary ecanomic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currancy™). United States ("U.5."} dollars is considered as the funcional and
presaentation currency of the Company.

4.2 Foreign currency translation

Monatary assels and manetary liabilifies in foreign currencies are translated into U5, dollars at rates of exchange ruling an the
balance shest data. Income and expense items danominated in foreign currencies ara translated into U.S. dollars at exchange
rates pravaling at the date of the transactions. Any gains or losses arising on translation are taken directly to the income
statemant.

MNaon-monatary items denominated in foraign currencies that are stated at historical cost are translated into ULS. dollars at the
exchange rate nuling at the date when the fransaction was initially recognised.

-21-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements {continued)

4.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.3 Income and expense recognition

Azzel management fees

This revenus category includes fees from invastment managemant and related sarvices.

Investmant management fees are lypically based on the value of assats under management and are collectsd and recognised at
tha and of sach period aver which the managemeant services ara provided and the valua of the managed assels is known. The
Company has contraciual arrangements with third parlies for providing distribution and ather servicas in connection with its assat
management activiies.

Income from Access agreement:

The Company has contractual arrangements with another JP Morgan Chasa undertaking for providing services in the form of
principal manager and ar investmant managear far cariain investment structure and to assist with the initisl preparations of such
producis. Incomea from this agreemant s driven by the reimbursement of carain fixed cosls as defined in the agreement
and expenses incurred in establishing the Funds subject to the limits prescribed thersin

Expanses

Amounts paid to third-parly service providers are recorded in operating expenses under fund related expenses. Operating
expensas include, but are not limiked to custody costs, seltlement and exchange fees, regulatory fees, administrative, awdit or
lagal fees. All expanses are recognised when the undarlying contract becomes legally binding or at the agreed dus date if later.

4.4 Provisions

Prowvisions are recognisad when the Company has a presant legal or constructive obligation as a rasult of past evanis, it is
probable that an oufflow of aconomic banefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made.

4.5 Pensions and other post-retirement benefits
The Company participates in a defined confribution pansion schemea in tha United Kingdom.

A defined confribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays a defined leval of contributions. Obligations for
contributions 1o defined confribufion pension plans are recognised as an axpense and changed o the income statemeant on an
accrual basis.

4.6 Share-based payment awards

Share-basad paymeant awards may be made o amployess of the Company under tha Firm's incentive awards schemes. The fair
value of any such shares, rights o shares or share ophbions is measured whan the conditional award is mada. This valua s
racognised as tha compensation axpense to the Company aver the pericd o which the padformance criteria ralate togather with
emphoyer’s social sacurity expansas or ather payroll taxes. All of the awards granted are equity satled. The Company estimates
tha level of forfeituras and applies this forfeitura rate at the grant date.

4.7 Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents indude cash and balancas at banks and loans and sdvances to banks with maturities of three months
or less.

4.8 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax payable on laxable profits (current tax) is recognisad as an expanss in the pariod in which the profits arisa. Incomse tax
recoverable on fax allowable losses is recognised as a current tax assel only to the extant that it is regarded as recoverabla by
offset against taxable profits arising in the current ar prior pariod. Current tax is measured using t&x rates and tax laws that have
bean enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheat dats.

Dafarrad tax s providad in full, using the liability method, on tamporary differences arising from the differances batween thea tax
bases of assels and liabilities and theair camying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is detarmined using tax rates
and legislation enacted ar substantively enacted by the balance shest date, which are expactad o apply when the deferred tax
assat is realisad or the deferred tax liabilly is selfled. Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are only offset whan thera is both a legal
right and an intention to sette on a net basis. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised direcily in equily if the tax relates o
items that are racognised in tha same or a differant pariod in aquity.

-22-
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements {continued)

4.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.9 Financial instruments

4.9.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities

i Racognilion of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company recognises financial assaets and financial liabiliies when it becomes a parly to the contrachual provisions of the
instrumant. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on tha trade-dals, which is the dale on which the
Company commits to purchasa or sell an assat.

. Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

On initigl recognition, financial assels are classifisd and measured at amortised cost, fair valwe through other comprehensive
incoma {"FWOCI"} ar fair wvalue through profit or loss ("FWTPL"). The classification is based on both the business model for
managing the financial assats and their contraciual cash flow characteristics. Factors considerad by the Company in delermining
tha business madsal for a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows for thase assats ware collected, how the
assats’ parformanca is evaluated and reported io key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed, and how
managers are compansated.

On initial recognition, financial liabilities are dassifisd a5 measured at eithar amoriised cost or FYTPL.
a} Financial assats and financial liabilies measurad at amartised cost

Financial asseis are measured at amortsed cost iF they are held under a business model with the objective to collect contractual
cash flows ("Hold o Collect™) and they have contractual terms under which cash flows are solely payments of principal and
intarest ("SPPI"}. In making the SPP1 assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
wilh a basic lending arrangeament (i.e. interest includes only considaration for the time valee of money, credit risk, other basic
landing risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement). Wheare the contractual terms introduce
exposure fo risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangemant, the related financial asset is classified and
maasurad at FWVTPL. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considerad in thair antirety whan determining whether their
cash flows are SPPIL. As a result of the application of these criteria, only dabi financial assats are eligible to be measured at
amorised cost

Financial assets measured at amortisad cost include cash and cash equivalents and debtors that are in the Hald to Caollact
business madel.

Financial liabilifies are maasurad at amortised cost unless they ara held for trading or designated as measurad at FVTPL. Mast of
tha Company's financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost Financial liabilites measured at amaortised cost includs frade
craditors, accruals and amounts owed to othar JP Morgan Chasa undertakings.

Financial assats and financial liabilies measurad al amorlised cost are initially recognised at fair valus including transaction costs
{which ara explained below). The initial amount recognised s subsequenily reduced for principal repaymentis and for accrued
intarast wsing the effective interast mathod (see below). In addition, the carrying amount of financial assets is adjusted by
racognising an expactad credit loss allowance through the profit or loss.

The effactive inferast mathod is wsed to allocate interest income or intarest expanse owver the relevant period. The effective
interast rafe is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial assst
or financial liability or a shorter period when appropriate, to the net carrying amaunt of the financial assat or financial liability. The
affactive interast rate is astablished on initial recognition of the financial asset or financial kabiity. The caleulation of the effective
interest rate includas all feses and commissions paid or recsived, fransaction costs, and discounts or premiums that are an integral
part of the effective infarast ralte. Transaction cosis are incremantal costs that are directly attributabla to the acguisition, issuance
or disposal of & financial assst or financial lability.

Gains and losses arising on the disposal of financial assets measured al amardised cost are recognised in trading profit or othar
non-interest revenue as relevant.

4.9.2 Interest income and interest expense
Unless a financial asset is credil-impairad, interest incomea is recognised by applying the effective interest method to the carrying
amount of a financial asset bafore adjusting for any allowance far expacted credit losses. If a financial asset is credil-impaired,

intarest income is recognisad by applying the effective interast rate io the camying amount of the financial asset including any
allowance for expacted credit losses.

-23-

253/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gOonoOo(E30829)
OOoooooooooooooooooood

J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements {continued)

4.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (continued)

4.9.2 Interest income and interest expense (continwed)

Interest expanse on financial Rabilities is recognised by applying the effective interest mathod (o the amortised cost of financial
liabilities. Interest income and expanss on financial assets and financial liabilities, axcluding those classified at FVTPL, are
presantad in interest income from financial asseats measwrad al amortised cost and FAVOCH and inferest expense from financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost respectively. Interast ganerated as a result of 'negative’ interest rates is recognised gross,
as interast income ar inlerest axpanss.

4.9.3 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognisas ECL for financial assels that are measured at amortised cost.

The ECL is determined on in-scope financial instruments measurad al amortized cost or FVOCI. ECL are measured collectively
via a portfolic-basad (madeled} approach for Stage 1 and 2 assels but are generally measured individually for Stage 3 assels.
ECL are forecasted ovar the 12-month term (Stage 1) or expacted life (Stage 2 or 3} of in-scope financial instruments, whare the
foracast harizon indudes the reasonabla and supportable (RE&S) farecast period, tha reversion pariod and the residual pariod and
considers the tima value of money. In determining the ECL measuremant and staging for a financial instrument, the Company
applies the definition of default consistant with the Basel definition of default to maintain uniformity of the definition across the
Firm.

Detarmining the appropriatenass of the allowance is complax and requires judgment by management about the effect of
circumstances that are inherantly uncerlain. Further, estimating the allowance involves consideration of a range of possible

outcomas, which managemant evaluates o determina its bast estimate.

The Company must consider the appropriatensss of decisions and judgments regarding methodology and inputs wutilized in
developing estimates of ECL each reparting period and document tham appropriataly.

4.10 Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assals are derecognised whan the confractual right to receive cash flows from the assel has axpired, or has been
transfarred with aither of the following conditions met:

a} the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset; or

b} the Company has neither retained nor fransferred substantially all of the risks and rewards; but has relinquished control of the
assat.

Financial liabilities are derscognised when thay are axtinguishad, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancalled or expiras.
4.11 Share Capital

The share capital of the Company consists of ordinary shares, classified as aquity.

5. Segmental analysis

The Company is not in scops of IFRS 8 "Operating segments’, as its dabt or aquity instrumants are nat traded on 8 public marksat,

tharefore segmental analysis of the Company's revenusa and assels is nof necessary. The Company operatas in the EMEA
gaographic ragion.

-2 -
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements {continued)

G. Operating income and expense

2020 2018

§ 5

Access Agreament feas 3,847 116 3,227 052
Assel managemaent fees

Inwestment management lees 14,419,310 6,233, B04

18,366,426 ‘9,460,856

Operaling expenses (12,523 244) (5,281,301}

5,843,182 4,179,555

Invastmant managemsant faes reprasents fees for risk managament and strategic asset managemant sarvicas, via its fund
solufions business. Current year income includes fees of $3,947,116 (2019: $3,227.052) from ather JPMargan Chase
undeariakings pariaining to the Access Agreemeant. Oparating expenses includsa fund costs paid by the Company an bahalf of
tha funds. This arrangament may inclede payment of all the expenses or those expenses axceseding specific limit which has
been agreed upon. Tha Company has disclosed operating income instead of turnovear as this reflacts more accurately the
rasults and nature of the Company’s aclivities.

T. Other income

2020 2019
¥ ¥
Forelgn exchanpge ransiaton gain 63,558 2,183
8. Interest and similar income
2020 2018
¥ 5
Inerest and similar income:
Fimancial instruments &1 armortsed cost 0,75l 103,410
All interest and similar income is recaivable from ather JPMorgan Chase undertakings.
9.  Interest expense and similar charges
2020 2010
¥ §
Intereat expense and aimilar charges:
Financdial instruments &t armorised cost 11,087 8,500
All interest expanss and similar charges is payable to other JPMorgan Chase underiakings.
10. Profit before income tax
2020 2018
E 5
Profit before income lax s stated after charging:
Auditors’ rermuneration for the audt of the Company’s anmual financiel stelemeanls [ 98,509
Audil-relaled asswance servicas 22 064 23263
Wages and salaries 1,548 665 1,538,626
Sooal secinly coats 200 803 267 990
Other pengion and banefit costs 153,779 149 485
Share haged payrmants 147 B11 289,742

The average manthly numbser of persons providing services to the Company during the year was § (2018 ).
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements {continued)

11.  Income tax expense

2020 2018
¥ ]

(a) Analysis of tax charge for the year
Current taxation
Current tax an profits Tor the year 235,578 86,611
Adjustment in respect of prior years [BEGI1) —
Taotal current tax 148,967 86,611
Dederred tax
Currenl year charge (41,627) —
Total deferred tax (41,827} —
Total tax expendgs far the year 107,140 86,611

{b) Factors affecting the current tax charge for the year

The fax chargs for the year is same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 18% (2019: 18%). The differences are
explained balow:

2020 2019
L1 §
Frofit betore incomea Lax 1,410,842 459,493
Profit bedore income Lax multiphad by standard rate of UK corporation tax 16956 2018: 19%;) 268,060 89,204
Effecis of:
Adjusirment in respect of prior years (86,611) —
Mon deductible expenses 1,438 623
Income nol laxable (33,940 (3,216)
Employes siock plen (41,827 —
Taotal tax charge for the year 107,140 86,611
12. Directors’ emoluments and staff costs
2020 2019
$ H
Aggregale emoluments 17,383 28,080
Total contibulions o & defined contribution plan 125 Aa1
Murnizer of directors with shares recelved or recelvable under LTIPs 2 3
Murniber of directors o whom defined contribution pension rights accrued 2 3

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the directors’ emoluments above reprasent the propaortion paid ar payabla in
respect of qualifying services to the Company including LTIPs. Directors also received emoluments for nan-qualifying
servicas, which are nof required fo be disclosed.

Highest paid director

For 2020, tha emaluments of the highest paid director is under £200,000 which is nat required fo be disclosed under the
raquiraments of the Companias Act 2006.
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements {continued)

13. Deferred tax asset

2020 2010
$ ]
The balance comprises tempoarary differences altributable to:
Share based paymenis:
Cipening balance as of 1 Januery - -
Deferrad tax chamed o imcome staterment for the penod 41,827 —
Closing balance as of 31 December 41,827 —
14. Cash and cash equivalents
All bank balances are held with JPMorgan Chase underiakings.
15. Debtors
2020 2019
$ ]
Prepayment and acerued income 11,186 —
Trade deblors 6,577,188 6,637,394
6,588,374 6,637,394

Trade dabtors includes balance owed by a JPMorgan Chase undertaking of 51,649,063 (2019: $3,227,052).

16. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2020 2018

¥ ¥

Trade credilors 4 316483 4 836,731
Accnuals 1,540, Fdad 1,092,063
Bank owardrall BE,013 22,840
Tax liabdities 240 284 89,520
6,376,524 6,041,154

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year incledes balances owed fo JPMorgan Chase undertakings of $818 784 (2019:
$1,017.347)

17. Called-up share capital

2020 2019
§ ]

tasued and fully paid share capital
1{208: 1) Ovdinary share of £1 2 2
25,000,000 (2019 25 000,000) Ordinary shares of $1 esch 25,0060 000 25,000,000
25,000,002 25,000,002

18. Pension costs
The Company participates in a defined confribution pansion scheme in tha United Kingdom.

The Company recorded a tofal pension expense of $106,383 for the year 2020 (2019 $101,409).
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J.P. MORGAN MANSART MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements {continued)

19. Share based payments
Employee stock-based awards

The ultimate parent of the Company, JPMorgan Chase & Co. has granted long-term share-based awards o certain key
amphoyees under its LTIP (Long Term Incentive Plan), as amended and restated affective May 19,2015 and further amended and
rastated effective May 15, 2018. Under the tarms of the LTIP, as of 31 December 2020, 67 million shares of commoan stock were
availabla for issuance through May 2022 (2019: 75 milion shares). The LTIP is the anly active plan under which the Firm s
curréntly granting share-based incantive awards. In the fallowing discussion, the LTIF, plus prior Firm plans and plans assumed
as the result of acquisitions, are referred fo collectively as the "LTI Plans® and such plans constitute the Firms' share-based
incentiva plans.

The Firm separately recognises compensalion expanssa for each tranche of each award as if it ware a separabe award with its own
vesling date. Far each tranche granted, compansation expense is recognised in line with how awards vest from the grant date
until tha vesting date of the respactive tranche, provided that the employees will not becomsa full-career eligible during the wasting
period. For awards with full-career eligibility provisions and awards granted with no future substantive service requirement, the
Firm accruas the estimated valee of awards expected io be awarded to employeses as of the grant date without giving
consideration to the impact of post-employment restrictions. For each tranche grantad to employees who will become full-carear
aligible during the vesting period, compensation expense is recognisad in line with how awards vest frorm the grant date untd the
earier of the amployes's full-caresr aligibility date or the vasting date of tha respactive tranchea.

Restricted stock units

Rastrictad stock units ("RSUs") are swarded at no cost fo the recipient upon their grant. RSUs are generally granted annually and
genearally vast at a rate of 50% after bwo years, 50% afler thres years, and convert inbo sharas of common stock at the vasting
date. In addition, RS3Us lypically include full-career eligibility provisions, which allow employees o confinue fo vest upon voluntary
termination, subjact to post-employmant and other rastricions basad on age or sarvica-related requirements. All of these awards
are subjact to forfeiture until vested and contain clawback provisions that may result in cancellation prior to vesting under cartain
spacified circumstances. R5Us entitle the recipient to receive cash payments equivalent to any dividends paid an the underying
common stock during the period the R5Us are outstanding.

Compansation expansea for RSUs is measured based upon the numbsr of shares granted multiplied by the siock price at the grant
date, and for employes siock oplions and SARs (siock appraciation nghts), is measured at the grant dale using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. Compansation expense for these awards is recognised as described abaova.

Broad-based employee stock options.

Ma broad-based employee stock options were grantad in 2019 or in 2020.

The weighled-avarage shara price during the year ended 31 Decambear 2020 was $108.52 (2019: $113.7).

Compensation expense related to stock-based incentives

The total expansa for the year relating to share based payments was $147 811 {2019: $299.742), all of which relates to equity
setiled share based paymanis.

-28-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE TRUSTEE OF PASSIM TRUST
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the sub-funds Series 2016 JPX-Nikkel 225 Fund, Series 2016 JPX-Nikkei
400 Fund, Series 2016 TOPIX Fund and Series 2018 S& P 500 Fund (together the “ sub-funds’) of the PASSIM Trust (or
the “Trust”) , which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity/net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units and statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements. These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financia position of the
sub-funds as at 30 June 2020 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“1FRS”).

Thisreport, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Trust’s unitholders as a body and for
regulatory filing purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SA™). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with IFRS,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SA
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with | SA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonabl eness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Trust's ahility to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a materia uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosuresin the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town,
Cayman Idlands
21 December 2020
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Independent auditors' report to the members of JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, JP. Morgan Mansart Management Limited s financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31
December 2020; the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs (UK)") and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financia statementsin the UK, which includes the FRC' s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relaing to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for

aperiod of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statementsis appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee asto the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financia statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing
S0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency
or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

Srategic Report and Directors Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financia statements and the audit

Responsihilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors responsibilities set out on page 13, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statementsin accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determineis necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue asa
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design proceduresin line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with
laws and regulations related to the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), and we considered the extent to which non-
compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated management’s
incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the posting of inappropriate journa entries and the
application of management biasin accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed included:

Challenge and validation of key assumptions and judgements made by senior management in calculating critical key
accounting estimates, in particular in relation to share-based payment expenses;

Identification of journal entries for testing via the application of fraud risk criteria, including journal entries posted by
senior management;

Evaluation of entity level controls put in place by management to prevent and detect irregularities;

Enquiries with senior management, the UK Audit and Compliance Committee, internal audit and internal legal
advisors including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, and
fraud;

Assessment of whistleblowing procedures, reports and management's investigation of such matters; and

Review of key correspondence with regulatory authorities (the FCA) in relation to compliance and regulatory
proceedings.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances
of non- compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements. Also, therisk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors report.

Use of thisreport

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
handsit may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
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Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

certain disclosures of directors remuneration specified by law are not made; or

the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Sheena Coutinho (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London 20 April 2021
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